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1, The Appeals Chamber of the Intemational Cominal Tribunal for the Prosecution of Persons
Responsible for Genowide and Other Sencus Violations of Intermational llumanitarian Law
Committed in the Temitory of Rwanda and Ewandon Citizens Responsible for Genocide and Onner
Such Viglations Committed in the Temitory of Neighbouring States beiween 1 Jenuary 1994 and 31
December 1994 'Appeals Chamber” and “Tribural”, respectvely) is seized of an appeal by
Mikaeh {also known as Mika) Muhimana (“Appellant™) against the Judgement and Senlence
rendered by Trial Chamber I of the Tribunal on 28 April 2005 in the case of The Proseciior ».
Mikaeli Muhimana (Trial Jud gt:rm:n[").l

L. INTRODUCTION

A, The Appellant

2. The Appellant was born on 24 October 1961 in Kagano Cellule, Gishyita Sector, Gishyita
Commune, Kibuye Prefecture, Rwanda.” The Appellant was the conseiller of Gishyita Sector from

1990 through the relevant period covered by his indicument in 1994.°

B. The Judgement and Senfence

i The Trial Chamber convicted the Appeilant pursuan to Armicle 8(1) of the Stawte of the
Trbunal (“Statute™) for instigating, committing, and abetting crimes between April and June 1994
at various locations in Kibuye Prefecture. including Gishyila Town, Mubugs Church, Mugoner

Complex, and the Bisesero area comprising, fmter alip, Nvarutovu Ceilele, Ngendombi Hill,

Kanyinya T3l], and Muyira Hill.* Specifically, the Trial Chamber delermined that the Appellant
participated in various atlacks by shooting and throwing a grenade at Tutsi refugees and raping
numerous Tutsi women or wonten whom he believed 1o be Tutsi.” Addigonally, the Trial Chamber
found that the Appellant disemboweiled a pregnant woman who died as a vesult of her injuries.” The
Trial Chamber also found that the Appellan abetied others who raped womnen as weil as instigated
individuals to kil! victims in his presentc.:' For these cimes, the Tl Chamber convicled ihe

Appellam of genocide (Count 13, rape as a come against humanity {Count 3), and murder as & crime

' Far ease of reference, twi annckes are appended tw this Judgement: Anncs A - Procedural Background; Annex i -
Cited Malerials and Defined Teoms.

! Trial Judgement, nara. 4,

' Trial Judgermenl, paras 4, 132, 604,

! Trial Judgement, paras, SO8-519, 352-543, §70-583,

Y Triat Judgement, paras, 312,513,552, 970,

f Trial Judgement, paras. 557, 370-576.

"Trial Judgemend, paras. 353, 370,

Case Mo, ICTR-25-18-4 21 May 2007
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against humanity (Count 43" The Trizl Chamber sentenced the Appellant 1o imprisanment For the

remainder of his life on each coynt.”

C. The Appenl

4. The Appellant appeals his convictions and challenges his senences. He requests the Appeals
Chamber to overturn his convictions and 10 release him ' In the alternative, he requests the Appeals
Chamber to order # retrial or, as a further zliemative, to quash his life sentences and substitule them
with an appropriate fixed-term semence.!' ‘The Appellumt has divided his grounds of appesl into
three categories: cirors of Iaw and fact relating 10 genernl fssues, erroneows factual findings related
to specific events, and sentencing errors. Within these categories, the Appeals Chamber has
identilied sixteen grounds of appeal. The Prosecution responds that all grounds of appea! should be
dismissed.

5. The Appeals Chamber heard oral submissions regarding this appeal on 15 Janwary 2007.
Having considered the written and oral submissions of rthe parties, the Appeals Chamber hereby

Tenders its Jwdgement.

* Tria! Judgement, paras. 519, 562, 563, 582, 5%3, 985, Having found the Appellamt guiity of genocide, the Trial
Chaniber dismissed the charpe of complicity in genocide (Count 2). Trial Tudeemeni, parzs. 520, 386
B .
Trial Judgement, paras. G183, 619
"“"Notice of Appeal, Ch. IV.
' Notice of Appeal, Ch. 1V,
12 Ser Respondene's Oricf, para, 21

(]

Case No. ICTR-95-1B-A 21 bay 2007
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II. STANDARDS OF APPELLATE REVYIEW

6. The Appeals Chamber recalls some of the applicable standards of appellate review pursoant
to Article 24 of the Siatuic, The Appeals Chamber revicws only errors of law which invalidate the

decision of the Trial Chamber and errors of Tact which have occasioned a miscarriage of justice.

7, As regards errors of law, the Appeals Chamber has stated:

Where a pagty alleges that there is an erroc of law, ihat pacty must advance arguments 10 sapport of
the tubmission and explain how the eror invalidates the decizion, However, if the appellant's
arpuments do aal suppart the contention, that party does not automatically Tose (s point since the
Apprals Chamber may step in and, for other reasons, find in favoor of e comeniion thay thore is
an error of law,

5. As regarids errors of fact, it s well established that the Appeals Chamber will not hightly
overiurn fndings of [act made by the Tnat Chamber:

Where the Delfence alleges an erroncolts ladmg of facy, the Appeals Chamiber must give deference
i Lthe Tral Chamber that received the evidense at wial, and i will only interers in those Gndings
where ta reasonable tier of fact could have reached |he same finding or where the finding is
wholly erroneous. Eprthermore, the ermonesos foding will ke revoked of revised only if the ertor
nccationed a miscardage of justce.

9. A party cannot megely repeat on appeal arguments that did not succeed at tnal, unless it can
demonstrate that the Trial Chamber’s rejection of those arguments constituied an ermor warrantiog
the intervention of the Appeals Chainber. Arguments which do not have the potential to cause the
impugned decision o0 be reversed or revised may be immedialely dismissed by the Appeals

Chamber and need not be considered on the merits.'®

10, In order for the Appeals Chamber 1o assess argnments on appeal, the appealing pany must
provide precise references to relevant wanserpt pages or paragraphs in the decision or judgement to
which the challenge is made.'” Further, the Appeals Chamber cannot be expecied 1o consider a

pany's subimissions in detail if they are obscure, contradictory, vague or suffer from other formal

' Ser Geacumbitsd Appeal Judgement, pare. 7. quoling Neakirutimane Appeal Jodpemem, para. 11 fimernal citatgons

omied). See olso Kefeltfelf Appeal Judgement, para, 5 Swkid Appeal Judgemend, para 8, Vasiljevid Appeal

Judgement. para. &,

Y Gacuenbirsi Appeal Jodgement, pary, A, quoting Krstid Appeal Judgemeat. para. 40 {imemal citations omitied). See

s Kafelifelil Appeal Judpement, para. 5.

¥ Ndtndabohizi Appeal Judgement, para. L, Gacwnbitsd Appeal Judgement, para. 9; Miyitegeka Appeal Judgement,

a. 9, See afso Stakid Appea) Judgernent, para, 115 Nolesibic ond Mortizovid Appeal Judgement, para. 13

* Ndindabahizi Appeal Judgement, para. 11, Kajelijeii Appeal Judgement, para. 6, Nakfruiimana Appeal Judgement,
ara. V3. Sec alse Stakid Appeal Judgement, pata. |11, Naletilic’ and Martinavid Appeal Judgement, para. 13,

 Practice Dhrection un Formal Requirements [or Appeals from Judgement, para. 4(b], See alzo Mindabahizi Appeal

Judgemen, pard. 12, Cocuribirsd Appeal Judgement. pata. B0, Rafelifelr Appeal Judgement, para, 7, Srakid Appeal

Tudgement, para. 17, Vazilfevic® Appeal Judgement, para. 11

3
Case No ICTR-93-1B-A 21 May 2000
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and uhvious insufficiencics.” ¥Finally, the Appeals Chamber has inhcrent discretion in selecting
which submissions meril a detailed reasoned opinion in writing and will dismiss arguments which

are evidently unlounded without providing detailed reasoning.

1# Vorsifjevid Appeal Judpement, para. 12, Ser wofio Mdindabalin' Appeal Judgoment, para. 123 Neledifie amd Martinovic
Aprral ldgement, ara, 14 Xajefipeli Appeal Judgemenl, para, 7.

" Gagumbitst Appeal Judeentent, para. 10; Kafefifedi Appeal Tadgemenl, pard, 8 Mvitepeke Appeal Tudgement, para.
L1, Sew alsir Stakid Appea) hudpement, para. V3 Blaikié Appeal hudgemtenl, para, 13

4
{Case Mo ICTR-9%- 13-4 21 May 2007
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III. ALLEGED ERRORS RELATING TO THE DEFINITION OF
INTERAHAMWE, 1TS STRUCTURE, AND THE AFPELLANT’S ROLE
THEREIN (GROUND OF APPEAL 1)

11. The Appellant subnaits that the Trial Chamber ced in law and in fact by finding that he had
alithority over the faterghariwe and that he was in a position Lo order them (o counmit genocide and
cnmes against humanity, thereby incurmng individual criminal responstbility pursuant to Article
6¢1 of the State.* He further subinits that the Trial Chamber erred in fact when it “linked" him to

the Inferaharmwe without first defining the fnterafurmwe and his position in it

12, The cssence of the Appellant’s submission under this gronnd of appeal 15 that the Tdal
Chamber errcd tn finding that he bad authority over the fnterahamive and that he was in a position
to order them to commit crimes for which he was held responsible, The Appeals Chamber finds no
ment in this submission, The Trial Chamber did oot find that the Appellant had authonty over the

Interohamwe or that he ordered them to commit eomes for which he was then held responsible.

Rather, the Trial Chamber held the Appellant responsible for personally committing genocide,™
commilting and abethipg rape as a crime against humanit}',ﬂ and committing and instigating
murders as crimes against humanity. ™ None of (hese holdings is founded upon any finding that the
Appeilant had authority over the interafiamwe or that he ordered the aterabamwe 10 commit Lhese
crimes. Consequently, there was no need for the Trial Chamber o define the faterghamwe, its

structure, or the Appellant™s position ia it,

13, Accordingly, this ground of appeal is disniissed.

* Appellant’s Brief, para. 23,

! Waotice of Appeal, p. 2, Ch. I, para. L; Appellant*s Bried, paras. 2[, 22.
 Tria) Judpement, paras. 513, 519,

* Trial Judgement, paras, 552, 553, 562.

® Prial Judgement, paras, 570, 571, $42.

Case No_ [CTR-95-1R-A 21 May 2007
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IV. ALLEGED ERROR RELATING TO THE BURDEN OF PROOF
(GROUND OF APPEAL 2)

14, The Appellant submits that the Tral Chamber erred in law by reversing the hurden of proof
ang essentially requiring him o prove the impossibility of his presence at the scene of crimes or that
the crimes could not have oceuarred, rather than simply requiring him to “induce a ncasonable doubt
as 10 whether his version mmight not be teue”. The Appcilant illustrates this alleged legal emor
under this ground of appeal by pointing o the Trial Chamber's findings on the rapes of Languida

Kamukina and Goretti Mukashyaka ™

15, Based on the uncorroboraed testimony of Prosecution Witiness APY7 the Trial Chamber

inferred that Wie Appellant raped these two women, reasoning as foidlows:

Althongh Witness AP was nol an ¢yewiness Lo the rape of Goretli and Languida, the Chamber
infers that the Accosed raped them on the basis of the following faclors: the witness saw the
Accused take the girts inio his hovse; she heard the victims sorcum, menlioning te Acuused's
name and stating that they “did not gxpest himn o do that” 1o thew; finally the witness saw the
Agcosed lead the victims out of his house, stask naked, and she noticed that they were walking
“with their legs apart” ™

16.  [nasserling that the Trial Chamber reversed the burden of proof, the Appellant points to the

following passage from the Trial Tudgement:

The Chamber Bnrds that the mere facl thal several Dofence witnesses did nol heac of capes
commilicd by the Accpsed in his hoose on 7 Aprel 1994 does notl mcan thar they cowdd ror have
wecirred. The witnesses advanced no rcason v suppoert the implied asscreion thar, if the Acecused
had commiited rapes, they woold have heard of themn. The Chamber docs ngt fipd this atgoimen
merstasive, The Chamber does ml aceep the conlention thal under BEwandan culare §tois
impossible for a man @ rapc & Woman in the matimonial home. The Chamber accepts that in any
society such behaviour would be considered tnacceptable. However, this fact does nor preclusde
Hae poressibiiney thad if coold ocrir

17.  The Appellant contends that his evidence considered under the proper legal standard at the
very least raised dowubt as to the comnussion of the rapes, especiaily us Witness AP was not an eye-
witness 1o the actual erines.™ The Appeals Chamber considers here the Appellant's Jogal argument
conceming the burden of proof, and it addresses the Trial Chamber's meliance on Wimess AP in

connection with these events in Ground of Appeal 3.

¥ Appellant's Brief, para, 27, quoting £efebics Case Trial Judgement, para, 603, See afso Notice of Appeal, p. 2, Ch I,
ata, 2; AppeHant’s Briel, paras, 25-31.

“ Apmellant’s Rrief, para, 26,

" Trjal Judgemen, paras. 17-19, 22,

* Tra Judgemcol, para. 32

# Appeltant's Bricf, paras, 26, 28, quonng, Trial Judgemear, para. 25 {emplusis added),

" Appellant’s Brief, paras, 28-30.

Case No ICTR-95-TB-A 21 May 2007
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| 18.  The Appeals Chamber considers thal some of the languwage used 1n paragraph 25 of the Tral
Judgement, luphlighted by the Appetlant, could be perceived as a shifl in the burden of proal 1 the
Appellant. when viewed in isolation. An accused does not nead o prove at tnal that a enime “could
natl have occwted” or “preclude the possibility that it could occur”. Nonctheless, it is apparent from
the Trial Chamber's approach as a whole that it did not place the burden on the Appellant to

establish (that the rapes cauld net have occurred.

19, The Toal Chamber's stalement that “the mere fact that scveral Defence wilmesses did not
hesr of [the] rapes [L..] dogs nod mean thal they could not have occurred™ meflects che appreciation
that simply nat hearing of something does nol neccssadly rebut the evidence thal established that

the rapes had been commited. Notably, the Trial Chamber observed that the Delence witngsses

“advanced no reason (o support the implied asseriion that, if the [Appellant] had committed rapes,

"' This analysis does not demonstrale a shift of burden of proof

they would have heard of them.
the Appellant, Rather, it reflects the Trizl Chamber’s assessment of the limited probative value of

the evidence preseoted by the Appellant in the context of the lotality of evidence prescited by buth

prarnes.

20, In addition, the Tral Chamber’s statement that: “[t]he Chamber accepts that in any society
such behaviour would be gonsidered unacceplable. However, this fact does not preciude he
possibility that it could occur”, ™ when considered in the context of the Trial Nudgement, 4lso does
not evidence a shifl in the burden of proof to the Appellant. The Appeais Chamber considers that
the Trial Chamber's assessment of the Appellant’s evidence relating to standards of behaviour in a
particular soeicty simply reflects the himited probative value of such evidence in raiging reasonable
doubt when weighed against Prosecution evidence ihat the rapes did occer, which the Trial
Chamber considered to he credible.

2}, Accordingly, this ground of appeal is dismissed.

M Trial Jodgement, para. 25.
" Enrphiasiy addcd.

Case Mo, ICTR-95-B-A 21 Wlay 20407
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V. ALLEGED ERRORS RELATING TO THE POWERS OF CONSEILLER
DE SECTEUR (GROUND OF APPEAL 3)

22.  The Appellant submits that the Tral Chamber erred in Jaw and in {act by not defining the
scope of his Jegal authonty as a comseifler as well as his position, role and subordinates, in
accordaice wilh the Rwandan Law of 23 November 1963 on Teritorial Administration and the
ftagifishema Trial Judgerment.™ He argues that, as a result of this alleged error, his conviction for

“ordering” has no legal basis.™

23, The Appeals Chamber observes that the Trial Chamber did nol find the Appellant
respunsible for ordenng any of the crimes of which it convicted him; rather, the Trial Chamber held
hitn responsible (or committing. abetting, and instigating.™ The Appeals Chamber therefore tinds
that the Appellant has failed to show how the fact that the Trial Chamber did not address the powers

of a eonsedfer amounted to an emor.

24, Accordingly, this ground of appeal is dismissed.

¥ Notice of Appeal, p. 2, Ch, T, para. 3; Appellant's Bricl, paras. 32-30. citing Begitishema Toal ludgement, para. 198,
" Appeilant’s Rrief, para. 35,
" Trial Judgement, paras. 513, 519, 352, 593, 562, 570, 576, 542
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VI, ALLEGED ERRORS RELATING TO THE ALIBI (GROUND OF
APPEAL 4)

25 The Appellant submits that the Trnal Chamber crred in law and in fact by unfairly
considering his alibi based on the circvmstances surrounding the death of his child on 8 April 1994
and the ensuing mooming p-crin-d.m He argucs that the Trial Chamber erred in discrediting his ahbi
hased on the lestimony of Defence Witness DC, who proved 1o be a “hosiile witness”* The
Appollant contends that the Trial Chamber could have admitled the alibv that he continuously
remained at hume at least untit 12 Apnl 1994, when Witness DC allegedly saw him at Mubupa
Church.™

26, The Appellant does not make any reference 1o any part of the Trial Judgement int support of
the present submission, nor does he explain the signiticance of the claim that Witness DC was a
“hostile witness”. The Appeals Chamber has revicwed the relevant paragraphs of the Trial
Tudgement and notes the following:

Al irial, the Accused raised an alibi to esablish that e couid not have committed (bhe comes,

which occurred ouiside his home, Jfor which he was ndicted. The Accused called a mumber of

witnesscs 10 say that be remained a bis bome in Gishyita continuously mourning s dead son
from & to 16 April 1994,

27, The Appcals Chamber also notes that the Trial Chamber [ollowed estabiished junispradence

when il considered the Appeliant’s alibt and correctly reasoned as follows:

The Trial Chamber is salisticd that tbe evidence of the Defence witnesscs does notl raise a
rgisonahly dogbr as toe whether the Accused was present al the varcos locattons where he is
alltged to bave commilled ¢r parlicipated i the conunission of comes, This linding i po way
undermines the Accused’ s presempiion of [inocence, and the Trial Chamber has made s faclual
findings bearing in mind thar the Proscooton alone bears the barden of proving beyond 2
reasonable doubt the allegations made against the Avcused

28. A review of the Trial Judgement shows that the Triul Chamber considered the Appellant’s
alibi in ihe context of the allcgations against him during the period of ® to 16 April 1994.*' The
Appeals Chamber notes that, in this assessment, Witness DC was only one of many eyewilnesses (o

have placed the Appellant outside his home during this periad.* Furthermore, the Trial Chamber

* Notice of Appeal, p. 2, para. 4; Appeliant’s Bricf, para. 37,
¥ Appellant’s Bricl, paras. 37, 38.
*® Appeitant’s Brict, para. 37.
" Trial Judgement, para, 12,
U Tral Judgerment, paras. 13- [5, citing Mivitepeta Appeal Judgement, para. &0, Musesna Appeal Judgemnent, para. 1U8.
! Trial dudpement, paras. 63, 160, 203, The Appellanl has raised speeific challenges against these findings in othee
Fraunds of s appeal, Sze Gronnds of Appeal 14, 1.
I 8ee, vo. Triad Judgemenl, paras, 63, 2078,
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nited thar the evidence in support of the alibt was not <:mwint:invg."l3 There is, therefore, no ment in
the Appellant’s contention that, even if the Trial Chamber relied on Witness D, it shouid have

accepted has alibi until 12 April 1994, Mareover, the Appellant’s unsubstantiated submission (hat

Wilness DC was a “hostile witness” does not demonstnate that no reasonable Woer of Fact could have

relicd on his cvidence.

29 Accordingly, this ground of appeal is dismissed.

* Trial fudgement, paras. 63, 160, 203,
10
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VII. ALLEGED ERRORS RELATING TO THE INTENT TQ COMMIT

GENOCIDE (GROUND OF APPEAL 5)

M.  The Appeilant submits that the Trial Chwnber emred in law and in fact by finding that he had
the intent to commiit genocide when it was established at trial that he had a Tutsi wile whom he
protected to the end of the wat: that he had saved Tutsi people in Gishyita, that he had saved
Wiiness AQ. a Tulsi wornan: and that he had married o Tutsi woman during his flight 1o Zaire ¥

The Appellant arpues that “a person cannot have the intent to commt genocide [...] and at the same

time carry out protective and goodwill acts for members of the same group.™**

31, The Appeais Chamber observes that the Tnal Chamber took the fellowing factors into

account in determining thai the Appellant had intem 1o commit genocide:

515, The Chamber finde that the avacks meatiomed |07 sbove were sysematicadly directed
againgt the Tuesi group. Hefore the anacks on Mubuga Church conunenced, Fudu refugees, who
were intenmingled with the Twtsi, were instructed 10 come ool of the chureh. Similarly, both
Proscomtion and Defence witnesses testified that the mfugecs who had gathered on Kanyinya and
Muyirg Hills were predominantly Turs),

516, Factors such as the sheer scale of the massacres, derng which 2 preat pamber of T
civilians died or were seriously injurcd, and the number of assailants who were wvelved inothe
allacks against Teiri civilians, lead the Chamber to the imesistible conclusion thal tbe madsacres,
in which the Arcused participated, were inteaded 1o destrey the Turtf group in whole or in pan.

217, The Accused targoted Tutst civilians dunng these atacks by shooking and raping T
victims. He also raped a young Hwte pitl, Witness B whom e believed o be Tirsh gt laesr
apologrised ta ber when he was informed that she was Aty During the course of some of the
atlacks and rapes, the Accuwsed specifically referred to1he Tutsl ethnic identity of has viclms.

518 Thus, the Chamher finds that the Aceosed’s participaion in the attacks, and his woerds and

deeds demonsteae his inent o destroy, in whole or in parl, the Tuisi group.*”
32, The Appeals Chamber notes (hat the Trial Chamber's finding that the AppeHant participated
in killing and seriously injuning Tutst victins with the intention to commit genocide, was based on
evidence which the Appeliant has failed 10 successfully impogn. The Appeliant atlempts o show
error in the finding of his intent by painting to his acts of protecting individual Tutsis, inciuding his
wives, This evidence was hefore the Trial Chamber. The Trial Chamber was free (o consider thai it
did not suffice to impeach the evidence of the Appeliant’s individual acts of violence against the

Tutsts which Formed the basis of its finding that he had the requisite intent o commit genocide, In

 Notice of Appeal, p. 2, para 5; p. 8, para. §; Appeltant’s 1ricd, paras, 39-44.
** Appcllant’s Brief, para. 45,
* Tral Judgement, paras. 515-514.
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general, evidence of limited and selective assistance towards 8 few individuals does not prechude a

trier of tact from teasonably {inding the requisite intent to commit genocide”

33. Accordingly, this ground of appeal is dismissed.

! See Rimaganda Appeal Tndgemenn, para. 537 (*'T)he Appeals Chamber holds the view that a reasenable ther of fact
could very well oot take account of some of the illustrations (of sssisting Tutsi] peovided by the Appellant, which
appedr immatertal within the context of the numerous atrocitive systemalically and deliberate]y perpetrated agame
members of the Tulsi group, awing o their heing members of whereol™). Sex alee Kvolka ¢t @l Appeal Judgement,
paras. 232, 233 (referring o perscoulion as a critne 3gainst bumaaity, which is also o spogifie intent crime).
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VIII. ALLEGED ERRORS RELATING TO THE PLOT BY PASCAL NKUSI
AND CERTAIN WITNESSES (GROUND OF APPEAL 6)

34, The Appellant submits that the Trial Chamber erred in law and in fact by faiting to consider
his arguments advanced at trial in relation to a plot by Pascal Nkusi against him, his famaly, and his
pmp::n}f“ and by failing to draw all necessary inlerences (town the contention that Prosecution
Witness AP was biased in her testimony against him in light of her relationship with Pascal Mkusi.™
The Appetlant explains that Pascal Nkusi fraudulently obtained his property™ and that Prosecution
Witness AQ is also benefiting from it>' He further avers that Pascal Nkusi intimidated Defence
Witness DQ.™ The Appellant comtends that Pascal Nkusi recruited witnesses for the Prosecution
who were Vattached” to him and who were enjoying the Appellant’s properly to appear before the
Tribunal and lie.™ He further submits that Pascal Nkusi provided the Prosccution with Witnesses
AP, AX, A, BR, BU, BF, AW, BE, and BC, and thar no reasonable trier of fact would have found

their testimonics to be credible in light of this plot.™

35 The Trial Judgement reflects that the Trial Chamber explicitly considercd many of the
argurnents relating 1o the alleged plot by Pascal Nkusi and his alleged relationship with cenain

wilnasses, In celation 1o Witness AP, the Trial Chamber reasoncd as {ollows;

The Chamiber has alss noted the Deleace challenge W Witacss AP's credibility thin she s related
tov the cutrent conseifler of Gishiyita Sectenr, who replaced the Accused, and that her testimony is
therefore biased, and part of 5 plot against tke Avcused by the conseilier to deprive the Accused of
his property. The Chamber nntes that the Defeace never put this allegaton of bias 10 (he wilhess
during cross-cxamination. Morcover, in assessing the credibility of Wimness AP, the Chamnber has
laken pole of is alegaton of hias and is salishicd that it does nol in any way discrodil ke
testimony.**

36. The Appeals Chamber notes that the Trial Chamber assessed the challenpes 10 Withess
AP’s Lestimony in the Trial Judgement and found het to be credible.’® Having reviewed the Trial
Chamber’s assessment of Witngss AP's evidence, the Appeals Chamber finds no erroc in he Trial

Chamber's acceptance of and reliance on her testimony.

* Nuotive of Appeal, p. 2, para, 6; Appellant's Brief, para. 46,

¥ Appellant’s Bricf, paras, 50, 82-86. According to the Appellant this Tollows fram tie testimonics of Witnesses 1A,
DT, and I1). The Appellant advances these arpuments pimanly under Ground of Appeal 8 challenging the evidence of
Witness AT in connection with the rapes ol Languida Kamukina end Gorenti Mukasyaka, but the Appeals Chamher
{inds it appropniatc to consider them here in coonection with his other arguments concerning Pascal Nkusi,

* pppellant's Brivf, para. 46.

' Appeltant’s Bricf, paras. 49, §4.

¥ appellent’s Bricf, para. 48.

* Appellant's Bricl, paras. 46, 48,

™ Appellant’s Brief, paras. 46, 47.

Tl Judgement, pars. 30

% Sev. e, Triad JTudeement, pares. 23-31.
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37 In relatton w Witness AQ. the Trial Chamber took into consideration the Appellant's
arguinents concemning her alleged connection w Pascal Nkusi when dssessing her testimony. The
Trial Chamber reasoned as follows:
The Chamiber is mindful of the Delvnee subrission regarding the partiality of Wilness AG and

hus, accordimply, coasidered her testimony wilh the necessary caution. Mevernfieless, the Chamber
finds her recollection of the events eredible and reliabic.”

38, The Appellant’s argument that Wilnesses AX, BB, BU, BF, AW, BE, and BC arc biased
given their relationship with Pascal NEusi 15 not substantiated by any reference 1o evidence in the

record ™ Therefore, the Appeals Chamber declines to consider it further.

39.  The Appeals Chamnber concludes thay there is no meril in the Appellant’s contention that the
Trial Chamber did not consider bis arpuments in relation w the alleged plot and finds that the
Appellant has failed [o demonsirale any ermor of law or fact on the part of the Trial Chamber in this

regmard.

4. Accordingly. this ground of appeal is dismissed.

T Tral Judgement, para, 1040,
W Appcllant's Bricf, paras. 46. 48, The Appellant sugpests that all individuals “invoke" Pascal Mkusi's name, but dres

not cite 1o a spocific exhibil, See Appellant’s Bricll para. 4% [n. 30, Additionally, the Appellant direcis the Appeals
Chamber to review paragraph 79 of the Defeace Cloging Briel, which indicates thar these witnesses have ™a particular
relauonship with Pascal Nkusi” See Appellant’s Brief, para. 46, citing Defence Closing Briel, para. 79, The Appeils
Chamber notes that while the Appellant genericaliy reforences “hidentification sheets” in the Defence Closing Briel, he
dous nnt point Lo any specific cxhibil.
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IX. ALLEGED ERROR RELATING TO THE ATTACKS AT NYARUTOVU

HILL AND THE NEIGHBOQURING AREAS OF KIZIBA, NYARUTOYU,
AND NGENDOMBI (GROUND OF APPEAL 7)

41, The Appcliant submits that the Trial Chamber erred in fact when it found that the attacks at
Nyarutovu Hill and the neighbouring arcas of Kiziba, Nyarutovu, and Ngendombi belween 8 and 11
April 15994 had been established,™ whereas Prosecution Witnesses AT, BJ, and AV testilicd that
“the poeor climare had set in in Ngoma, Mubuga and Gishyita three or [our days afler the death of
the President™ ™ Relying on excerpts of evidence given by Witnesses AT and BJL® the Appellant
vontends that, according to Witness AT, no nassacies had taken place in the six days (oltowing
President Habyarimana's death® and that, according to Witness BJ, war had only broken out on 16
April 1994,

42.  The Appeals Chamber notcs that the Teaal Chamber rclicd on the evidence given by two

eyewitnesses, Witnesses AW and W, to (ind that between ¥ and 11 April 1994, the Appellant ok
part in cwo attacks a¢ Nyanitovu Hill and neighbourng areas.™ The Appellant arpues that three
other Proscction witngsses, namely Witnesses AT, B), and AY, contradicted the Trial Chamber's
findings when they testified that on the relevani daies, between 8 and 11 Aprl 1994, the hostilites
liad not yet slarled.

43, It is apparent from the Trial Judgement that Witnesses AT and BJ were among the Tutsi
refugees at the Mugonero Complex in Ngoma in the days immediately following the assassination
of Prosident Juvenal Habyarimana ® Both witnesses ocussed in their testimonics on the events al
Mugonero Complex and, in paricudar, on the cvents of 16 April 1494 * The Appellant does not
show how these testimonies would suppon Lhe contention that attacks did not take place at other
Ioeations, namely Nyarutovu Hill and the neighbouring areas, on other dates. The Appellant Cites an
excerpl of Witness AT’s testimony that “poor climate™ set in in his area three 10 four days afier
President Habyaimana's death.” The Appeals Chamber notes that this cxeerpt, however, clearly

refers to a specific location, namely the place of the witness’s residence, which is imelevant w the

* Netice of Appeal, p. 2. Ch. H, para. 1; p. @, para, 8; Appellant’s Boef, paras. $1-55, citing Trial fudgement, paras. 64-
&7, The Apneals Chamber natcs that the Appollam alse challenges thise facwal findings under Ground of Appeal $,

™ Appellant’s Bricl, pare. 56. See afre Notive of Appeal, p. Y, para. 8,

" mppellant’s Bricf, paras. 57, 5%, 60.

" appellant’s Brief, para, 58,

"' appettant’s Brief, para, &1,

* Trial Judgcment, paras. 63-6%.

U Trial Judgemenl, paras. 227, 247,

™ Trial Judgement, para. 227.

T Appellant's Brief, para, 37, citing T. 19 April 1994 pp. 4, 5.
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Trial Chumber's findings related to attacks al Nyarutovu Hill and the neighbouring arcas.”
Sintilarly, the testimony of Wilsiess Bl referred to by the Appellant in this connection docs not
eslablish that the Trial Chamber cmred in making the findings in geestion. Finally, the Appellant has

) . . . &)
nol provided any argument or references in relation o Witness AV,

44, For the foregoing reasons, the Appeals Chamber finds that the Appellant has not
demonstraled in this ground of appeal (hat Witnesses AT, BI, and AV contradicted the Trial
Chamber’s findings as to the altacks al Nyarutovu Hill and the neighbourmg areas between 8 and
{1 Apnl 1994,

45, Accordingly, this ground of appeal is dismissed.

 The Apptals Chzmber has revigwed Prosecotion Exbibit 17 {under scald containing Witmess AT's particulars,
including a refercnce 1o his residence in April 1994,

5 See Appellant’s Brief, para. 56, The Appellant only provided a reference to T. | April 2004 p. 5 which, the Appeals
Cramber notes, is ol & fransceipt of Witness AV's (estimony.
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X. ALLEGED ERRORS RELATING TO THE RAPES OT LANGUIDA
KAMUKINA AND GORETTI MUKASHYAKA (GROUND OF APPEAL 8)

46, The Tral Chamber found that, on 7 Apnl 1994, the Appellant raped twa Tutst women,
Languida Kanukina and Goretti Mukashyaka, in his home and, 45 a result, convicted him of rape as
a critne against humanity.m In nuking this finding, the Trial Chamnber relied on the evidence of
Prosecation Witness AP, holding as follows:

Although Wiiness AP was not an vycwitness t0 the rape of Gorettt and Langotda, the Chamber

infers thar the Accused raped them oo the basis of the following factors. the wilndis saw the

Avcused jake the girls infe his house; she beand the victims scresm, mentioning the Accused's

name and stating el they “did not expect hiam ¢ 4o that” o them; finally the withess saw The

Accused tead the victims oul of his house, stark naked, and she noticed that they were walking

*with their legs apan” ™
47.  The Appellant submits that the Tdal Chamber erred in law and in fact in relying on Witness
AP’s uncorroborated circumstantial evidence of the rapes, in assessing Witness AP’s credibility,
andl in assessing Defence evidence,” Recaliing the elements of rape as defined in the Kanarac et al.
case al the ICTY,"™ the Appellant alleges thal, because Witness AP was aot an eycwitness, she was

nal in a position to establish the getus reus of f&pe.”

48.  The Prosccution responds (hat any crime under the junsdiction of (he Tetbunal may be
cstablished through circumstantial evidence and tha there 15 no nide requinng direct evidence 10
prove the acius reus of I‘ﬁpc.?ﬁ Muareover, the Prosecution sebmits that Witness AP gave both direct

and circumstantial evidence, which was “detailed, credible and ‘intemally consistent’™. °

49.  The Appeals Chamber recalls that it is permissible to base 2 conviction on circumstantial
evidence’” and that a Trial Chamber has the discretion to decide in the circumstances of each case

whcther corroboration of evidence is necessary, "

50).  The Trial Chamber’s finding that the Appcllant raped Langinda Kamukina and Gorett

Mukashyaka is based on the testimony of Witness AP who described their maltreatment.” In such

" Triai Judgement, paras. 32, 552, 563,

' Trial Judgemen, para, 32,

T Motice of Appeal, pp. 2, 3, Ch. 11, paras. 2-7; pp. 2, (4. paras. £-14; Appcllant’s Briefl, paras. 30, 62-88. In addition,
the Appellant also raises other arpoments concerning this cvent in Groond of Appeal 2,

™ appellant’s Drief, para. 65, guoting Kunerae Vriat lndpement, para, 460, Kunarac Appeal Judgement, para, 127.

* Appcilant's Rrief, para, &6,

" Respondent’s Bricf, paras. 107, 108,

b Respondent’s Tael, paras. 1092, 1140, quoting Trial Judgement, para. 23.

T Guoumbiesi Appeal Judgement, para, 115,

™ Kajetijeli Appeal Judgemeni, para. 170, citing Myitegeka Appeal Judgement, para, 92 (“The Appeals Chamber has
consistendly held that a Teial Chamber is in the best position to evaluate the probative value of evidence and that it may,
depending on it assessinent, eely on g single withess s lestimony Tor the proof of a material facl. ™)
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circumstances, the Appeals Chamber cant identify no fuctual error on the part of the Traal Chamber
i eancluding that these two women werc raped in the Appellant’s home, The above-quoted text, in
particular coupled with the evidence of widespread rape committed in the course of the cimes

perpelrated by the Appeliant, provides a sufficient basis for this conclusion.

51, However, it is apparent from Wilness AP's 1estimony that the Appellant was net alone with
the young women in the house at the reicvant time.™ Witness AP tesiified that “[amongst the
voices coming from inside the house, e witness also recognised the voice of Bowrgmestre
Sikubwahe, telling the gins 1o ‘shut up'."FH Consequently, the Appeals Chamber 15 not persuaded
that ihe Tria) Chamber scted reasonably in determimimg that it was the Appellant who raped the two

womcen. rather than another person present in the house, such as Sikubwabo.

52.  Accordingly, the Appeals Chamber (inds, Judge Shahabuddecn and Judge Schomburg
dissenting, that the Trial Chamber erred in fact in convicting the Appellant for commiting rape

based on this evenl and reverses this factual finding, Even if Witness AP’s evidence, as accepted by

the Trial Chamber, demonstrated that the Appellant could bear cominal responsibility for the rapes
of these women as an aider and abeitor, the Prosecution did not charge this form of crintinal
responstbility in connection with these r:aum:i,ﬂ2 and, therefore, it would not be approptiate for the

Appeals Chamber to sphold the conviction on this basis.

53, The Trnal Chamber’s emor of fact, however, did not occasion a muscaniage of justice
because no conviction on any count of the Indictment rested solely on these rapes. The Appellant’s
conviction for rape as a crime against humanity, for which he was scntenced to hfe imptisonment,
rests on his commission of or complicity i the rapes of ten other individuals.® Accordingly, the

Appeals Chamber s not satisfied thal jts finding of emor on the part of he Trial Chamber with

? See Trial Judgement, pars. 32 (“[Tlhe witness saw the Accused ke the girls into his house; she heatd the vietims
sercan], meationing the Accused’s namw and stating that \hey “did pot expect him th do that™ o them; finzlty the
witness saw the Accnsed lead the vietims oul of his house. stack naked, and she noticed that they were walking “with
their legs spant”.).
* Toal Judgemen, para, 14, See wfsn T. 30 April 1994 pp. 24, 27 (T conld hear voices of many peeple, and amongst
thess voices. 1 could hear the voice of the Fowrgmestre. [0..] (. Mow, can vou tell me when Mika avived at the bouse
with the two girls, was there anybody clse present igside that howse, at thal time, apact from Mika and the ginds? A
Lisien. | didnt enter the house. | can onby sav thal there weee nany people. The only person whose voice | recognised
was the Beirgoee gire ™.
*rral Judgement, para. 18,
* Paragraph 6 of the {ndicument alleges that the Appellant “sommiued rape”. Mure speeifically, with respect w this
event, paragraph Sla)(i) of the Indictment reads:

On or about 7 Apal 1994 in Gishyita towno Gishyita scelor, Gishyila communc, Mikaeh Muhimapa

brought two civilian women Gotetti Mukashyaka and Languida Kumukina into his bouse and yapesd

them. Uhereafter be dronve then gaked out of his house and invited faterabanmnee and other civilians

cotte amd seg Bow naked Tutsd gicls locked like. Mikaeh Miehimana then ditected the lterafumwe o

part the girls® legs o pravide the onlookers with & clear view of the girls’ vagiitay.
M Seo Trial Judpement, paras, 552, 353,
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respect 1o the rape of Languida Kamukina and Goretti Mukashyaka is sufficient to impugn his
conviction tor rape as a crime against humanity. The Appeals Chamber is also not satisfied that this
error affects the Appellant’s sentence of imprisonment for the romainder of his life tn view of the
other crimes and the appropriateness of considering this event in aggravation. Accordingly, the
Appeals Chamber finds no hasis for disturbing the Appellant’s conviction or sentence due 1o this

crror of fact,

[§]
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XI. ALLEGED ERRORS RELATING TO THE ATTACKS AGAINST TUTSIS
ON NYARUTOVU HILL AND NGENDOMBI HILL AND RELATING TO THE
RAPE OF ESPERANCE MUKAGASANA (GROUND OF APPEAL 9)

54.  The Twral Chamber found that, between 8 and 11 April 1994, the Appellant participated in
two “large scale™ atracks against Tuisi refugecs at Nyarutovu Hitl.* In addition, the Trial Chamber
Found that, between Y and 11 April 1994, the Appeliant participated in an attack on Negendombi
HilL™ The Trial Chanbes's findings reflect that the second atrack on Nyarutove Hill occurred on
the same day as the attack on Neendombi Hill.*™ The Tral Chamber convicted the Appellant of
genoctde based In part on his participalion in the atlacks on these two hills.*” 1n another event.
which is not related to the attacks on Nyarulgvu and Ngendombi Hills, the Trial Chamber found
that in mid-April 15%4, the Appellant raped Esperunce Mukagasana at his residence.™ The Trial
Chamber canvicted the Appellant of rape as a crime against humanity based in pan on this crime.™
The Appeals Chamber addresses in turn the Appellant’s three sub-grounds of appeal challenging the
factual and lcgal findings on the attacks at Nyanuova Hill and Neendombi Hill, as well as the rape

of Esperance Mukagasana.

A. Alleged Errors relating to the Atlacks on Myarutovo Hill

55.  The Tnal Chamber found that, on 8 or 9 Apnl 1994, the Appeilant participated in the (st
altack on Nyarutova Hill by supplying the assailants with anununition and by shooting ard
wounding a Tutsi man named Emmantel.™ In making these findings, the Trial Chamber relied on
the cvidence of Prascoution Witnesses AW and W."! The Trial Chamber found that the Appelant
participated in a second attack on Nyarutove Hill, as well as other neighbouring areas, incloding

Ngendombi Hill, between 9 and 11 Aprl 1994.% In making findings concemning the second attack

¥ Trial udgenwml, paras. 64-63.

* Tnal Judgement, paras, 67, 7679,

¥ The Triai Judgement refors to the second atlack on Myamsiowa Hill as eccurring on 1Y Apnit 1559 based on the
evidence of Witness W The Tral Chamber Further found bascd on this witness's account that, on the same day as the
second aitack on Myarotova Hill, the Appelianl participated in aitacks oo ocighbounng areas ineluding Myamtova,
Kiziha, and Mpemdombi, See Trial Judgement, para, &7, Hewever, the Tridl Chamber alse found that the aifack on
Mpcodomba 1L cocurred between 9 and 11 Aped 1994, felying in parl on Prozecuiion Wilness W's acoount as
cofroboration for Prosceuion Wimesses BB and BC, Toal Judgemcnt, para, T, As discusscd below in connedtion witly
the Appellant’s sub-grownd of appeal related o the attacks al Meeadombi Hill, the Appeals Chamber finds that e Trial
Chamiber inlgnded the broader date range of 910 1] April 1994 10 apply equally to the second attack ar Myarotova Hill
7 Tria] Judpement, paras. 513, 519,

* Trial Judgemeni, paras, 103, 108,

™ Trial Judgement, paras. 552, $63.

™ Triaf Judgement, paras, ¢4-66, 513,

" Trial Judgement, paras, 63-66,

P rial Judgement, paras. 67, 76 The Trial Chamber also found 1hat, on (be day of the second ansck oo Myamutovy Hill,
the Appellam alse parlicipaled in anacks in aeighbouring areas such as Nyarulova, Kiziba, and Ngendombi. The Tral
Chamber discussed in detail only the atlacks on Nyarutowvn Hiil and Ngesdmnbi Bill and Us findings on genocide are
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at Nyarutovu Hill, the Trial Chamber relicd solely on the cvidence of Witness W.” Under this
ground of appeal, the Appellant snbmils Lthat the Tnal Chamber erred in jaw and in fact in s
assessment of Witnesses AW and W and in its failure to consider other Defence evidence.™ The
Appeals Chamber has already considercd the Appeliant™s other challenges to the findings related w

the two attacks on Nvarutove Hill under Ground of Appeai 7.

L. Allezed ferors inthe Assessment of Witness AW

56, The Appellant submits that the Trial Chamber cmed in Jaw and in fact in relying on the
testtmony of Witness AW in making findings in relation to the attack on Nyarutova Hill. arguing
that his testimony was uncorrobotated, inconsistent, and implausible,™ In this tespict, the Appellant

rases six principal arguinents which are discussed below in turn,

57. The Appeliant initally submits that the Trisl Chamber emed in fact in relyving on the
testimony of Wilness AW because he contradicted himself by first stating that the Appeliant armived
on § April 1994 in the Bisesero area in a red minivan and subscquently noting that he ammived Juring
the attack in a white Tovowa.™ In this regard, the Appellant also submits that it was established by

ather witnesses that the commune did not have a red-coloured van.”

38. A review of the transcripts reveals that Witness AW madce refercnce 10 a red mintvan at the
beginning of his EEHHIHDT.I}"QE and, when specifically goestioned by the Prosccution abowt the
vehicle, identified it a5 a white Toyota.” In recounting Witness AW's testimony in the Trial
Judgement, the Trial Chamber mefomred only (o the Appellant arniving in a “red mimvan” and did run
explicitly address this contradiction '™ The Appeals Chamber recalls that, while a Trial Chamber is
reauired io consider inconsistencies and any explanations offered in respect of themn when weighing
the probalive valug of evidence,'™ il does not need to individually address them in the Trial

Judgement.'™ Furthermore, the presence of inconsistencies Within or amongst wilnesses’

based anly on those 1wo locations, Trial Judgement. paras. 63-79, 313, The parties also do not address these other
attacks in dewadl, and the Appeals Chamber rthorefore sces nin need to address digm,
" Tral Judgement, paras. 46-30, 67,
94”0[1(,4.‘. of Appeal, . 3, paras. 8-10, 153; pp. 10-11, paras. 15-21; Appellar’s Brief, paras. 89-106, 1[1-116.

Nuncc of Appeal. p. 3, paras. 8,9, pp. 10-11, parag. 15-17, 19; Appeliang' s Beied, paras. 8%-102, 111-114

Appel]ant £ Boel, paras, 50, 91, 46, 97, 1i1-1 14, At paragraph 11 of the Appellan®s Brief, the Appclhn[ refers o
alleged contradictions between fhe evideoce given by Wilness AW and Wilness W relaiing (o the “meons™ the
Appellant used e arrive al Nyaroiova Hill The Appellant wwever goes on (o illusirate this with an alleged imernal
inconsistency in Wilness AW s wsthimony . Appellant™s Boef, paras. 112, 113,
¥ Notice of Appeal. p. 10, para. 16, The Appeals Chamber potes that this argument was oot mepfioned in the
hppd]ﬂnl: s Brief and that the Appellamt does non provide citation lo evidence un the record.
T, [4 April 20604 p, 5.
w'l" MoAapil 24 p T

™ Trial Judpement, prra. 349,
1ot H:;,-i.regeia Appes] Twilgement, para, 90

" Mivitegeka Appeal Judgement, para, 124, See olin Murema Appeal Judgemenl, para. 20.

pa|
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testitnonies does not per se reguire a reasonable Tral Chamber to reject the evidence as being
vnreasonable. '™ The Appeals Chamber notes that Witness AW's testimony was consistent as (@ the
owner and occupants of the vehicle."™ The Appeals Chamber is (herefore not convinved that no
reasonable trier of fact could have relied on his lestimony, notwithstanding the discrepancy

conceming the colour of the vehicle,

59.  The Appellant also submits that the Trial Chamber erred in fact in relying on Witness AW's
testimony given his account that from Nyamtove Hill he could see vehicles parked close 10 the
Appellant's house in Gishyita town.'™ The Appellant submits that this would have been impossible
in light of the witness's testimony that it would ake approximately thirty minutes to walk from one
location Lo the other, which the Appellant surmised comesponded to a distance of aboot two-and-a-

half kitomerces.'™

60. A review of the relevant ranscript shows that the witness found it diffteult 10 estimate the
disiance hetween (ishyita town and Nyarutovu Hill, given the “roundabouy pathways that lead from
one place to the other.™™ Yet, the witngss considered that “the distance was not very harge™ and
could be covered in a thirly minute wilk. 'Y In this context, the witness was also asked Lo explain

s

the location of a place called Kiziba in relation to Nyarutove Hill und Gishyita rown. " The witness

Y He also stated that the distance between

stated that Kiziba was located between the two places.
Kiznba and Nyarotova Hill measured between thirly and fifiy metres and that, in relation o
Nyaruteve Hill, Kiwiba was located in the valley betow.'! In challenging Witness AW’s testimony
on this point, the Appcllant advances his own view of the situation based on speculation and
selective references to the witness's testimony, which fail te aceount for the wilness’s elevated
Incation on a hill. Therefore, the Appeals Chamber is not convinced lhal the Appellunt has
demonstrated that no veasonable ther of facl coukd have relied on this aspect of Wilness AW's

testmony.

oy Mivitegeka Appeal Judgement, para, 95, guoling Kuprediicd eral. Appeal fadgemcns, para. 31,

Y7 14 April 2004 pp. 5, 7. 41

'S pppeltant's Briet, paras, 92, %6, 97,

¥ Matice of Appeal, p. 10, para. 15; Appellant’s Bricl, parz. 52, In the Notice of Appeal, the Appecllant also submits
that the Lills ¥irunga, Rurebero, and Giovo were located between the Appellant’s house and Myannowvu Hill and,
therclore, obstrucled the view Irom one localion W \be ather. See Notice of Appeal, p. I, para, 15, This argument has
not been preserted or developad in the Appellant's Bricl and, therefore, will nol be addressed,

YT, 14 Aprl 2004 p. &,

T, 14 April 2004 p. &,

MM T 14 April 2004 p. 6.

'"'T, 14 April 2004 p. 6.

YT 14 Apri] 2004 pp. 41, 42 The witness explained (hat from Kiziba, the aackers had 1o climb up the hill to pursue
ke refupecs, T, t4 April 2004 pp. 41, 42.
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61.  The Appellant funher submits that the Trial Chamber erred in fact in relving on Wiiness
AW's testimony because the witness's account of when the attack unfolded 1s notl consistent with

"% The Appellam submits that

his testimony on the timeframe when he was on Nyarutovw Hill,
Witness AW testified that the atack started at 11 a.un., although he attested to armiving at Nyarovo
Hill at 1 pan., and, consequently, could not have witnessed the attack 1 In additon, the Appeliant
argucs that, if the witness arrived after the attack had begun, then this is inconsistent with hds

evidence that he and 1he relugees Ieft the hili when the attackers arrived.'t

62.  The record reveals that the witness did nou state that he personaily witnessed the beginning
of the attack, but merely testitied that the attack started at 11 a.4n. and was already under way when
he amived at 1 p.m.""" Moreover, although the witness stated that he lelt Nyarutovu Hill when the
atlackers arrived,"'" it is evident from his examination that he was not referring 1o leaving the hill al
the exact moment when the attackers amved, Rather, when viewed in context, the exchange relied
on by the Appellant for this point is simply a broad statement of what the refugecs did as a resuit of
the attack. During ceoss-examination, the witness further staed: "l tried 1o fice. Everybudy was just
runging away [...] if I wanted o die, I would have stayed there, but I didn't want to and I ran
away™. ' The Appeals Chamber doss not consider the fact that the witness [cd at some point after
the Appellamt’s arrival as the attack vofolded as conteadicting evidence of what he saw before he
teft the hill. Tn parlicular, the witness's lestimony reflects that he observed the Appellant and other
assailants arrive and saw the killing of several Tutsis.!'* Therefore, the Appeals Chamber is not
convineed that the Appellant has shown that the Trial Chamber crred in its assessment of (his

evidence,

63.  The Appellant submits that the Trial Chamber erred in fact in relying on Witness AW's
testimony because the witness was not cerfain whether he met Kabanda or 7 Apni 1994 a1
Kabanda's shop or home " The transciipts reflect that the witness was cross-examined by the

Defence and questioned by the Trial Chamber on this particular peint and that he explained that,

the Appcllant's Bricl, parzs, ¥3-97.

" Appellant’s lrief, para, 93

P Appellants Brief, para. 94.

HE T, 14 April 2004 p. 6 (“Q. Now, let's talk aboul vour going to scek refupe on Nyarutove hill oo the $th of April.
What time, do vou recall, sit, thal you went o that place? A, 14 iz from 11 ape 1bat an attack was laonched on
Nyamteyvy, and this atfack lasted until 4 pon, Q. Moo What time did yoo ged there? A, As concerns the e at which |
reached 1haet locality, it was al sbout 1 pan., and people were saying 1hat we neaded to fight back at the thieves. We
thoupln they wore thicves whoreas it had 10430 wilh assailaots that were afacking the hill."”),

YO 14 April 2004 1 8 {“And when they canie on the Nyarutovu hill, we continued 1o Bisesero, with the refugees. that
15"

YT 14 April 2004 p, 46.

T 14 Apcil 2004 pp. 5-8,

¥ Appellant’s Bricf, paras. 98, 99,
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aithough Kebanda tived in Bisesero, he owned houses in Gishyita “where he plicd his trade”. ™ The
Appeals Chamber 15 therefore nol convinced that the Appellant has detnonstrated the existence of
any contradiction in Witness AW's account on this point that would call into question the Trial

Chamber's overall credibility assessment.

64, The Appellant aiso submits that the Trial Chamber erred in fact in relying on Witness AW
becausc of an alleged discrepancy aboul when he met the Appellant.™' The Appellant points to a
prior witness statement of Witness AW noting that be knew the Appeliant “precisely afier
secondary school” and Witness AW's wnial wstimony indicating that he did not know if the
Appellant attended secondary school.' The Appellant funher notes tha the witness then denied
saying “sccondary school™ w the investigators even though he acknowiedged his pre-trial statement
by sigmiag it.'*

65, A meview of the record reveals that Winess AW lestified that he first knew the Appellant
“when [the Appellant] finished school, when [the Appellant] just started trading”.'*" The witness's
testimony reflects that he did not know when the Appellant (inished school or whether he went w
secondary school.'® The wuness did state, however, that the Appellant went to primary school and
began his trade when he was stl] yaung.'zé YWhen confronted with his pre-trial statement relerring
tor “secondary school”, the witness explained that at the time he refened only to “studies™, not to

[1] +1 1
secondary school”,

The witness further explained that he did no write the pre-inal siatement
because he cannot read or write,'* Given this explanation, the Appeals Chamber is not convinced
that no reasonable wicr of fact could have relied on Wimess AW's evidence despite this alleged

discrepancy.

6h. Finally, the Appellant submits that the Tral Chamber erred in law in relyving on Wiiness
AW’'s uncorroborated teslitnony as to the [irs! atlack at Nyarutovo Hill in light of the forcgoing
challenges to his credibility.”™ The Appellant’s characterizarion of Witness AW's testimony as
uncorroborated is unfounded. The Trial Chamber determined that the Appellant participated in the

first atlack on Myarutovu Hill on 8 or 9 Apnl 1994 based on the corroborated testimonies of

EUT 14 April 2004 pp. 32, 35, 36.
' Appellant’s Brief, paras, 100, 101
122 Appellant's Boef, para, 100

"* Appcllant’s Rrief, para. 101,
1104 Apri] 204 p. 23,

BT 14 April 2004 p. 23

T, 14 April 2004 p, 23,

U, 14 api] 2004 pp, 2325,

YE7 14 April 2004 p. 25,

™ Appellant’s Rrief, para. 102,
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Witnesses AW and W."™ Moreover, il is clear from the Trial Judgerent thal, with respect 1o the
details of the Appellant’s involveipent in the aitack, the Triadl Chamber relied primarily on the

evidence of Wimess W.'*!
67.  Accordingly, the Appellant’s arguments in respect of Witness AW are dismissed.

2. Alered Brrors in the Assessinent of Witness W

6%, The Appellant submils that the Trial Chamber erred in fact in finding thai there werc Iwo
attacks on Nyarutovu Hili on the basis of Witness W's testimony.'** The Appeliant contends ihat,
acconding 1o Witness W, there were no victims and the atlackers were either unarmed o fired into
the air.'™ The Appcllant further submits that Witness W’s evidence in the Kayishema and
Ruzindana case, where the witness testified o having taken refuge on Biseseru Hill on @ Apnl
15954, is imeconcilable with his testimony aboul gtiacks on Ngendombi Hill on {1 Apnl 1994 in the

14
present casc.

69.  The Appeals Chamber notes that the Appellant misrepresents Witness W's testimony in
respect of the victims dorng the two attacks. Contrary to the Appellant’s assertions, the witness
testified that fircarms were nsed, that some people were mjurcd, and that he saw the Appellant
shoot # young Tutsi man named Emmanuel during the attack on Nyarutove Hill."* Furthermore,
the witness [estified that the Appellant participated in several atlacks on |1 Aprl 1994. during

'*% In addition, (he Appeals Chamber is not persuaded

which many people were shot at and killed.
by the Appellant’'s arguments regarding the alleged discrepancics in Witness W's testimony. The
Appellant was confronted Wwith his testimony from Lhe Kayishema and Ruzindana gl and
explained (hat he moved among several hills during the period in question."”” The Appellant has nof
demonstrated that the Trial Chamber cired in accepling (his explanation. Therefore, the Appellant
has failed (o demonstrate hat no reasonabie rer of fact could have made the Trial Chaintber’s

findings regarding the attacks at Nvarutova Hill, based in part en Witness ¥'s testlimony.

P dal fudsemen, paras. 9, £5.

" Trial Judgement, para. 66,

"I Notice of Appeal. p. 3, pasas. 10, 13; pp. 10, 11, paras. 17, 18; Appeltant's Dracl. paras. 103, 105, 110, 115, 135.
" Appetlan's Briel, paras, 1049, 105, 1100 F15,

"4 Appellant’s Brict, pava. 136,

% Frial hdgement, paras. 43, 44,

¥ Tral Iudgement, paras. 46-50.

TTF. 27 April 2004 p. 35; T. 29 April 2064 p. 34
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3. Allered Inconsistency belween the Testimonies of Witnesses AW and W

70.  The Appellant submits that the Trial Chamber erred in fact in finding that [cstimonies of
Witncsses AW and W comoborated each other because they provided different dates for the initial
attack at Nyarutoswu Hill.'* The Trial Chamber addressed this issue as lollows:

The Chamber notes the discrepancy betwecn the iestimonias of Witnesses AW and Woin relation

i Ehe dale of the Birse attack at Nyarutovo, Whercas Wilness AW (estifeed that the aack oceuered

one & April 1994, Witness W recalled (he dine of the aitack as @ Aprd 1994 The Chamber is of the

view [hal in siloations wihete witiesses are called o lestity on evenls which ook place over a
decade agn, dhscrepancies relating 1o the ume and date of the event may ocour.

The Appellant bas not shown that no reasonable trier of fact could have accepled this cxplanaiion

for this discrepancy. Accordingly, the Appellant’s argument on this point is dismissed,

4. Alleged Error in Failing to Consider the Testimony of Witnesses DI and DT

71, The Appeliant submils that the Trial Chamber erred in law in failing to consider the

testimony of Defence Witnesses DI and DT with regard to the atlacks at Nyaruwovu Tit, "

72.  The Appeals Chamber observes that the Appcllant kas not explained how the evidence of
Witnesses DI and DT would have been relevant to the Trial Chamber's findings on the events at
Nyarvtovu Hill. Morcover, the Tral Chamber expressly considercd the ecvidence provided by

151 although it mnade no reference o the testitnony of

Witness DI in connection with other findings,
Witness DT, This, however, does not mean that the Trial Chamber did not consider the lestimony of
Witness DT, A Toal Chamber is not required to expressly reference and comment upon every picce

of evidence admitied onto the record M

73.  Inview of the foregoing discussion, the Appeals Chamber finds that the Appeliant has failed

1o demonsirate that no reasonable trier of fact could have made the Trial Chamber’s findings as 10

the events at Nyarutovu Hill, This sub-ground of appeal is rherefore disimissed.

B. Alleged Errors relating to the Attack on Ngendombi Hill

74, The Trial Chamber found that, between 9 and 11 Apni 1994, the Appellant participated in

the search for and attack on Tutsi civilians at Ngendombi Hill and that many Tutsis died or were

¥ Natiee of Appeal, p. 11, para. 17; Appellant’s Bricf, para. 104.

" 1ial Sudgement, para. 65,

M Notice of Appeal, p. 3, para. 14; p. 11, para. 21: Appellant’s Brief, para. 116.

M! Ser Trial Tudgement, paras. 20, 21, 26, 87, 100, 235, 236, 250, 251, 446, 444, 475,
Y2 Musema Appedl Judgement, para, 30,
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seriously injured in the attack.'*” The Trial Chamber determined that the Appellant was armed with
a gun and grenades and that he threw a grenade snto a crowd of Tuotsi refugees, causing many
deaths.™ In addition, the Trial Chamber found that, after the attack, the Appellant atacked Witness
BC with a machete, cutting ofl her left hand, and that he Killed her three children. '™ In finding that
the Appellant parucipated in the atlack on Ngendombi Hill, the Trial Chamber relied on the
evidence of Prosecotion Witnesses BC, BB, and W, which it considered “consistent and
comoborative™.'*® The Trial Chamber convicted the Appellant of genocide based in part on his role
in this attack.™™ On appeal, the Appellant submits that the Trial Chamber emed in law and in fact in
considering the notice provided by paragraph 5(dyiv) of the Indictment and in assessing the
evidence of Witnesses BC, BB, and W'

1. Alleged Defecl in the Foom of the Indictment

75 The Appellant sebmits that the Trial Chamber erred in law in failing to address at mial his
arguments pertaining to the vagueness of the Indictment.'* He argues that paragraph 5(d)iv) of the

Indictment lacks precision and [ails o plead any physical act of genocide. ™

6. The charges against an accused and the material facts suppoming those charges must be

pleaded with sufficient precision in the Indictment so as to provide naotice 1o the accused.”™ The

Appeals Chamber bas held that orninal acts that were physically committed by the accused
persunally must be set fonh in the indiciment specifically, including where feasible “the identity of
the victim, the ime and place of the events and the means by which the acts were commited. ™™
An indictment lacking this precision is defective; however, the defect may be cured if the
Prosccution provides the accused with timely, clear, and consistent information detailing the (aclual

hasis underpinning the charge, Fa3

*! Trial Judgement, paras, 76, 78, 79,

Y4 Trigl Judgement, pasa. T

" ['rial Judgerment, para. 77.

2 vyl Judgement, parus. §9, 74, 76,

"1 ria) Judgemen, paras. 513, 519,

M * Notice of Appeal, pp. 11, 12, paras. 21-25: Appeliant’s Bricf, paras. 106-109, 117.147,

* Notice of Appeal, p. 12, para. 23; Appellant’s Bricd, paras. 127-133, In addition, Lhe Appeitant submits thai the Trial
Chamber cred in law in making findings on the abtlack al Ngendembi Hill, a5 alleged in parapraph S{d){iv) ol the
Indictment, because in the concluding paragraph of its findings on this aitack it referred (o parsgraph 3{dyfii) of the
Tndictment, which rolatas wo Myarutows Hill, See Notice of Appeal, p. 12, para. 25, Appeltant’s Belef, paras, 141, 146,
147 A review of the Trial Judgement reveals that this is simply a typographical error and occasions no miscarmiaye of
ustice.

4”’ Appeilant’s Heief, paras. 127-133.

™ Gaeumbitsi Appeal Judgement, para. 49, See also Mdindabahizf Appeal Judgement, para. 16,

U1 Gocumbitsf Appeal Judgement, para. 490 Neakirurimoana Appeal Judgement, para. 32, quoting Kupredhic ef o,
,-'\rpll:al Judgemenl, para, BS. See alro Nedindalrchizi Appeal Judgement, para. 16

¥ Gaewmbitsi sppeal Judgement, puea. 49. See ulse Mugerura ef al. Appeal Judgement, paras. 28, 65,

Pyl
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7. Parapgraph 3(dxiv} of the Indictnent reads: “In April 1994 Mikaeli Muhimana, along with
Clement Kayishema, Obed Ruzindana and Faterahamwe participated in [thel scarch for and attacks
on Tutst civilians taking refuge in Mutiti and Ngendombi hills in Biscsero.™ In connection with this
paragraph, the Trial Chamber found that in April 19594, the Appellant partici pated in the “search for
and attack™ on Tutsi civilians at Ngendombi i1ill."** The Trial Chamber found, more specifically,
that the Appellant threw a grenade into a crowd of Tutsi refugees, causing many deaths.™ The
Trial Chamber funiher found that the Appellant killed Wiiness BC's three children and cut her on
het hands, shoulder and head with a machete, cutting off her lefi hand."™ The Appeals Chamber
notes (hat, in ils legal lindings on genocide, the Trial Chamber only highlighted 1he wounding of
Emmanue!l with respect to the atiacks on Nyarutava Hill and Neendombi HiL'Y However, il
appears that the Tnal Chamber also convicted the Appellant of the grenade attack and crimes
commitied against Whiness BC and her children since it made specific facival findings as (o thesc
events,'® referted to Wilness BC's anticipated evidence as alleging the Appellant’s actus rews of
genocide, ™ and cross-referenced in the legal findings the eniire section encompassing these factual

findings.'*

78. The Toal Chamber considered that the allegation in Paragraph 3(dX¥iv) of the Indietment
that the Appellant “panticipated o [the] search for and attacks on Futst civiliany™ provided adeguate
notice of his tole in the crime.'®! The appeals Chamber disagrees. In the Neakirutimana Appeal
Judgement, the Appeals Chamber determined that the phrase “participated in an attack on [L..]
Mugonero Complex” did not provide sutficient notice that the accused was being charged with the

1."* The Appeals Chamber reached a similar conclusion in the

murder of a specific individua
Gocumbitsi Appeal Judgement, where the indiciment alleged that the accused “killed persons by his
cwn hands™ but flailed to mention with respect to a massacre at a church a specific killing or the

"I The Appeals Chamber considers that the

acvused’s personal participation in the killings there.
Indictment in this case does not contain any greater specificity than the cited portions of the
indictments in the Makirurimana and Gacumbitsi cases. The Appellant could nol have known, on
the basis of the Indictment slone, (hat he was being charged as part of this attack with personally

killing Tulsis with a grenade, seriously wounding Witness BC, and killing her chiidren.

'™ Trial Judgement, para. TH.

" Trial Judpement. para, 76.

0 Trial Judgement, para, 77.

""" Trial udgement, para. 5i3,

" Trial Judgemenl, paras. 76, 77.

¥ Yrial Judgement, para. 73,

" Trial Judgement, para, 513 Fo. 472, citing o Chapier T, Section E.
"™ {rial Judgement, parz. 73.

"2 Miakirndimarned Appea] Judgemenl, paras. 30, 31

"% CGacumbiest Appeal Judgement, para. 54
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79, While in cortain ciccumstances, “the sheer scale of the alleged critmes makes it impracticable
to tequire a high degree of specifcity in such atters as the identity of the victims and the dates for
the commission of the critmes”,’® this is not the case with respect to these events, The Prosecution
should have expressly pleaded the grenade autack, the wounding of Witngss BC, as well as the
killing of her threc children, panicelarly since it had this information in its possession before the

amended Indiciment was filed.” The Indictment was s defective in this respect.

810, A review of the toal record, including he evidence of Witnesses BB and BC, reveals thal
the Appellant did not object o the form of this paragraph of the Indictment before inal or to the
evidence led pursuant 1o 1L during the relevant tesumoenies. However, the Trial Chamber considered
the Appellant’s allegations of vapueness raised in the Defence Closing Brefl in the Tnal
Judgement.'™ The Appeals Chamber has held that, where a Trial Chamber has trcated a challenge
to an indictment as being adequately ratsed, the Appeals Chamber should not invoke the waiver
doctrine.'™ The Appeals Chamber will therefore treal the Appellant’s objection as having becn
timely ruised. it therefore falls (0 the Pnsecution @ prove that the Appellant's defence was not

materially impaired by thix defec. '™

81, The Prosecution points 1o the Trial Chamber’s finding that paragraph 5{d{iv) of the
Indictnient was sofficiently specifie, {1s observation that paragraphs 54 to 538 of the Pre-Trial Boet
provided additional details, and the sommary of Witness BC's amicipated cvidence in an anncx to
the Pre-Tral Boef in an effort to show that the defect in the Indictment was cured hy subsequent
timely, clear, and consistent information provided to the Appellant.’® Paragraphs 54 10 58 of the
Pre-Tnal Brief speak only generally about Tutsi refugecs flecing to the Bisesero region and provide
ne greater specificity as to the natuere of the Appellant’s conduct during the attack on Npendombi
Hill. However, a review of the summary of Winess BC's anticipated testimony in an annex to Lhe

Pre-Tral Briet contains an allegation that the Appellant cut off the witness's arm with a machete

¥ Gacumbitsi Appeal Jodgement, para. 50, citing Rupredcic of of Appeal Judpemen, para. §9 (internal citations

aritedy.
** Indecd, the Prosecution had the information in its possession since Winess BC provided her statement on 29
MNovernber 1999,
"™ Trial Judgement, para. 73,
""" Gacumbitsi Appeal Judgemeny, para. $4. See adso Ntakiratimana Appeal Judgement, para, 23.
LT -
Cracumbiest Appeal Judgemeni, para. 51,
Respondent' s Briel, paras. 148, 149, refcrring o Trial Judgemenr, para. 73,

L5
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and killed ber three children on Ngendombdi Hill."™ I further mentions that the Appellant shot at

refugees and threw grenades resuliing in death,'™

A2 In the Gucumbitst Appeal Judgeinent, the Appeais Chamber held that a sumimary of an
anticipated (estimony in an annex (0 the Prosecution’s pre-trial briel could, in cedtain eircumstances,
cure a defect in an indicunent.'™ The circumstance at hand is similar to thae in the Gacrmbitsi case
in that (he summary of the anticipated testimony provides greater detail that is consistent with &
eeneral allegation pleaded in the Indictment.!™ The Pre-Trial Brief therefore provided the Appeilant
with timnely, clear, and consistent infonmation sufficient to put him on notice that he was being
charged with committing genocide by throwing a grenade ar Tutsis, wounding Witness BC, and
killing her three children at Ngendombi Hill. Therefore, the Appetlant has (ailed to demonstrate that
the Tnal Chamber erred in its consideration of his arguments perlaining o the vagueness of

paragraph 5(d)(iv} of the Indictment.

2. Alleged Errors in the Assessment of Witness BC

33. The Appellant submis that the Toal Chamber erred in law and in fact ip relying on Witness
BC in light of inconsistencies in her account as to the death of ker children and as 10 when she was
at Neendombi 13410, The Appellant contends tha Witness BC mitially testified that her children

were Killed by 2 prenade and later testified that they were dismembered with a machete, 175

84 The Tral Chamber addressed the Appellant™s arpunents regarding Witness BC™s cvidence
and concluded that there was no “contradiction in the wiless' [sie] account of how her children
were killed” '™ On appeal, the Appellant has failed 1o show that no teasonable et of fact could
have made this finding. A revicw of the transcrpts reveals that Witness 8C did not suggest that her

children were killed by a grenade. Rather, the wilness stated that people died ag a result of a

"™ Pre.Triat Bricf, Annex A. p. B The summary further connacis this allegation with paragraph $(d} of ihe Indiciment,

The Appeals Chamber further notes that the Prosecution in the body of s Pre-Toal Brief specifically siates that

Wilness BL wilt lesnfy 1o the Appetlant’ s aces of genocide in the various altacks in (he Bisesero arca. Pre-Toal linel
ara. M,

I Pre-Trial Prief, Annex A, p, 4,

™ Gacumbitd Appeal Judgemenl, paras. 57, S8, Sve afse Mickeratimane Appeal Judgemenl, para. 4R (holding that a

wilness statement, when taken 1ogeiher with “unambiguons infommation” contuned inoa pre-rzal briel and iy annexes

may be sufficien o core a detieel in an indicimenty. This gpproach is consistent with JCTY junsprudence. Yer Nafesfic

oned Marligalt” Appeal Judgemem, parg, 45

Y Cacnmbitsi Appeal ludgement, para. 55

"™ Nover of Appeal. p. 3. paras. 11, 15, p. 14, paras, 21, 22; Appeliant’s Brief, paras. 107-109, 120-124, 1264, 137, 138,
1<},

'S Apoeltant's Brief, paras. 107-10%.

"8 Trial Judgcment, para. 75.
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grenade that the Appellant bad placed on the road and that only subsequently. when “[ijhose who
did not dic were finishad off™, the Appeliant killed her children with a machele.”’

%3, The Appellant also asseres thal Wilness BC was not in a position 1o lestify about Lthe gvents
at Ngendombi Hill on 10 April 1994 because on 9 Apnl 1994 she had already laken refuge in
Kigarama in the Biseserv area, and no evidence was adduced 10 show that she subsequently

returned to Ngendombi Hill.'™

86.  The Appeals Chamber has reviewed the relevant transcripts which show that, according to

Witness BC's lestimony, she fled on Saturday, 9 Apnl 1994, from Kigarama to the Bisesero

region'™ She specified that the first hill she teached was Kigarama Hill in the Bisesero region,

The witness then testified that Kigarama was ot safe and that they “spent the day running”."' She

testified that on Sunday she witnessed the Appellant launch an atlack al Ngendombi Hill in the

! The wilness testified thas, after the attack, during which she was wounded by the

I EX

Bisesero region.

Appecllant, her husband tock her to Kigarama, a “secteur or colline of Bisescra, where she

4 The Appeltant’s submissions therelore fail 1o demonstrate that no

stayed lor a few months.
reasonable toer of fact could have accepted Witness BO's testimony coticerning the attuck on

Ngendombi Hill.

3. Alleped Errors in the Assessment of Witness BB

§7.  The Appellant submits that the Trial Chamber erred in Jaw by failing to address the
contradictions within Witness BB's testimony, which the Appellant had raiscd at wmal.'™ To
substantiate this submission, the Appellant merely refers to a paragraph of the Defence Closing

Bdef, without providing funher reasoning and without attempting to demonstrate any error on the

pant of the Trial Chamber. Consequently, the Appeals Chamber will not consider thas submission

Turther.

T, 20 April 2004 pp. 40, 41,

7 mppellant's Brief, paras. 120-124, 126, 137, 138,
™ T. 20 April 2004 p. 57.

YO 200 Apei! 2004 pp. 40, 57.

LT 20 Apdl 2004 p. 40,

T 20 April 2004 pp. 40-42, 87,

T 20 April 2004 1. 43,

MU 260 April 2004 pp. 42-44,

" appellant's Brief, para, 140.

il
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4, Alleged Eours in Finding that Witnesses BB, BC, and W Corroborale Each Other

88 The appellant submits that the Trial Chamber erred in fact in Iinding that the estimoenies of
Wilnesses BB, BC, and W were coherent and corrohorative.'™ The Anpellant points o
discrepancies 10 the accounts of these three wilnesses conceming when the attack on Ngendombi
Hill unfolded, as weil as in the evidepce of Wimesses BB and BC with respect to (he rianner in

which the Appellant killed mis victims, The Appeals Chamber addresses each argument in turn.

89.  The Appellant notes that Wilness BR testified that the attack occurred on © Apdl 1994,
whiie Witness BC stated that the attack took place on 10 April 19%4, and Witness W testified that it

occurned on 11 April 1994 and was “categorical that on Sunday 10 April there was no attack.™ ™’

93.  The Appeals Chamber considers that the alleged inconsistencics relating to the dates of the
attack do not affect the Trial Chamber's finding that “the atack on Tutsi refugees on Ngendombi
Hill tock place between 9 and 11 April 19947."" As the Trial Chamber stated in reconciling the
diserepancy in the dates between the restimomes of Witnesses AW and W tn connection with the
date of the frst attack on Nvanatove Hill: *The Chamber is of the view that in sitations wher
wilnesses are called to testify on events which took place over a decade ago, discrepancies reiating
1o the time and date of the event may occur.™* It uppears that the Trial Chamber applicd this same
approach to reconciling the differsnt dates provided by Withesses BB, BC, and W for the attack on
WNeendombi Hill and that it focused instead on the consistency of the testimonics regarding specitic
features of the attack, " This is illustrated by the fullowing passage:

Based on the wstimonics of Wilncsses BR, BC, end W, the Chamber finds that the attack on Titst

refugess on Ngendombi Hill ook place between @ and 11 April 1994, and that the Accused, with

wo comerane policemen, including Bnzindana, ied a group of Irerafomwe in camving ow the

aliack. Hased an the vonsistent and cormobarztive testimonics of all three witnesses, the Chamber

Tinds that the Accused was armed with 2 pun and grenade and that e trew o prenade into a crimwd
of Tursi refugees, causing many deaths, '

" Notice of Appeal, p. 3, para. [7; pp. !, 12, pasas. 21, 22, 24; Appellant’s Boef, paras. 106, 117-120, 126, 135, 137-
139, [40.

7 mppellant’s Briel, paras. 125, 135177,

5 I rigl Twigement, para. 76,

" Vrial Judgement, paza, 63,

"' The Appeals Chamber notes that the Trial Chamber referred to the specific date of 11 April 1994 in connection wrth
Wilncss W and the specific dale of 10 April 1994 in connection with Witness BC. See Trial Judgement, paras. 67, 77
Given the Trial Chambet's statements in paragraphs & and 76 of the Tral Judgement reconciling discrepancies i
dates, the Appeals Cnamber congiders that these speeilic references simply reflect the estimates given by the witnesses
and are noi in and of Ihemselves faciwal findings. Indeed, the Appeals Chamber notes thar Witness BC, when
questioned on 3 specific date, roted: "We were like mad people, tragmetised peopte. Don'l ask me aboul e Hme. T
cannot well vou,” See T 20 April 2004 p, 57. Indecd., in light of such testimony, it would Lave been unreasenabde w rely
on Witress BC aleae inorder 1o assign any particulbar dale o the atiack.

"L Triat Iwdgement, para. Té.
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9l.  Beyond disputing the discrepancy in dates, the Appeliant makes no submissions challenging
the other common features of the acconnts of these three wilnesses, such oy the identity of the
assuilants accompanying him and the grenade atrack. In addition, the Appellant has also not
advanced any arpament sugeesting that the passage of time in the circumstanees of this case s nol o
reasonable explanation Tor justiiying the discrepancy as o the precise date of the atack. Theretore,
the Appeals Chamber is not convinced that the Trial Chamber emed in considening and in relying on
the evidence of Witnesses BB, BC, and W as “consistent and corroborative™ in making its findings

concerning the events at Ngendombi Hill,

92.  The Appeliant additionally points 1o an alleged inconsistency between the testimonies of
Withesses BC and BB concerning how Witness BC's children were killed."* The Appellant
submits that Witness BC testificd that her children were dismembered, while Witness BB 1estified
that the Appellant “didn’t have a machete™ and that, as a leader, he wouold “not soak himself in
bIDﬂd".m’

93, Contrary to the Appellant’s submission, there appears to be no coatadiction between the
tcstimany of Witiess BC and Witmess BB on this matter. The fact thal Witness BB saw the
Appellant armed with a gun and grepades around 1 p.rn.md' does not preclude a reasonable Trial
Chamber from relying on Witaess BC's (estimony that she saw the Appellant close to sundown,

killing her childeen with 2 macheie.’™ This sub-ground of appeal is therefore dismisscd.

C. Alleged Ervors relating to ihe Rape of Es

04.  The Trial Chamber found that, “during the {irst week after the eroption of hostilities”, the
Appellant raped Esperance Mukagasana in his home on several occasions. ™ In making this finding,
the Trial Chamber relied solely on the eyewitness testimony of Prosecution Witness AQ, who lived
in the Appellant’'s bouse at that time."”” The Trial Chamber convicted the Appellant of rape as a
crime against humanity in part hased on this event.'™ The Appellant submits thai the Trial Chamber

erred in law and in fact in its assessment of Witness AQ.'™ His submission is supporied by

B appellants Briet, para, 139,

M appellant’s Briet, para, 139, guoting T. 16 Apnil 2004 p. 6.

"™ Trigh Judgement, para. $7.

"™ Trial Judgement, paras. 58, 77,

Y Tria) Judgement, paras. 103, 10§, 552.

" Trial Judgement, paras. 90-%4, 102- 108,

¥ Trial Jud geement, paras. 552, 563

" Motice of Appeal. pp. 3. 4, paras, 19-21; Appedlants Brief, paras. 151-174, In addition, the Appellant submirs a
related error of law and facl arguing that the Toal Chamber relied on, but Failed 1o asscss the crodibility of Defence
Wonesses TQLI, T4, 120, NTL 138, IR, and 1, Novice of Appeal, p_ L2, para. 26, Appellan’s Bricl, paras. 148-15).
ta this respect, the Appellant paints to paragraphs 22 to 87 of the Trial Judgenent relating 4o anolber cvent involving
Winess AQ. Ln respect io that other event, the Toal Chamber was not satisfied that the Frosecinion had proved the

33
Casc No. ICTR-93-1B-A 21 May 201

=y




788/H

arguments related to a credibility finding on Wiltness AG in relation to another event, allegations of
hias, internal incensistencies in the witness's account, lack of correboration, and implausibility in

light of Defence evidence. ™ The Appeals Chamber addresses each arpament in torn.

1. _Allpoed Failure (0 Considers a Previous Findine on Witness AQ

93.  The Appcllamt submils that the Trial Chamber crmred in law and in fact in Gnding Witness
A credible, cven though it dismissed her uncorroborated testimony on the unlawfulness of a

mecting held in Gishyita in mid-Apdl 1994 2

96,  The Appeals Chamber observes that, contrary to the Appellant’s contention, the Trial
Charnber did not decline to rely upon the evidence given by Witness AQ conceming a meeting heid
tn Gishyita nor did it question the reliability of her tesimeny. The Trnal Chatnber considered her
evidence that “'some time belore the meeting, she overheard the Accused state that he was poing 10
hold a meeting 1o encourage the Hury population to g0 out and kill Tursi*™™ and found that this
evidence was tnsufficient “to prove the allepations contained in Paragraph 6 {a) of the Indictment
and Paragraph 40 of the Pre-Toal Brief that (the Accused and others held meetings at which plans to
attack Tutsi civilians were male." Accordingly, the Appellanl’s argument on this point is

dixmissed.

2. Alleged Eailure to Conzsider Bias

97.  The Appellant also argucs that the Trial Chamber erred in law and in fact becavse it failed to
(ake into aceount his allegation of bias in respect of Witness AQ.”™ The Appeals Chamber observes
that the Trial Chamnber noted that it was “mindlul of the Defence submission regarding the partiality
of Winess AQ and [that i1] has, accordingly, considercd her testimony with the necessary
caution.** Notwithstanding, the Trial Chamber found Witness AQ's “recollection of the events
credible and reliable "™ The Appcals Chamber considers that the Appellant has failed 10
demonstrate an error in the Tdal Chamber's approach or that no reasonable wer of fact could have

reached the Trial Chamber's conclusion,

allegations charged in paragraph 6{a) of the Indictment relatcd to this cvent, namely that “te Accused and athers held
mmeetings at which plans to auack T civilians were made”, See Toal Judgement, para. 88, The Appellant’s cursory
submissions on this point Lail o relate this clrallengs in any detail 1o ather relevant aspests of this ground of appeal. The
Appeals Chamber therelore will nat consider this argument furither.

=7 Notice of Appeal, pp. 3, 4, paras. 19-21; Appellants Brief, paras. 151-174.

2“: Appellant’s Rriof, paras. 152-156.

% Trial Judgemen, para. 81.

™ Toal Judgenent, para. 48,

M Appellant’s Rrief, paras, 158, 169-174.

** Trial Judgement, para. 106,

¥ Trial Judgerment, para. 106.
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‘s Testimony and Statements

neconsisiencies in Witness A

3. Alleged Failure to Consider

ug. The Appelant submits that the Trial Chamber crred in law and i fact i failing (o consider
a number of inconsisiencics in the wimess's @stimony and prior stateraents.”™ The Appellant
highlights @ number of inconsistencies mentioned m the Defence Closing Brief and his closing

argumcats, which the Trial Chamber allcgedly {ailed to address, ™

99,  The Appeals Chamber observes that a review of the transcrpts shows that the withess was
croms-gXamined on the alleged contradictions and that her explanations are on recotd. The Appellam
again highlighted the alleged contradictions in his Defence Closing Bricl. The Appeals Chamber
reiterates that a Trial Chamber does not need o individually address alleged inconsistencies and
conlmadictions and docs not need to scl out in dewail why it accepied or rejecled a patticular

tes ﬁmnny,m The Trial Chamber, when considering Witness AQ’s credibility, stated the following:

The Chamber finds the wstimony ol Prosecution Witness AQ credible. The Climber 15 satisficd
that Wirtness A, whao lived in the Accused’s house, was an eyowilness 1o 1he rape of Bsperance.
She gave a delailed deseripiion of how the Accused rapd Esplrance several umes. The Witness
tid not exaggerale her evidence and was prepared to admit that she was not able to see the alleged
rupe of Fsperance by Gisambo, because he closed the door?'®

100,  In addition, the Trial Chawber cxplicitly stated that it considered Witness AQ's evidence
with camion.”"' The Appeals Chamber is not satisficd that the Appellant has demonstrated that the
Trial Chamber ecred in if5 assessment of any alleged inconsistency it Witness AQ's evidence,

4. Allered Erroc relating o Lack of Correboration

101, The Appellamt submns that the Trial Chamber emed i law in relying on the cvidence of
Witness AQ conceming the rape of Esperance Mukagasana, given that her evidence was
uncorroborated. 2 The Appeals Chamber recalls that @ Tral Chamber has the discretion to rely on
uncormoborated, bul atherwise credible, wimess testimony 2" The Appellant has not demonstrated

an errur by the Tnal Chamber in this regan],

5. Alleged Error relating 10 Inconsistencies with other Evidence

102,  The Appellant submits that the Trial Chamnber ermed in fact when it convicted him of the
rape of Bgpetance Mukagasana when the evidence given by Defence Witnesses DQ, TQ1, NT1,

y

Appellam’s Brief, paras. 157-160,
™% Appeliagnt's Brief, paras. 157-159,
¥ Wiviegeka Appea) Judgemen, para. 124. See afso Musems Appeal Judgement, para, 20.
Trial Iudpement, para. 102,
2 Triad Judgement, para, 104,

1 Appeilant’s Bricf, para. 151,

P11
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IR, DI, D), and Prosecution Wintess BIF shows that it would have been “not only impossible, but

also implausible™ that he commiited this act,*

i03. A review of the Tnal Judgement demonsirates that the Trial Chamber evalvated the
cvidence given by Delence wilnesses on this ;;mdnt.“5 Additionally, the Trial Chamber explained
why 1t did not to rely on the cvidence the Appeliant now highiights:

The Chamber has already found that, even though some Defence wilnesses lestified that they ded

not hear of rapes commilied by the Accuscd in bis house on 7 April 1994, it does oot follew tha

such capes did pot oveur. The Chamber rejects the wetimony of Defepee witnesses who testified

that i1 was not possible for e Accused 1o rape women in bis own hodse, where bis wife lived,
These witnesses did not sdvance any convincing reascn for this assertion, ™"

The Appeals Chamber cannot find any etror in the Trial Chamber's finding. The Appellant merely
points the Appeals Chamber to evidence that had beco considered at rjal without, howewver,
demonstrating any errar. Additionully, the Appellant’s arguments regarding Witness BF are also
unpersuasive, His asscrtion that the witness “must have been well informed” but had never
witnessed the rape or death ol Esperance Mukagasana 1s not suppored by a direct reference to the
record and fails to demonstrate that no reasonable trier of fact condd have made the Trial Chamber's
findings. The Appeals Chamber recalls that when faced with competing versions of events, it is the
duty of the Trial Chamber which heard the witnesses to detennine which evidence it constders morte

H

probative.”'’ In the casc at band, the Appellant has not shown that the Trial Chamber crmed in

making this determination.
104, Accondingly, this sub-ground of appeal is dismissed.
D). Conclusign

i05. For the foregoing reasons, Wtns ground of appeal is dismissed in il entirely.

1 Cacumbitsi Appeal Tudgement, para, 72; Mivitegeka Appeal Tudeement, para. 92
M A ppeNanl's Bricf, paras, 161-16%.

U Trial Judpement, paras, ¢5- 107, 104,

M1 Trial Tudgement, para. 104,

W Gacumbitst Appeal Tudgement, para, 81; Ruragaads Appeal Judgement, para. 29.
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XI1. ALLEGED ERRORS RELATING TO 'THE EVENTS AT MUBUGA
CHURCH FROM 11 TO 15 APRIL 1994 {GROUND OF APPEAL 10}

106, The Trial Chamber found that, bctwecn 8 and 13 Apdl 1994, many Tutsis spught refuge at
Mubuga Chorch in Gishyita Comnune®™ and that, on 14 Aprl 1994, the Appellant was in the
church presbylery where “looters”™ took the refugees” food supplies.”” The T'rial Chamiber further
found that. on the moming of 15 Apdl 1994, the Appellant, along with olhers, launched an ateack
on the Tutsis at the church resulting in the deaths of hundreds of people”™ and concluded that the
Appellant threw a grenade into the church, Killing a Tutsi man named Kaihura.**' The Trial
Chamber convicled the Appeliant of genocide and murder 45 a crime against humanity hased, in
pari, on his participation in (his attack.” ¥ The Appellant raises three challenges with respect 1o these

findings relating lo the asscssment of Defence Witness DC, his alibi, and the burden of proof.*?

A, Alleged Error in the Assessment of Wilhess DC

107,  The Appellant submits that the Trial Chamber erred in fact in linding, based on the evidence
of Defence Witness DC, that he was at Mubuga Church on (2 and 13 April 1994 during the locling
of the fouoxd supp]i(::;.nd It this respect, the Appellant submits that Witness DC's lestimony roferred

to the looting taking place only on one day, 12 or 13 April 19947

[G8. A review of the Toal Judgement roveals that the Tdal Chamber did not find, as the
Appellant sugeests, that the Appellant was present at Muboga Church duning the looting of food
supplics an 12 and 13 Aprl 1994, Rather. the Trial Chamber found that the Appeliant was present
al Mubuga Church during the looting of food supplics on 14 April 1994, based pnimarily on the
gycwilngss testimony of Prosecution Witness AF 7° The Appellant’s refercnce o the passage in the
Trial Judgement that Wimess DC testified that the looting vecurred on 12 and 13 April 1994 merely
highlights a 1ypographical emor in the Trial Chamber’s deseription of Witness DCs tcslimﬂny.m
Elsewhere in the Trial Judgement, the Tral Chamber correctly referred to the date provided by
Witness DC as “12 or 13 April™ 1994°%* The Appellant makes no submissions on the possiblz

Trak ludgement, para, 127,
2 Trial Judgement, paras, 130-132.
2 Tral Judgement, paras, 164, 167,
! Trial Judgement, paras, |164-167.
22 Trial Judgement, paras, 513, 319, 570, 533
2 Notice of Appeal, pp. 13, 14, paras. 3235 Appellants Briel, paras, 175-185.
& duppc]iml s Wrief, para. 175
,-'q.ppc]lam % Brict, para. 176.
®“I'rial Judsemens, paras. 123, 130-132,
2%+ vial Redgement, para. 131 (“although [Winess 0] eestilied that the looting ovewrred on 12 and 13 Apeij 19547,
% Trial Iudgement, paras. 121, 160 femphasis added).

T
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impact that this error might have had on the Trial Chamber's assessment of Witness AF's evidence.
In acldition, he points to no deficiencies in the Trial Chamber's approach in reconciling the accounts
of Witness AlIY and Witness DC, or in its assessment of Witness ATz gvidence, The Appellant,
therefore, has failled 1w demonsirate that no reasemable trier of fact could have made the Triw
Chamber’s finding on his presence at Mubuga Church during the looting of the food supplies.
Moreover. the Appellant has not articulated how this error invalidated any parr of the Trial
Judpement. The Appeals Chamber observes that, although this event was charged in the Indictment,

the Trial Chamber did not rely on it 1o establish the Appellant’s responsibility for genocide '

B. Alleged Frror relating to Lthe Alibi

104, The Appellant submits thal the Trial Chamber crred in fact and in law in [inding that he
partcipated in the atlack on the Mubuga Church on 15 April 1994 2 He points to an alleged
factual error in the Trial Chamber’s assessment of his alibi and disputes that the evidence ol
Defence Witness TQ28, who saw him at the CCDEP building in Gishyita cen tre, > contradicts that

he remained constantty at home.** In this respect, the Appellant asserts that CCDET and his horne

“are basically in he same location [...] not even 70 metres apart. ™

110. The Appeals Chamber observes that the Appellant has fatled 10 substanuare his elaim abourt

the proximity of the CCDFP huilding to his home with any reference to the record. Putting this
aside, however, the Appeals Chamber notes that this was only one of several Factors which the Toal
Chamber considered in rejeciing the Appellant’s aiibi for this event. In particular, the Tnal
Chamber noted that the alibi cvidence presented by other Defence witnesses was internally
inconsisient and lacked credibility.™ Morcover, the Trial Chamber pointed 10 the evidence of
Wilness DC, who also placed the Appellant at the chorch, further undermining the Appeliant’s
claim that he remained continuously at home duning the period covered by the alibi ™ The
Appeilant does nol address these other reasons for rejecting his alibt and thus fras not demoenstrated

any crror in the Trial Chamber's findings with respect Lo it.

** Trial Judgement, paras. 487, 513,

‘1 Apneilaes Brief, paras. 177-145.

T The Trial Chamber did oot define “CCDRP.
S Appellant’s Rrief, para. 177.

3 appotianns Bricd. pana. 177

Tl Judgement, para, 160,

* Trial Judgemens, para, 160,
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C. Alleged Error relating to the Burden of Prool

111,  The Appellant argues that the Trial Chamber erred in law in its application of the burden of
proof. ** The Appellant suggests that the Trial Chamber required him o prove that he was not at
Bubuga Church rather than casl reasonable doubt on the Prosecution’s evidence.”” Moreover, the
Appellant argues that the Trial Chamber applicd a standard of proof below beyond reasonable doubt
in finding that he panicipated in the attacks on Mobuga Church.”® In this respect, the Appellant
points 1o the evidence of Defence Witnesses DZ and DAA, who were patrolling the chureh, and
who testified thal they did not see the Appellant during the atiack.”> The Appellant further alleyes
that the Trial Chamber made a related factua)l ermor in discrediting Witness DZ becanse he was not
at the chureh.®™" According to the Appellunt, Witness DZ was only a short distance away.

approximately the lengih of the counroom ™

112.  Tn support of his contention that the Trial Chamber emred in law by requiring him to prove
his ahsence from the church and that his participation in the attack was not proven beyond
rcasonable doubt, the Appellant points primarily to the following passage from the Toal Judgemem
pertaiming to Witnesses DZ and DAA: “While 1L 15 quite possible that these witnesses Would have
recogmzed the Accosed if they had scen him during the attack, it is also guite possible that they
would have missed seeing him.*"* The Appeals Chwnber is not persuaded that this Linguage
demonstrates that the Trial Chamber shifted the burden of proof onto the Appellani, or that in
making i fiodings, the Tral Chamber did not apply the beyond reasonable doubt standard in

asscssing the Prosecution’s evidence.,

113, In discussing its assessment of alibi evidence, the Trial Chamber specifically recalled that
“it is incumben! on the Prosecution to establish beyond reasonable doubt that, despile the alibi, the

"3 A review of the Trial judgenent reveals that, in Hinding that

facts aileged are nevertheless true,
the Appellanl panicipated in the attack on Mubnga Church and that he Kilied Kathera, the Trial
Chamber relied on the eyewitness accounts of Prosccution Witnesses AF and AV, which it found to
be credible.™ The Appellant does not address this evidence, which underlies the factual Gndings on
his role in the altack. Moreover, the Appeals Chamber finds no deviation from the principles refated

to the assessment of alibl cvidence in the Trnal Chamber's assessment of the testimonies of

1o Appctant’s Broef, parag, 173- 134,

7 Appeltant's Brief, paras. 178, 180, 183, 184,

' Appellants Brief, paras. 175, 180-184.

=¥ appellant’s Reief, para. 179.

40 a ppelant s Bricf, para, 185,

1 Appetlant’s Brief, para, 185,

* Appeflans Bricf, para, 181, quoting Trial Judgement, paea, 161,

3 Trial dgemen, paras. 13-15, quoting Nivitegeta Appeal Judgement, para. 60,

g
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Witnesses DZ and DAA. [n making the impugned statement, the Trial Chamber simply considered
the limited probative value that cvidence of this nature has in the context of a large scale assauit

involving hundreds of atrackers, ™

114, In addition, the Appeals Chamber finds no emar of factin the Trial Chamber's stateinent, in
asscssing Witness DZ’s evidence, that the witness “admitled that he was not stationed at the church
jtself, but rather on the mad close (o the church™ ™ In the Appellant’s view, the Trial Chamber
failed to appreciate how close Witness DZ's position was 1o the church.™ A review of the Trial
Judgement reveals, however, that the Toal Chamnber was inindful of the witness's proximily to the

events since it expressly noted that fie was “an the road clese 7 the chorch™. >

D. Cenclysion

115.  Accondingly, this ground of appeal is dismissed.

44

Trial fudgement, paras, 136 163,

“* In this respeet, the Trial Chamber was not satisfied that the Prosecution praved that the Appellant played a
leadership role. See Triat Judgemew, para. 1537 Moreover, Witnesses DZ and DAA referred (o a large number of
aliackers, See Trial fudpement, paras. 147, 151 (Witness DY spake of “viglt hundred Hutu men” and Witness DAA
referred to "abogt 2,000 pendarmes and abool 1500 chabians”)

M8 Trial Judgement, paca. 161,

BT Appellant's Briel, para. 185,

** Teial Judperment, para, 161,

i}
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XOL. ALLEGED ERRORS RELATING TO THE RAPE OF AGNES
MUKAGATARE AT MUBUGA CEMETERY ON 15 APRIL 1994 (GROUND
OF APPEAL 11}

116.  The Trial Chamber foond that, on 15 Apei] 1994 after the attack on Mubuga Church, the
Appellant and a group of interaghame brought six young Tutsi women to a cemelery near the
church where the Appeliant raped one of them, Agnes Mukagatare. ™ The Trial Chamber based its
findings on the eyewilness account of Prosecution Witness AV.%" The rape of Apnes Mukagatarc
forms part of the Appellant's conviction for rape as a crime against humanity. ™’

117.  The Appellant subinits that the Trial Chamber erred in fact®™? in finding that he raped Agnes
Mukagatare on the basis of Witness AV's testimony because her evidence was internally
inconsistent, lacked corroboration, and was inconsistent with the testimonies of gther Prosecution
and Defence witnesses, in parlicolar with respect o when the event occurred, ™ The Appellant
further contends that the Trial Chamber erred in fac! in rejecting his alibi for this pedod based on

the ovidence of Witness DC.

A. Alleged Errors in the Assessment of Witness AV

118.  The Appellant points to a number of alleged mconsistencies in the evidence of Witness AV,
which he <latims undermine her credibility and the possibility of her observing the rape. Witness
AY’s evidence reflects that, at the mc she saw the Appellant, she was walking froin the church o
the nearby dispensary to 1ind the bodies of her parents afier learning of their death from her
sister.”™ The Appellant contends that the ability of Witness AV and her sister 1o walk to and from
Mubuga Church is contradicled by her evidence and thut of Witness AF about the attack and the

256 A

fact that Interahamwe were posted around the perimeter of the cherch at the time, review of

the Tral Judgernent and the record, however, reveals that these submissions lack merit. The Trial

Chaipber noted that Witness AV jeurned of the death of her parents and left the church on 15 April

“*Trial Judgement. paras. 198, 204,
* T rial Judgement. paras. 170, 171, 191, 198, 199,
' Trial Judgement, para. 552
! The Appeilant initially describes the errors reiated to the assessment of Wilness AV's evidence in the Appellant’s
Brief as an error of law. Ser Appcllant’s Brict, para. 186, Howswer, it is clear from the nature of his submissions and
the language used elsewherc in this ground of appedl and the Natice of Appcal that he is alleging crrors of fagt. Ser.
e'if"" Appeilant’s Bricf, paras, 192, 195, 198-200; Notice of Appeal, p. 14, paras. 36-38.
Z“ Nutice of Appeal, p. 14, paras. 36-38; Appellant’s Hoel, paras, 186-159.
Motice of Appeal. p, 15, para. 40 Appellant's Brief, paras, 200-203,
**Irial Judgement, paras. 170, 171.
¢ appellant's Briel, paras. VET-189, 191,
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1994 afier “the attack had subsided”. ™ However, the Appellant cites testimony from Wilness AF
referming (o fnterahamwe surrounding the church preventing people from leaving on (4 Apni] 1994,

et

a day before the witness walked towand the dispensary. ™™ The Appellant also ¢laims that Withess

AV pave contradiciory testimony aboat whether hee sister was at the church or the nearby

&% The Appeals Chamber, however, is not convinced

dispensary where their parepts were kille
that the portion of Wilness AV's evidence referred o by the Appellant reflects a discrepancy in her
account about whether her sister was at 1he church or the dispcnsar}'.m Thercfore, these arguments
do not demonstrate any ercor in the Trial Chamber's findings on Wilress AY's credibility and her

abilily to be in a position to abserve the Appellant’s crime.

119, The Appellant argues that Witness AV’s lack of knowledge concerning Agnes Mukagatare's
age, home, and family background undermincs the Tral Chamber's findings an her creﬂibiltly.z“
Althotigh the Tnal Chamber did not expressly discuss in the Trial Judgementi the basis of Witness
AY's wlentilication of the victim, 2 review of her evidence reflects that the witness knew Agnes
Mukagatarc as a nurse in the dispensary. " The Appellant has not shown this (0 be an unreasenable

basis for identifying the victim.

120, The Appellant contends thal Witness AV's evidence vl the rape on the aftermoon of 15 Aprl
1994 is uncorreborated angd conflicts with the evidence of Witness AF and Defence Wilnesses DF
and DG, who refer to a number of women being taken from the Mubuga Church and killed in the

nearby cemetery on the night of 14 Aprl 1994.°"° While Witness AV's teslimony was not

corroborated, the Appeals Chamber has consistently held that 1 Tral Chamber has the discretion to

rely on uncomoborated, but otherwise credible, witness Iri-s;Lin—u:m;-f'.zm The Trial Chamnber found

B Trial ludgement, para, 178

i Appellan’’s Brief, para. 191, gueting T. 28§ Aprl 2004 p. 27, The Appellant in his submistions auempts w
vharsclerize 1hus passage of Witness AF's iestimony as indicating the condilions al the church “from 14 Apdl 19847
femphasis added} However, o review of the ranscript reveals that the wiltness referred only 1o the copditions oa 14
April 1994 Ser T, 28 Apc] 2004 p, 27 (00, Mow, whal was the situation inside the Mubuga church on the fdeh of
Apctl? [L.] A, Ou e 40 The situation was nol 8 gooel one Tor the refogees because Lhey could not get om of the
charrch for one, [... ™) temphasis added}.

Y ppellant's Bricf, para. 189,

™ 0 is clear from the exchangs that the questions posed during crozs-gxaminalion were very rencral and did net
spesily 4 lime-fiame and that Wilness AV s sister witimately came W the chereh. See T 1 Apel 2004 pp, 54-35 (0.
While vou were in the church [...7 wore you there with any gther member of your family? A. Yes, T was with some.
[...] & Al your brothers and all your sisters® A, Yes, . And how did vou leam of your parents’ death al the
dispensary? A, My vounger sister 10dd me so. She was with them a1 the dispeosary. £, 5o all your sislers were qot an ibe
Catholic Church? A, Yios, that sister was not at the Cabolic Church. (. When did vour junior sister join vou? AT do
act Tecall the houe, bat it was before midday, around midday ™).

0 A ppeitant’s Brief, para. 190,

M April 2004 p. 55 (). Regarding the six gitls, vou could fully identify one of them and you could only idemify
the first pames of two of them and the three others you car'l remember their pames. Can you lalk o os abowt
Mutapatare, wham you knew the best? A She was a nursc at the dispensary, and that is why [ kaow her.™),

8% Appellant's Brief, paras, 186, 192-199.

™ Cacumbits] Appea) Judgement, para, 72,
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Wilness AV's account to be credible and explained that she “clearly recognized the Appellant™ and

“ A review of the Trial Judgement reveals that

had a “vlear and unobsirucled view™ of his crimne.
the Trial Chamber considered the evidence of the killings on the night of 14 April 1994 in making
its factual findings based on Witness AV's testimony **® The Trial Chamber was not satistied that
Witness AV and Witnesses DF and DG were referring 1o the same events ™ The Tral Charnber's
rejectinn of the Appellant’s position at trial that the rape described by Witness AV and the cnmes
referred to by Witnesses DF and DG were the same appears reasonable, particulariy given Witness
AV's eyewitness account and the marked differences in the time of the events and the names and

nambers of the victims 2%

121, The Tral Chamber did not expressly consider whether Witness AY's aceount of the rape of
Agncs Mukagalare on 15 April 1994 conflicted with Witness AF's evidence of women fraom the
church being raped on the night of 14 April 1994, Nonetheless, it follows from the Trial Judgement
that Witness AV's testimony was considered in the context of Witness AF's account.”™ The
Appeals Chamber is not convinced that the evidence of Witness AF renders erroncous the Trial
Chamber's (indings based on Witness AV’ testimony in light of the explanation provided by the

Trial Chamber in connecthion with the alleged discrepancy of testimony of Wiltnesses DF and DG,

B. Alleged Ercors reiated to the Alibi

122, In challenging the rejection of his alibi of remaining conlinuously at home on 13 April 1994,
the Appellant notes that the Trial Chamber misstated the date when Witness DC placed him at
Mubuga Church.*™ In particular, he notes that Witness DC lestified that the Appellanl was al the
cirerch on 12 or 13 April 1994, bul the Toal Chamber, in iejecting his alibi lor 13 Apnl 1994,
reflected that the witness saw him at the church on the day of the attack of 15 Apnil 19947 The
Appeals Chamber agrees with the Appellant thal the Tdal Chamnber misstated Witness DCs

testimony in this portion of the Trial Judgement *? Nonetheless, the Appeals Chamber is not

1]

Triad Judgement, para. 197,

™ Trial Judgement, paras. 172, 179186, 202. The Appeals Chamber notes that Witness AF heard that the women were
rand, though Witnesses DF and DG staled that ihey were killed, but not that they were raped.

' Trial Judgement, para. 202,

8 of Tral Judgement, paras, 170, 171 with Tnal Judgement, paras. 180-185. The Appeals Chamber 2150 noles the
Appellant’s submission teat the Trial Chamber erred in laow and unfairly treated differently whe discrepancies wiih
roEpect o the timing of evenls when congidering Prosecution and Defence ovidence, Wolice of Appeal, para. 38,
Appellant’s Bricf, para. 197. The Appeals Chamber, in this instance, is nol persuaded by this argument. For the Trial
Chamber, the discrepancies reflected thar Wiltness AV and Wilnessey AF, DEF, and T were referdng W different
cvonts, rol that the Defence evidenee lacked credibility. Trial Judgemem, para. 202,

¥ The Trial Chamber summarized Witness AF'3 account immedialely alter the evidence of Witness AY. Trial
Judgement, paras. 170, 172,

4 Appellant’s Bricf, paras. 200-203.

M apnellant’s Briet, paras, 200, 201.

B Co Trial Tudgement, para, 203.
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satisfied that the Appellant has demonsirated an etror occasioning a miscamage of justice.
Elsewhere in the Trial Judgement, including a section assessing the alibi, the Trial Chamber
comectly reflected the date on which Wimess DC saw the Appellant as “12 o 13 Apdl” 199427
The Appeals Chamber observes that the purpose of the Trial Chamber's inclusion of Witness DCs
evidence in the assessment of the alibi was o reflect that the Appellant’s propasition that he
remained centinuowsly at home from 8 to 16 Apal 1994 was exaggerated, nod o demonstrate that

the Appellant was at the church on 15 April 1994,7

i23.  Moreover, Withess DC's evidence that he saw the Appeliant at the church on 12 or 13 April
1994 was only one of several factors the Traal Chamber ook into account in finding that Lhe alibi
evidence for 15 April 1994 Lucked credibility ™ In particular, in rejecting the alibi for 15 April
19694, the Trial Chamber relied on the commoborated evewitness accounts of Witnesses AV and AF
who placed the Appellant at the church on 15 April 1994.7° In addition, the Trial Chamber
obscrved that the alibi evidence lacked credibility.??’ The Appellant's submissions fail 1o
demonstrate the unrcasonableness of these other, independent grounds for rejecting his alibi, and

thas he has not demonstraled that the Trial Chamber's findings with respect o it 4t erroneous.

124, Accordingly, this ground of appeal is dismissed.

™ Trial Judgement, paras. 121, 160.
2;‘ Trial Judgement, paras. 12, 15, 1&),
** Trinl Judgement, paras, 160, 203,
U Trial Judgement, paras 156, 203
7 Trial Judgement, para, 160,
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XI1V. ALLEGED ERRORS RELATING TO THE ATTACK AGAINST TUTSI
REFUGEES AT MUGONERO COMPLEX ON 16 APRIL 1994 (GROUND OF
APPEAL 12}

125,  The Triat Chamber found that the Appellant participated in an attack against Tuisi civilians
at Mugonero Complex on 16 Apnl 1994 2™ The Trial Chamber further found that the Appelilant was
present when the attacks were launched and that he vsed a gun 1o kill and inflict injunes on Tutsl
civilians targeted by the attackers.”™ Additionally, the Trial Chamber determined that the Appellant
commitied and abetted rapes during this attack.”™ The Trial Chamber relied, in pan, on its indings
relating o the attack on the Mugonera Complex in convicting the Appellant of genocide,™' rape as
a crime against humanity,”™ and murder as a crime against humanit;.;.m The appellint raises
several challenges to the Tral Chamber's assessment of (he evidence and the credibility of
Prosecotion witnesses which the Trial Chamber relied upon in making findings celating o his

participation in this attack, The Appeals Chamber discnsses each of these chailenges in turn below.

A. Alleged Error relating to Witness I

126, The Appcllant submiis that the Tnal Chamber emed in fact by aurbuting slatemenis (o
Witness DI that he had not made, therchy distorting the witness's evidence 1o suggest that the
Appellant killed with guns and grenades. ™ The Appellant contends that Witness DI's cvidence
instead establishes that the Appellant was not present duning the attack agatnst Tulsi refugees at

Mugonero Complex on 16 Aprl 1994. ™

127, In summarizing Winess DIUs testimeny, the Trial Chamber stated that “Wilness DI testificd
that the Accused never clubbed anyone o death, as only the assailanis without puns or grenades
killed victims in this manner.”>™ The transcript reflects that the witness had testified that the witness

himse!f, rather than the Appellant, had never clubbed anyone 1o death at the Mugonero Complex,

P Trial Judgement, para. 246, Relying on the same wilnesses, the Trial Chamber considercd the specific crimes
commilted by the Appellant during the attack in a separule secton of the Trial Judgement. See Trial Judaement, paras.
261-306, These crimes are discussed wnder Ground ol Appeal 13

% Trial Judgement, para, 259,

' Trial Jodeemen, paras, 271-275, 302-304, 552, 553,

& Trial Judgement, paras. 513, 519,

182 1 rat Judgemem, paras. 552, 553, 562, 563.

™ Trial Judgement, paras. 570, 552, 583,

! Neice of Appeal, po 15, para. 41; Appellan’s Bated, paras. 204, 205 (emphasis addod).

¥ Appetlant’s Bricf, para. 204.

& Ttial Judgement, par, 236,
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stating that “guns and prenades™ were used in the attack .’ This ervor in the summary was made
only after the Tral Chamber had comrectly recounted Witness D1's testimony, which indicated that
“[ajecording to Witness DI, *Mika wasn't present’ during the attack™ *** In determining whether the
Appellant participated in the attacks at Mugonero Complex on 16 Aprl 1994, the Trisl Chamber
recalled Witness DI's testimony that the Appellant “could not have been present during the

T bt concluded, nonctheless, that it did not consider Witness DI's evidence to be

allacks,
credible.™ Moreover, the Trial Chamber did not rely on Witness DI's lestimony to establish that
the Appellant “used his gun to kill and inflict injonies on Tutsi civibians targeled by the attackers™ al
Muogonere Complex.”' Thus, the Appeals Chamber considers that the Trial Chamber's error in
summanzing Witness DI's testimony does not demonstrate thal the Trial Chamber’s asscssment of

the cvidence was unreasonable or resulted in a miscarriaye of justice.
128, Accordingly, this sub-ground of appeal is dismissed.

I. Alleped Errors relating to Witness BG

129 The Appcllant submits that the Trial Chamber emred in Jaw and in fact in the assessment of
Witness BG's credibility ™ In this respect, the Appellant argues that portions of her account were
scientifically inaccurate and points o inconsistencics beiween her pre-idal statements and her trizl

estimony.

1. Alleged Envor in Relying on Witness BG's Testimony Given the Scicatific Impossibility of

Aspacts of her Evidence

130, The Appellant submits that the Tizal Chamber emed In Jaw and in fact in finding Witness
BG to be credible given her testimony “that “a fire set by assailants at Mugonero Church with peitol
was put owl becatse of the blood EVErywhtn:"'.m The Appellant arpoes that the witness's account

is scientifically inaccurate.”™ Conscquently, the Appellant suggests that Witness BG's testimony

®T September 2004 p. 56 (0. Mow, how many Tetsi refusees did you club o death at the complex? A& My one,
we used puns and grepades. Guns and grenades were uséd. They could not have boen hil with ¢lubs, whereas there
were guns and prepades that could be wsed ™).

2 O, Trial Judgement, para, 236 with T, 1 Sepember 2004 pp. 40, 57,

*® Trial Judgement, para. 250.

¥ Trial Fudgement, paras. 250, 251,

B Tl Judgement, patas. 246, 259,

' Notice of Appeal, p. 15, paras. 42, 43; Appellaot’s Brief, paras, 206-221.

' Notice of Appeal, p. 15, para. 42, Appellant’s Brict, paras. 206-208.

4 Appeilant's Bricl, para. 208,
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could “only be a mistake or a lie,” and that the Trial Chamber erred in law in disregarding

“seientific trath”, ™

131,  In asscssing Withess BG's evidence, lhe Trial Chamber highlighted the Appeliants
submissions challenging the scientific accuracy of Witness BG's testimony ™" The Trial Chamber
considered that the account, “even i scientifically inaccurate,” did not “lamish™ the credibility of
the witness. ™" Caonzequently, the Trial Chamber relicd partially on Witness BG's testimony in

finding that the Appellant participated in e atack on Mugonero Complex.™

132, The Appeals Chamber notes that the Trial Chamber made no findings as 1o whether blood
put out the fire at Mugenero Church, This notwithstanding, a reasonable trier of fact may disregard
certain pans of a wilness's testimony while relving on other parts of the testimony which it
considers credible and reliable® In the present case, the Tnal Chamber assessed Witness BG's
credibility in light of the same challenge that the Appellant has brought on appeal.”™ Moreover, in
linding that the Appellant participated in the 16 April 1994 attack on Mugonero Complex, Lhe Trial
Charnber also relicd on corroborating evidence provided by several other witnesses. ™' Accardingly,
the Appellant has failed to demoostrate that the Trial Chamber emed in relving, in part, on Witness

BG's evidence in 115 findings related 1o the events at Mugonero Complex.

2. Allegped Failure wn Address Discrepancies between Withess BG's Witness Statement and hor

Subseaguent Bvidence

133, The Appellant argues that the Trial Chamber ened in iaw and in fact in failing w address ali

of his objections relating 1o discrepancics between Witness BG's pre-trial statement of 14

November 1995 and a subsequent statement of 24 October 1999, as well as her (al westimony X
Firsi, the Appellanl argues that Witness BG provided inconsistent accounts regarding where she hid
after leaving Mugonero Hospital.™ The Appcllamt argues that Witness BG's 14 November 1995
staterment indicates that she spent a week in Gishyita and then stayed 1n Kibuye 1own for two weeks
before moving to Zaire.™ The Appellant notes that the withess’s 24 October 1999 stalemnent and

her (nal testimony indicated that upon leaving the hospital she climbed the hills towards Gitwa on

3 Appeliant's Nrief, paras. 206, 208.

% Trial Judgement, para. 248,

B Trial Judgement, para. 248,

9 rrist Indgement, para. 259,

M Lee, o5 Nagerurg of ol Appeal Judgement, para. 214, Semanrg Appeal Judpement, paras, 155, 156, Kajelieli

frnljl'rmal Tudgement, para. 167, Bomirhoenda Appeal Judgement, para. 248,
“rial ludgement, para, 248,

N Triai Judgement, paras, 246, 250,

*2 Notics of Appeal, p. 15, para, 43; Appellant's Beef, para, 209,

W Appellant’s Bref, para, 209,

* Appellant’s Brief, para. 210.

47
Case Mo ICTR-95-18-A 21 May 2007

WA




774/

her way (o the Bisescro arca,”™ The Appellant argues that this discrepancy is relevant to whether
the wilncss obscrved the events in the Bisesero area and to whether she could have been captured

16

on 22 Aprl 1994 and subsequently raped.

134, Sceond, the Appellant emphasizes that Witness BO never mentioned rape and sexual
violence in her 14 November 19935 stateinent, even though this statement was taken much closer 1o
the events.”™ The Appellant suggests that Witness BG's explanations concerning (his discrepancy
at Lrial werc so confusing (hat a reasonable Iricr of fact would have rejected her testimony.™ Third,
the Appcllant argues that the Trial Chamber acted unreasonably in relying on the witess's luer
statement without providing any reason for disregarding the earlier staement.™ Finally, the
Appellant contends that the Toal Chamber erred in law in accepting the testimony of Witness
B3, a5 she ought to have been disqualificd as a witness due 10 her incapacity to testily because

she had suffered from “wental dementia and waoma™. "

135.  The Appeals Chamber recalls that the pnimary responsibility for assessing the credibility of
witnesses and the probative value of evidence lies with the Trial Chambers.””? In fulfilling Lhis
responsibility, a Trial Chamber has the duty to cvalvate inconsistencies that may arsc in the
evidence > Where a Trial Chamber has based its findings on lesiimony that is incomststent wilh
prior out-of-court statements or other evidence, this does not necessarily constitute an error "
However, the Trigl Chamber is bound 1o take into account inconsistencies and any explanations

offercd in respect of thom when weighing the probative value uf the cvidence.**

136. The Appesls Chamber notes that Witness BG's statement of 24 October 1999 was not
lendeted inly evidence., Nonetheless, 1he relevant transcrpts indicate that Witness BG was

confronted with this statement during her cross-examination.”'® The Trial Judgement reflcets that

prcllam 5 Bref, paras, 209-21).

M Apixllant's Brief, paras. 212, 216, The Appellant has also been convicted of abetting the rape of Witness BG whan
on 22 April 1994 he “permitted” an Interafiamwe named Mugonero w abduct Witness BG knowing that Mugonero
wanted to rape ber. Tral Judgement, paras. 318, 319, 323, 533, 563, The Appellant chaltenges this cnm-ictiun uneler
Ground of Appeal 13,

e o Appellant’s Briel, para. 213,

Appclla.nt s Briel, para. 214,

¥ appellant's Nrief, para. 217,
S Appellant’s Brief, para, 221,
“' Apl'hc]lam % Brief, para. 271,

? See, ¢.p. Niyitegeka Appeal Judgement, pare. 95 Rutaganda Appeal Judgement, para. 188 Musema Apncal
Judgement, para. 18 Kavishema and Ruztedena Appeal ludgement, paras, 319, 323, 324; Akaveso Appeal Judgoment,
para. 133 Alefsovskd Appeal Judgemenl, para, 63; Tadi Appeod Judgemenl, para, 64, Kwpwrefbic er ol Appeal
Judgement, paras, 3, 32, 156; Celebici Case Appeal Judgement, para. 421,

M Kraprﬂku. et a2l Appeal Judgement, para. 31 (internil vilanons ooited}.

He;s feweka Appeal Judgement, para. 96,

.'S'ee Enprefhid el ol Appeal Judgement, para, 3T, Sve afver Miyitepeka Appeal Judgement, para. %0,

b See T. 6 April 2004 pp, 13, 17, 22, 25-27.
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the: Trial Chamber considercd the Appeliant’s arguments related o this document when making its
findings *? Specifically, the Trial Chamber noted:
The Defence subamils that beeause of Winess KOs conflicting prior written statements, dated 14

Novernber 1995 and 24 Ootober 19949, 54 well a5 incongistenctes io her wstimony, the evidence of
this witncss should he mjccted.”!

The Trial Chamber relied on Withess BG's evidence and that of several other wilnesses in finding
that the Appellant participated in attacks on Mugoncre Complex on 16 April 19947 Towever, the
Trial Judgement does not explicitly address where she went wpon leaving Mugpners Hospital or her

farlure 1oy mention being raped in her 14 November 1995 slatement.

137, A review of the (rial record reveals that Witness BG was ¢ross-examined reganding her

failure o memion rape in her 14 November 1993 siatement:

Al 1 wasn't asked guestions felaing thireto, bt | tink, given the sitoaton in which T found
mysell, even i guestions were ashed [of] me on that subject, T don’t think T eoutd have dalked
about jf, For a Rwandan it ts difficull w Wk sbowt such evenis. 11 is subseyuenily, alter having
potton some training, sooic counscl from a number of people that have miked about it; otherwise §
wouldn't ave been able 10 talk about those events al tha particular time.

Q. Can e know whal kind of raining you eceival?

A O several ocoasions we were Told that for thosc who were raumatscd we necded o mecl
dostors and that these doctors (old us that we shouid 1alk about those various events, which were
difficubt for us, and they wld as that hy wlking about them it will b beiter for us to put them in
perspective and (o be aware of our state of health. Apd it iz ungder those eondittonys that we,
Iherelors, that had the cournge of lalking abwout them ™™

The Tral Chamber sought clarification from the witness regarding her 14 November 1995
statement on this point.™' Morcover, Witness BG was cross-examined on ber failure 1o describe the

3l

attacks in Biscsero m her 14 November 1995 stalement™™ Subscquent to these guestions and

responses, Witness BG was also cross-cxamined regarding discrepancies in her 14 Navember 1995
statemment conceming where she went after leaving Mugonero Hospital:

0. Aad when you lefuthe basemunt, madao, wlere did you go?

A, I went up theough the Gitwe Bill going towanls the Bitescro tegion.

Q. Sinte this bas to do witle the statement of the 14th November 1995 T will simply recall wha
we tead, that is: T spent one week at Gishyils and then T was howsed there for a week in Eihuye

*'? See Trial Judgemont, paras. 248, 249,

"3 Trigl Judgement, para. 24%.

¥ Trial Judgement, paras. 246, 247, 259, Additionally, the Trial Chantber relicd on Wimess BG's cvidenge alone in
finding thut the Appellant abetted Mugonero in raping ber. See Trial Judpement, paras, 318-323, 553, This event &
diseussed tnder Ground of Appeal 13

VT 6 Apeil 2004 pp. 78,

T 6 April 2004 pp, 89,

T 6 April 2004 p B,
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wrwen and then | moved on to Zaire.” Tou stale, in your staterment of 24 October, that you went o
Bisesnro: ii thal corect?

N Yex, thai 15 true. § went to Biscscro.'

i38. The Appellant has not demonswated that the wilness™s cxplanations copceming the
discrcpancics among her accoums based on the trauma she sutfered after being raped were
unreasonable or that no reasonable toer of fadt conld have relied on Witness BG™s evidences in light
of the arguments advanced under this ground of appeal. In addition, the Appeals Chamber is
satisfied that the Toal Chamber considered the discrcpancies ansing hetween Witness BG's 14
November 1995 slatement and her subsequent statement and tral testimony, The Appeals Chamber
recalls that the Trial Chamber is not obliged in its Judgement o recount and justify its findings in
relation to every submlission made during 16al.*®* A Trial Chamber bas the discretion to accept a
witness's evidence, notwithstanding inconsistencies between trial testimony and his or her previous
staterments.”™ Accordingly, the Appeals Charober is not convinced (hat the Trial Chamber emred in

not explaining why it prefemed certain aspects of Witness BG's cvidence over uthers.

139, Finally, the Appellant argues that, as a matter of law, the Tral Chamber shonld have
rejected Witness BG's evidence bocause she admitted that in 1995 she was “suffering from menta
dementia and trauma™™® and that no subsequent evidence was lcd 1o eslablish that she rogained
mental health. However, & review of the trial record reveals thal at no point did Witness DG suggest
that she suffered from “dementia”. Moreover, the witness indicated that she had received
counsclling tor the ramna she suffered. ™’ Additionally, the Appellant fails to cite any cvidence on
the record revealing that Witness BG was incapable of undersianding her obligations while
testifying as a witness before the Trbunal, Theeefore, the Appeals Chamber is not convinced that

Lhe Trial Chamber erred in relying on her lestimony.
140, Accordingly, this sub-ground of appeal is dismissed.

. Alleged Ermors relating 1o Wilnesses [X5 and DK

[41, The Appellant submils that the Teial Chamber erred in law in rejecting the testimonies of
Defence Witnesses DS and DK, who lestified that, in Gishyits Prison and during gecara sessivns,

his name was not mentioned in relation to the attack al Mugonere Complex.™™ He argues that the

T 6 April 2004 p. 13,

T Celebict Case Appeal Frdgement, para. 498

= Kupefifely Appeal Judgemen, para, ¥4

M Appellants Brief, para, 221.

T 6 April 2004 pp. 7-8,

2 Notice of Appeal, p. 16, para. 44; Appellant’s Brief, paras. 222-225,
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Trial Chamber did not provide any reason for rejecting this exculpatory evidence and that this

failure amounts to an oror of law, which invalidaies the Trial Chamber's decision.™?

142.  The Appeals Chamber notes that, in assessing the evidence of Witnesses DS and DK, the
Toal Chamber did not find these witnesscs persuasive because they were nol cyewitnesses Lo the
crimes committed at Mugonero Complex and theic testimonies related to what they had heard years
later in Gishvita Prison and duting gacaca sessions. > The Appellant has not shown that the Trial
Chamber’s assessment of this cvidence was unreasonable, particularly in light of the other evidence

the Trial Chamber considered in celation to the crimmes commitled at Mugonero Complex,
143, Accordingly, this sob-pround of appeal is dismissed.

D. Alleged Error relating to Witness AY

144, The Appellant submits that the Trial Chamber ered in law by relying on the testimony of

Witness AV as onc of the Prosgcution witnesses who testified about the attack at Mugonero
A

Complex.” He contends Lhat the entire testimeny of Wimess AY related exclusively to the
“Mubuga site” and cannot be relied upon to suppont the allegations relating to the “Mugonero
events” >

145, The Appeals Chamber pows that the Trial Chamber mentioned Witness AV once 1n i3
findings on the attacks at Mugonere Complex.’™ However, it is clear that this is a mere
typographical error as the Tral Chamber Jid not summarize Witness AY's evidence alongside other
Prosccutinn evidence on Lthis event and because it did notl discuss this wilness's eslimony in its
analysis of the relevanl evidence, Rather, the Trial Chamber relied on the evidence of Prosecition
Witnesses PG, Bl BJ, AT, and ALL* Consequently, the Appeals Chamber (inds that this error did

not cause prejudice to the Appellant and did not iuvalidate the dectsion.
146,  Accordingly, thas sub-ground of appeal is disntissed.
E. Counclusion

147, Far the foregoing reagons, this ground of appeal is dismissed w its entivery.

¥ Appullant's Briel, para, 225.
77 Trial Judgement, para. 254.
"' Wotice of Appeal, p. 16, pasa, 45 Appetlant's Beicl, paras. 226-228,
M gppcllant's Bricl, para, 227.
P2 Trial Judgemend, pura. 239,
M Trial Judgement, para. 247.
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XY. ALLEGED ERRORS RELATING TO THE RAPES AND MURDERS
COMMITTED AT MUGONERO COMPLEX AND THE RAPE OF WITNESS
B(: (GROUND OF APPEAL 13)

148, The Toal Chamber found that, during the attack on Mugenero Complex on 16 Apnl 1994,
the Appeilant played a role in the rape and murder of severa)] women in three separate incidents
which occurred in the basement of Mugonem Hospital™ Based on these fndings. the Trial

. . . k|
33 rape ds 4 crime agamst humanity, * and murder

Chamber convicted the Appellant of genocide,
s a crime agaitist humanity. ™ Iy another event on 22 Apdl 1994, which is not related to the atlack
on the complex, the Trial Chamber also found that the Appellant "permitled” an fnrerahamwe
namad Mugonero 1o “rake away” Prosecution Witness BG with knowledge thal Mugonero wanted
te rape her. Based on this event, the Trial Chamber convicted the Appellant for rape as a crime
against humanity for abetting the rape of Witness BG.M® The Appeals Chamber addresses in W
the Appeilant’s [our sub-grounds of appeal challenging the factual and legal findings on the three
meidents ocowrming at the Mugoncre Hospital, as well as the events surmounding the rape of Wilness

BG.

A. Alleged Errors relating to the Rape and Murder of Mukasine Kajongi and Amos

Karcra’s Two Daughlers

149, The Trial Chamber found that, on 16 April 1994, the Appellant raped Mukasine Kajongi and
abetted two other assailants accompanying him to rape the two daughters of Amos Karera in the
basement of Mugonero Hospital ™! The Trial Chamber further found that, alter those rapes, e
Appellant instigated the two other assailants to murder Lhese three women.*? The Tria! Chamber
relted an the evidence of 2 single wilness, Prosecution Witness AT, who observed the evenats while

under a pile of dead bodies® The Trial Chamber convicted the Appellant for these tapes and

™ Tria) Fudgemant, paras, 273, 274, 276, 291, 302, 552, 553, 570.

¥ Thal Judgement, paras, 513, 519

" Trial Judgement, paras, 552, 553, 563,

¥ Tria] Judgement, paras. 570, 583,

** Trial Judpement, paras. 318, 323, 553,

™ Trial Judgement. paras. 553, 563.

' Trial fudgement, paras. 271, 274, 552, 553

" Trial Judgement, pagas 276, 570, The Trial Charmber's facwal findings refer 40 the murder of only one of Amos
Karcra®s davghters while its legal findings refor to the Killing of buth davghters. Meither party raises this discrepancy on
appeal. A review of the ansenpis of Witness AT s lestimony, in particular the French version, reveals that the witness
indicated that both davghters were Killed, Sve T, 19 Apnil 2004 po 16: T, 19 Apdl 2004 p. 17 {Freach version).

™ Trial ledgement, para 272,
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S d - . Co 348 ) - :
murders for genocide,™ rape as a come against bumanity,”™ and murder as a cime against

- 145G
humanuty.

15¢.  The Appellant submits 1that the Tral Chamber emed in law and in Tace in convicting him for
lhese crimes on the basis of the evidence of Witness AT, In particular, the Appellant alleges 4
number of inconststencies between Witness AT's evidence snd his previous statements, the lack of
clarity in his evidence concerning the location of the crime, and the Iack of coruboration. " In
addition, the Appellant submits that the Trzl Chamber erred in fact in relying on the evidence of

Prosceution Witness AU in convicling ham for this event.™ The Appeals Chamber addresses each

of the Appellant’s arguments 10 turn.

1. Alleeed FErrors relaling to Inconsisiencies betwoen Witness AT's Testimony and Pre-Triai

Staements

151. With respect to alleged discrepancies between Witness AT's testimony and fus prior
statements, the Appellant submits that the Trial Chainber emred in fact in relying on Witness AT's
account based on his wotten staiement of 12 November 1999, instead of his earljer account
provided in his staternenmt of 20 June 1996, He arpues that the Trial Chamber ought 1o have relied
upon the earlicr statemnent, which makes no reference to rape, as this was 1aken closer in rime to the
events.”™ e also argues that a reasonable trier of fact would have found the later stalement to be
unreiiable “in the absence of any plausible explanation™ as to why the witness did not mention rape

in ihe earlier statement. ™!

152. The Appeals Chamber considers that the Appetlant’'s present line of argument, suggesiing
that Witncss AT did not see the Appellant’s crimes because they were not mentioned in his first
pre-Lriul matement, is not convincing. As the Appeals Chamber has previously held, “to suggest that
il gomething were tre a wilness would have ncluded it in a statement or a confession letter is

obviously speonlative and, in gencral, it cannot substantiate a claim ihar a Toa) Chamber crred in

X S

assessing the witness's credibility, Morcover, the Appellant presented these arguments to the

Tral Chamber © The Trhal Chantber vadertook “a careful review of the writlen stalements and the

! Trial Judgemenl, paras. $13, 519,
1"‘de Judgement, pacas. 552, 553, 563,
* Trial Judeement, paras. 570, 543
M7 Netice of Appeal. pp. 1618, paras. $6-54, 36.55%; Appellant’s Uriel, paras, 229- 244, 250257,
¥ Notice of Appeal, p. 15, para. 55; Appellant's Rrief, pata, 249,
“gﬁppt,llam s Brief, paras, 230-234,
i . Appellan’s Bricl, para, 230).
ﬁ.ppcilam = Brief, para. 233.
Ka;e.!'gef: Appeal Fudgement, para. 176
* Trigl Judgement, paras, 265, 270,
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oral testimony of Witness AT, in particular with respect to the omission of rape in the first
statement,™ The Trial Chamber considered any discrepancies between them to be minor and was
not satisfied (hat the omission of rape in the first staternent affected the witness's credibility.”” The
Appellant has failed 10 show how the Troal Chamber ered in considering his arguments and,
accordingly, has failed to show any crror of law or fact in the Tral Chamber's assessment of

Wilness AT s credibility with tespect 1o the alleped inconsistencies it his statements.

2. Alleged Exror relating to the Location of the Crime

153, The Appellant submits Lhat the Trial Chamber emed in fact in relying on Witness AT's
unreliable and wneorroborated evidence to establish that these crimes were commilled and thal the
basement of Mugonero Hospital was the crime scenc.”™ The Appellant points o several
discr{:pancies in Wilness AT's testimony and prior statements with respect to the details of this
location,™ He argues that the Trial Chamnber minimized these discrepancies in its assesstent of his
testimoeny and, therefore, failed w0 clanfy the exact locaon of the erime.”™ He submits that this
alleged emor of fact resnlied in 3 further error of law becawse the locmion of a cnme is a materiat

fact which is necessary to prove the existence of the crime itself. ik

154.  The Trial Chamber concluded that the rape and murder of Mukasine Kajongi and Amos
Karera’s iwo danghters occurred tn the basement of Mugonero Hospital.*™ In making this finding,
the Trial Chamber considered the various alleged inconsistencies in Witness AT's account, in
pariicutar related 10 the Tocation of the cime, and concluded, notwithstanding, that the witness gave

credible evidence. ™

155. Beyond general complaints that the Tral Chamber minimized the specific discrepancics to

which he alludes, the Appellant alleges only one specific arror in the Trial Chamber’s assessment ol

Inz

Witness AT's account of Lhe locadon of the crime.™ The Appellant claims that the Trial Chamber

misstated Witness AT’s testimony in justifying an alleged discrepancy abouol the number of tooms

*“ "Trial Judgement, paras. 269, 270,

™ Trin! Judgement, paras, 269, 270, The Trial Chamber noted, frter alia, that “the witness" explanuion, durdng cross-
cxaminalion, that the 19%6 statement Focuscd on the aitack nself, not on particular incidenty which cccurred during Uhe
cowurse of he attack™, aml 1hat “the witness was consistent in bis deseripiton of the rape of Mukasine Kajongi.” fd, para
2,
" Appellant's Brief, paras, 233, 236, 242.245.
T P.ppe{!mm s Brief. paras, 237-144.
" Appellant's Reief, paras. 236, 242,
Appellant's Briel, paras. 245, 247,
¥ rrial Judgement, paras. 274, 276.

1 Trial Judgement, paras. 269, 271

*T appellant's Birief, para. 244,

A8}
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5 The Tral Chumber staled: “Witness AT did not asserl Lhat the surgical

in the surgical area.
iheatre consisted of many rooms. Rather, the witness tesified only that there were more than two

3t

rooms in the surgical area, located in the basement of the kospital. ™™ The Appellant contends that

the Trial Chamber erred in stalinge thal Witness AT never testified that there were several rooins in

L . . 1A
the “surgical area™."

156 The Appcals Chamber considers that the Appellant bas failed to appreciate the Trial
Chamber’s dislinction in this passage between the tenns “surgical theatre™ and “surgical arca” and
finds no coniradiction beiween this statement and the witness's testimony. The Appellamt has
therefore not pointed o any factual error in the Trial Chamber’'s assessmeni of the vanous
discrepancies advanced by him at trial. The Trial Chamber reasoned that any mmconsistency in
Witness AT's account related 1o “tunor details™ and, with respect to discrepancies as to the localion
of the crime, sinuply resuited from (raunia, the passage of (imc, and the witness’s lack of familiarity
with the surgical theatre.” The Appellant has not demoenstraled (hat, in these circunstances, this
was an unreasonabple basis 1or assessing any discrepancy or vagueness in the witness's evidence
related 1o the Jucalion of the erime. A review of Witness AT’s testimony reveals that he consistently
stated thal he sought refuge in a room with around thirty dead bodies in the basement of Mugonero

Hospital, where he witnessed the rape and murder of three women.””

157. The Appeals Chamber is not satisfied that the Appellant has shown that no reasonable trier
of faut covid have made the Trial Chamber’s findings with respect 1o the locatiop of the cime.
Therefare, the Appellant’s forther argument that the Trial Chamber coed in Jaw by failing to

exlablish the iceation of the cone need not be addressecd.

3. Alleged Emor relating to Lack of Corroboration

158 The Appellant submits thal the Trial Chamber erred in law in relying on the uncarmoborated
evidence of Witness AT In this respest, in addition to the arguments raised above, he argues that
Witness AT engaged in collusion, lied about his relatioaship with Wilness B), and was involved in

a murder.™*

A Appellant’s Brief, para. 244,

** Trial Judgeinent, para. 271,

M Appellant’s Bdef, para, 244,

28 Trigl Tudgement, paras, 269, 271,

MU 19 Apeil 2004 pp. 11-13, 37-38,

Ak Appellant's Bricf, paras. 249, 254, 257,
W Appellant’s I3ricf, paras, 251-257.
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159, It is well established that 2 Trial Chamber has the discretion (o rely on uncorroborated, but
olherwise credible, withess l:r::sti1-1-||{Jn;l,r.‘WJ The Trial Chamber assessed Witness AT, an cyewitness o
this event, and found him to be credible.”™ As discussed above, the Appeals Chamber is not
sutisficd that the Appellant has pointed to any factual or legal error in this assessment with respect

Lo the ailered inconsistencies in the witness’s aceount.

160.  In asscrling that Witness AT colluded with other witnesses, the Appellant points to the
follewing passage from his testimony:
Q. You lold the Prasecution investigator the following: “Kegarding rape and other sexually

telated enimes, which is the putpose of your investipations, [ knew aboul some cases, in pacticalar
theee cases of rape and one case of sexual mutilation." Can you confirm that sialement?

A I made that stalement, bui ther haven't Jou becard women who came 1o wstfy bere? T'm
sure you must have listencd to their iestimenies,™

The Appeals Chamber considers thal this passage simply reflecls Witness AT's awarcness that

women had been raped and does not evidence collusion with other wilnesses,

161.  The Appeals Chamber is also not satisfied that the Appellant has demonstrated any error on
the part of the Toal Chamber with respect to his allegation that Witness AT lied about his
relationship with Witness BJ, who also attested (o an incident of rupe at the Mugonero Complex,””
A review of the record reveals that, although Witness AT stated during eross-examination that he
did not have a “relationship” with Witness BJ,”™ he provided additional clarificalion on this matter
during his re-examination.” Therefore, the Appellant has not demonstrated that the witness
nusrepresented his relabonship with Witness Bl. Moreover, (his tssue was [ully exploted dunag the
witness’s testimony and raised during closing arguments,” and it was thus before the Trial
Chanber when assessing the witness's credibility. Finally, beyond relening o allegations advanced
during clesing arguments, the Appeilant has not substantiated his claimm that Witness AT was

involved in a murder.

162.  Accordingly, tie Appellant has not demonstrated any crror of fact or law un the pan of the

Toal Chamber in relying on the vncomoborated lestimony of Withess AT,

" Gacambsi Appeal Tudgement, para. 72, ciling Semanze Appeal Judgement, para. 153,
" THal Judgement, paras, 269, 272, 273,

VLT M Apnl 2004 p. 25

M Cre Tral fudpement, paras. 284-286, 228

TUTL 19 April 2004 pp. 28, 30.

TR, 20 Apeil 2004 pp. 2526,

YO, 19 Apnl 2004 pp. 26-34; T, 20 April 2003 pp. 24-26; T. 20 January 2005 p. 5.

5h
Case Mo, ICTE-95-13-A 21 May 2007

N AL
_




T65/H
4, Alleged Ermor relating to Witpess AU

163, The Appellant subimits that the Trial Chamber erred in Fact in relying on Witness AU's
lestimony to establish the murder of Mukasine Kajongi and Amos Karera's two davghters.”” Tle
argues that this witness never testified ahout this event.™® The Appeals Chamber observes that in it
{acteal findings on these murders, the Tdal Chamber referred to Withess AL hearing the assailanty”
gunﬁm.m However, a review of the Toal Judpement and record reveals that this is simply a
typographical ermmor. The evidence misattributed to Witness AU is clearly set out in the summary ol
the evidence in connection with Wimess AT."™ Therefore, the Appeals Chamber is nol sausfied

that this typographical error resulled in a miscarriage of justice.

164, Accordingly, Uns sub-ground of appeal is dismissed.

B. Alleged Errors relating io the Rape of Witness BJ, Mukasine, and Murckatete

165, The Trial Chamber found that, on 16 April 1994 in the basement of Mugoncre Hospital at
the Mugonero Complex, the Appellant raped Prosecution Wimess BY, 4 younyg Hute woman whom
he mistock for a Tutst. ™! The Trial Chamber further found that at the same time two assailants, who
accompanied the Appellant, raped Mukasine and Murckatele, whose ethnicity was not established
al (rial. ™ The Trial Chamber found that the Appellant abetted these rapes.™ In part, on the basis of
these events, the Trial Chamber convicted the Appellant of rape as a crimne against humanity,™ On
appeal, the Appellant raises three principal legal and factual challenges related to an alleged defect

in lhe funn of the Indicttnent, the ethricity of the victims, and the credibility of Witness B s

1. Alleged Defectin the Form of the Iodictment

166, The Appellant subinits that the Trial Chamber erred in law™®® in convicling him on the basis
of the rapes of Witness BJ, Mukasine, and Murekatete because the Indictment failed to provide him

with sufficient natice of the place of these critnes.™ He submits that the Indicument altcges thal the

T Appeilant's Briel, para. 245,
Appcllam % Brict, para. 24%,
™ Tria) Judgement, para. 276.
0 See Trinl Medgement, para, 265,
m: T'ral Tudgement, paras. 291, 5352,
. Frial Judgement, parag, 291, 553,
'1‘na| Tudgemenl, para. 533,
Tnal Jndgement, paras. 552, 353, 560
Nm]u: of Appeal, pp. 18-19%, paras. 59-62; Appellant’s Bricl, paras, 2582267
" The Appellamt refers to this as an emor of fact. However, the Appeals Chamber treals ¢laims of iack of notice as
errors of law. See. g Gacumbits Appea) Judgement, para, 46; Mivitepeka appeal Iudgement. para, 19],
! Notice of Appeal, po 18, para 59; Appellam’s Brcl, paras. 258-262,
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rapes were commnitted at Mugonero Complex, which is “huge and comprises several buildings,

tncluding a hospital, a charch, and a schoal™, ™

167, The charges against an accused and the material facts supporting those charges must be
pleaded with sufficient precision in the indictment so as by provide nalice 1o the aceused *™ The
Appeals Chamber has held that criminal acts thar were physically committed by the accused
personally must be set forth in the indictment specifically, including wheve feasible “the identity of

the victim, the time and place of the events and the means by which the acts were committed.” ™

168, Paragraph 6{c¥ii) of the Indicinent reads.

Cn 16 Aprel B9, at the Mogoacro complex, Mikacli Muhimana and frterafomwe collectively
raped civilian Fuesf women Mukasine and Murckalewe stafl maids a1 Mogonero bospital, and a
civilian Hure lady BJ-K. Mikaeli Muhimana subsequenty apologtsed to BI-K For the "mistake”’ of
taping her as he initielly thought she was Trerd,

On the basis of this paragraph, the Trial Chamber concluded, inter afia, that the Appellant raped
Witness BT and abetted the rapes of Muokasine and Murekatele in the basement of Mugonero
Hospital at the Mugonero Complex.* From the Indictment alone, the Appellant would have known
that he was being charged in connechion with these rapes at Mugonero Complex. The Indictment,
however, docs notl indicate that these crimes speciftealiy occurred in the basement of the Mugonero

Hospital.

169,  The guestion rematns wheother the failure w further specify the location of these cdmes
within Hie Mugonero Compiex as the basement ot the Mugonero Hospital renders this paragraph
defective with respect o the location of these comes. The Appeals Chamber notes tha the
Prosecution was in a position te provide the exact location of these rapes as carly as 15 Movember
1999.** Nonctheless, the Appeals Chamber 1s not satisfied that the lailure to plead the exact

location of these crimes within the complex esulicd in a defect in the Indiclment.

170. In the Makirutimana Appeal Judgement, the Appeals Chamber concluded that Gérard
Ntakirutimana had adequate notice that he murdered Charies Ukobizaba at the Mugonero Hospital

during this same attack on Mugoncro Cmnplc:-:.m In that case, Gérard Ntakirutimana challenged

* Appellant's Bricl, para. 259,

1:’. See yupra paca. 16, See alto Gaewmbitsi Appeal Judgement, para. 4% Nedindrbahizy Appeal Judgement, pata. 16

T Gacwmbiisd Appeal Judgemen, parz. 49, quoting Meokirurimane Appead Judgement, para. 32, quoting Xuprefkic et
ef. Appeal Judgement, para. 89 Ses afse Ndindebafiizi Appeal Judgement, para. [6.

! Trial Judgemen, paras. 291, 552,

" See Respondent's Bricd, para, 209 (“In her statemient of 15 November 1999, Wimess B stated 1hat, °1 did not
idenuifly Ihose spearheading the atlaek becavse I was scared, my ooly concern then was to amive al the hospital as
swifily as possible and hide. At aboot 9 am, a man named MIKA came into the room with fwo other men. ™).

" Niskirutimana Appeai Judgement, paras. 3044
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hig indictmemt, atleging that it did not, fer alie, set forth the place of this crime in sufficient
detail,”™ The Appeals Chamber notes that, as with the events in this case, the murder occurved at
the Mugonero Hospital and the indictment referred to the location of the come only as “Mugonero

o 95

Complex™. ™ Beyond the assention that Mugonero Complex is "hugc",'?';" the Appellant has not

advanced any argument indicating why lunher specificity was required in this particuiar cuse.

171, Accordingly. the Appellant has failed 10 demonstrate that the Indictment was defective with

rospect 1o the focation of these crimes.

rs relaling 10 the Ethnic Identit

172,  In addition, the Appellant submats that the Tnal Chamber ereed in fact in Grding in
paragraph 288 of the Trial Judgement hat Mukasine and Murvekalete were Tatsi when it refermred to
thern as “two Twisi staff maics” ™ He notes that Witness BJ testified that she did not know the
cthnicity of Mukasine and Murekatete.””® Moreaver, the Appellant submits that, in failing to
establish the cthuic identity of these women, the Tral Chamber crred in low in convicting him for

penocide on the basis of this evem,**

173, Paragraph 288 of the Trial Judgement, which the Appellant challenges, 15 not a factual
finding, bat simply a summary of allegations contained in paragraph 6(c)(it) of the [ndictment.
Coulrary to the Appellant’s assertion, the Trial Chamber observed in s factual findings on this
incident thar the ethnicity of Mukasine and Muorekatwte was unknown. ¥ Moreover, the Appeliant’s
contention that the Tral Chamber erred in law in entering a conviction against him for genocide
based on s cvent 18 without merit. The Tral Chamber stated in its legal findings that the
Appellant’s conviction lor genocide, insofar as it related to acts of rape at Mugonero Complex,

encompassed only the rapes of Tutsi women, ™!

T Nteekirnmimene Appeal Fadgement, para. 21.
M Mtedirwifmuna Appeal Judgement, paras. 30, 33-94, The Appeals Chamber concluded in the Mrakfratimene Appeal
Judgement thal the indictment was dofective bevatsse it failed o pload the specific murder. The Pre-Trial Brief alung
with the wilness slatemends, which the Appeals Chamnber concluded cuted this defect, alse did not Tuether speeify Lhe
location of the crime beyend refemng o Mugoners Complex.
% Appellant's Rriel, para. 259,
T gppellant’s Bricr, para. 264.
8 Appellant's Brief, para. 263.
™ appeliant's Brief, paras. 263, 264, The Appcllant makes reference 1o the failure w establish that the women
belonped to a “protected prowp” within the meaning of the Genocide Coavention and the Statute. Appcliant’s Briel,

ara. 203, Thus, the Appeals Chamber unierstands his submissions as challenging lis conviction for genocide.

Trial Judgemen, pap, 291

"' Trial Tudgement, para. 513 {*The Chamber finds that, through personal commission, the Accused killed and caused
sefous bodily of metlal hann o memhers of the Tued groop: 1...] (o) By taking parl in attacks ot Mugonero Complex,
where he raped Teeesf women and shiot at Fiesd refugees, Many Putri eefugees died or were infured in the attack ™).
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i74.  Rather, the Appellant was convicted of the rapes of Mukasine and Murekatete as a come
against humanity,™ and he does not dispute that these crimes were part of the “discriminatory,
widespread, and syslemabic atlacks [...] dirccted against groups of Twrsi civilians in CGishyita
Commune and in the Biscsero area, between Aprl and Junc 1994."%* Accordingly, the Appellam
has not demonstrated any error related to the Trial Chamber's lindings related to the ethodcity of the

victims which might resulf in a miscarriage of justice,

3. Alleged Error in the Assessment of Witness BJ

175.  The Appeliant submits that the Trial Chamber erred in fact and in law in failing to address
all bl one of the nincleen arguments raiscd in the Defence Closing Brief relating 1o the seliability
of Witness BI's testimony.“* He argues that this fajlure deprived him of a fair trial, which includes
the night to be guaranteed that the evidence and arguments presented by the Defence have been

heard and carefully considered ***

176. The Appeals Chamber notes that the fact that the Trial Chamber did not refer to every one ol
the Appellant’s arguments in relation to Witness BY's testimony in its reasoning, does not mean that
those arpuments ad not becn considered. A Tnal Chamber 15 nol required to set out in detail why i
accepted or rejected a witness's testimony, or justify its evaluation of teslimony in cascs where
there are discrepancics in the evidence.*™ It is also not obliged in its judgement to recount and
justify its findings in relation o every submission made at trial ¥ Moreover, the Appeals Chamber
declings 1o consider the Appellani's remaining ecighteen argumcnts allegedly impugning the
credibility of Wiiness BJ in parlicular as they are incorporated merely by reference from the

Defence Closing Brief, without any additional argument jostilying their consideration on appeal.
177 Accardingly, this sub-ground of appeal is diamissed.

C. Alleged Errors relating te the Rope of Witness AL

178, The Tral Chamber found that, on 16 Aprid 1544 during the attack on Mugonero Complex,
the Appellant Taped Witness AU twice in the basement of Mugoneso Hospital ™ The Triai

Chamber convictled hitn, in part, based on this event for gcl’lﬂﬂidﬂm and mpe 4% a Crime 42ainst

“% Trial Tudgemenl, paras, 553, 563,

*3 Trial Judgement, para. 533,

“™ Appellant's Bricf, paras. 265, 266.

“ Appellant's Bricf, para. 266,

"™ Afusema Appeal Judgement, para. 20

7 Celehici Cuse Appeal Judgement, para, 498,
% Trial Judgement, paras, 302, 552,

Y% Trial Judgemen, paras, 513, 519,
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18

tumanity.”~ The Appellant submits cimars of fact and of law in the notiee given to him in the

Indictment for this event and in the assessment of Witness AU's testimony *'!

. Alleged Defectin the Form of the Indictment

17%.  The Appellanl contends that the Indictment alleges that the rape wok place at “Mugonero

School of Medicine™, which does not exist, and that it therefore does nol grve nolice that Lhe event
L-ﬂz

occurmed in the basement of Mugonero Haspita
180.  Paragraph 6{c¥iv) of the Indictmeis reads:

On 6 aApri] 1994, a1 the Mugonero complex, Mikaeli Mubimana, aciag in ¢oncert wilh
fnferaftumwe went W ane of the operaring reoms in the medical school building in the Mugonero
complex apd collectively raped ‘Tutsi women ALK, Tmmacylale Muoksbarore, Toscphine
Mukankwaro, In particatar Mikaeli Muhiimana raped AU-K,

181, On the hasis of the Indictment alone, the Appellant would have known that he was being
charged with the rapc of Witness AU at the Mugonere Camplex. As the Appeals Chamber noted
above in us ground of appeal, this is sufficicnt notice of the location of this enme in the context of
these cvents. In light of the reference W “operating room” and “medical school building”, the
Appeals Chamber is satisfied that it would have been apparent that this was a reference o the
Mugonero Hospital, Accordingly, the Appellant has failed to demonstrate that the Indictment was

defective with respect to the lucalon of this coime.

2. Alleped Errors in the Assessmeni of Witness AU

182, The Appellant submits that the Trial Chamber crred in fact in fnding that Wilness AU was
raped i the basement of Mugonero Hospilal because the witness gave conflicting teslimony about

413

the location of the erime and could not clearly indicate where it occurted.” " The Appeliant points o
passages in the witness's testimony wherc she refers both to “the church” and “the hospital surgery™
and to a contradiciion in the wilness's testimeny and her pre-trial stalement concerning wheiher she

wits alone in the ronm before the Appellant raped her,**

* Trial Judgement, paras. 552, 563,

1 Notice of Appeal, p. 19, para. 83; Appellant’s Brief, paras. 268.274. The Appellant 2]so raises an argument in his
Muotiee of Appeal concerning the credibility of her accoun! conccening the oumber of attackers, which he docs not
develog m his bricl. Notice of Appeal, po 19, para. 863,

2 appellent's Roel, paras, 270, 274,

** Appeilant’s Rrief, paras. 265-274,

“* Appcllant's Bricf, paras. 271-273.

il
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183, As the Appellant submits, Wiiness AU apparently stated thai she observed other women

“lying down on the ground in the church”, referming to the same location where she was raped. !
The Appeals Chanber notes that immediately after this reference the interpreters asked the witness
to move closer (o the microphone because they were having difficulty hearing her.*® The witness
then indicated that, when the anackers arnived, she and other refugees were on the pround of the

U7 A review of the ranscripts reveals Lhat,

church, and subseqguently went to the surgical room.
other than this ane instance, Witness AU consistently attested 1o fleeing the chureh to the hospital
where she was raped in the hospital basemaent.*™ In addition, her testimony also reflects that at
some points she used the term “church® to refer (o the entice Mugonero Comptex.*'? Therefore, the
Appeals Chamber is not convineed that no reasonable mer of fact could have relied on her aceount

despite thns discrepancy.

184. A certain degree of ambiguity is apparcnt in Witness AU's account of whether she was in
the room alone or with others whet the Appellant raped her. ™ The Trial Chamber, however, was
aware of this, as it sought clarification from her on this point during her testimony. ' The Appeals
Chamber considers that the Trial Chamber appears to have cxercised an appropriate degree of
caution in assessing her testimony as reflected in i rejection of cormain portions of her account
relating to other rapes she claimed o have witnessed. ™ Accordingly, the Appeals Chamber Is not
satislied that these apparent contradictions show thal no reasonable tder of fact could have made the

Tral Chamber's finding that this erime occurred in the basement of the Mugonera Hospital.

13. Alleged Errors relating to the Rape of Withess DTG

185. The Tral Chamber found that the Appellant “pormitted” an faterghamwe called Mugonero
to “take away” Wimess BG with the knowledge that Mugonero intended to rape her.*** The Trial
Chamber found that, based on this, the Appellant encouraged Mugonero to rape Wilness B and

T T Apnl X004 po 5 Q. [ You said the Mrrerafamwes were malirgaring these gicls and taping them. A, That is
correct. . 11 was — and you also indicated this s the same room where Mika Muhimana had sexnal inlercourse with
you. A Yes, these other penple were wing down on the ground in the church. [ was able 1o identify some of these
peopte”)

CLL T Apd] 2004 p 5,
T, 7 Apdl 2004 p. 5 (2. Thank you, Madam Winess. We were alking sboul the Jrerahamees who were raping
the girls, and as a (oflow-up (o that, 1 wanl 1o ask a4 question whether Mika Muhimanp was present when these
Taterahanmwes were rapng the girls. A, He was present, and when he came in he was accompanied by a large crowd of
frrercthpmwe. We were o0 (he oor in the church, and afterwards we swent o the surgicad room.”).
HEr T April 2004 pp. 4-5, 7, 18, 21-23, 29,
9 Sve, e.g, T. 7 Aprl 2004 p. 3 (“We were at the hospital in Ngoma, in a church [L..]. We saw people rupning away.
We went towards the chuech, When we amved at the chuech, the president was dead. We lcarnl of this when wu
reached the fmspital.™).
T T Apnl 2004 pp. 2530
U T Aprnil 2004 p, 30,
I Trial judgement, para, 303,
3 Trial Judgement paras. 318, 323, 553,
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principal perpetrator.* For an accused to be convicled of abetting an offence, it is not necessary (©

prove that he had authority over the principal pcrpehamr,d”

190,  The Appeals Chamber 1s not convineed that the Trial Chamber emred in convicling the
Appellant for abetting the rape of Wilness BG when he gave penmission to Mugonero 10 "ake
away” Witness BG. The Trdal Chamber concluded that the Appellant was o well-known and
influential person in his community, * The Trial Chamber further found that the Appellant knew
that Mugonerg wantcd 1o rape the witness. ™ The Appeals Chamber constders that a rcasonable
tier of fact conld find that the Appellant’s actions m such circumstances amounted 1o
encourageinent which had a substantial affect on Mugonero’s suhsequent rape of Witness BG. In
the Semanza Appeal Judgement, the Appeals Chamber reached a similar conclusion in respect of an
“influential™ accused who encouraged the rape of Tutsi women by giving “permission”™ to rape

thern ™’

19i.  Accordingly, this sub-ground of appeal is dismissed.
E. Conclusion

192, In view of the foregoing, this ground of appeal is dismissed in its citirely.

:: Niekirarbnung Appeal Tudgenwot, paca, 330, Variffevic” Appeal Judgemenl, para, FHI2.
T Of Semanzo Appeal Judgement, para. 257 {relerming o instigation)
LI
Irial Jodgement, para. S04
** Tl Judgement, pars. 323.
7 Nemanza Appeal Tudgement, paras. 256, 257, quoding Semanze Trial Tudgesient, para, 475,

v
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XVI. ALLEGED ERRORS RELATING TO THE ATTACK AT KANYINYA
HILL IN MAY 1994 (GROUND OF APPEAL 14)

193.  The Trial Chamber found that, “on 2 moming during May 1994”7, the Appeilant called the
Tutsi relugees on Kanyinya Hill wogether for a meeting and, when one ol them slepped forward 1o
speak 1o him, he wld the individual that he would retumn the next day with “white people who
would bring tood and medicine”*™ The Trial Chamber concluded that on the nexi day the
Appellunt returned to the hill with buslowds of armed assailants and unleashed a devaslating
attuck. ™ The Tdal Chamber found that the Appellant actively participated in this attack by
shooting ard wounding a Tutsi man named N}ragihigi.""” In making these findings, the Toal
Chamber relied primarily on the evidence of Proseculion Witness AP, which it found was
comoborated by Prosccution Witness AW. ™' The Tral Chamber convicted the Appellant of
genocide in part based on his role in this attack.*** On appeal, the Appellant raises three principal
factual and legal challenges with respect o the Tral Chamber’s assessment of the notice provided
by the Indictment, the Prosecution evidence, and the standard applied in assessing Delence

evidence. ™ The Appeals Chamber addresses these arguments in tum,

A.  Alleged Defect jn the Form of the Indictment

194, The Appellant sobimits that the Toal Chamber emed in law in failing to address his
arguments pertaiming to the vapueness of the Indictment.** He argues that paragraph ${(dy(v) of the

Indictment lacks precision and fails tw plead any physical act of genocide.**

193.  As noted above, the charpes against an accused and the materal facts supporting those
charges must be pleaded with sufficient precision in Lhe Indictment su as o provide notice 1o the
aceused. ™ Applying the standard of notice articulated previously in this Judgement, where an
accused is alleged o have personally commitled a cnime, the indictment must specify the criminal

acts physically commiatted by the accused *7 An indiciment Lacking 1his precision 15 defectve;

U Trial Judgernem, para. 339,
¥ orrial Todgernent, para. 340
** Trial Judgernent, para. 513,

“! Triwl Judgement, paras. 138-3401,

2 Irial Judgement, para, 513

" Nitice of Appeai, p. 20, paras. 70-73; Appellant’s Boef, paras. 791-314.

“ Natice of Appeal, p. 20, para. 73; Appellant’s Brief, para. 314.

% Appeliant's Weiet. para, 314,

W Ser supra puras. 76, 167. See also Gavambitsi Appeal Judgement, para, 49, Nefindabahizi Appeal Judgement, para,
i,

T Gacwmbitsf Appeal Tudgement, para 490 Mtabireffmana Appeal Judgement, para. 32, quoting Kupreshe o al.
Appeal Judgemeni, para, 89, See¢ alser Watmelabahizr Appeal Judgement, para. 16,

&5
Case No. [CTR-95-1B-A 21 May 20007

v




T756/H

however, the defoct may be curad if the Prosceution provides the aceused with timely, clear, and

consistent information detailing the facrual basis underpinning the charge **

196, Paragraph 5(d)v) of the Indictment reads: “in May 1994, Mikaeli Mubimana along with
Clement Kayishemma, Obed Ruzindapa, Mrerahamwe and gendarmes, searched for and attacked
Tutsi civilians taking refuge in Kabakobwa, Gitwa, Kanyinya and Ngendombi hills in Bisesero
area.” In conncetion with this allegation, the Toal Chamber found that the Appellant panicipated in
an attack on Kanyinya Hill in May 1994 and patticipated in this massacre of Tutsis, inter alia, by

shooting and wounding a Tulsi man named Nyagihipi e

197.  On the basis of Lhe Indictment alone, the Appellant could not huve known that he was being
charged with personally shooting and wounding Nyagihigi duning this attack. While in certain
circumstances, “the sheer scale of the alleged crimes makes it impracticable 10 require 2 high degree
of specificity in ruch malters as the dentity of the victims and the dates for the commission of the
erimes™, ™™ this is not the case with respect 1o the shooting of Nyagihigi.*™ The Prosccution should
have expressly pleaded this shooling and wounding as it iad the information in its possession

before the amended Indictment was filed ** The Indictment was thus defective in this respect.

I08. A review of the mial record, iecluding the cvidence of Witness AP, reveals that the
Appellant did nat object 10 the {orm of this paragraph before rial or during the witness's lestimony.
The Prosecution, however, argnes only that the Appellant tailed to raise this argument in the
Defence Closing Bhel*™ The Appeals Chamber notes that the Appellant did challenge the
evidence that he shol and wounded Nyagihigi after the close of the Defence case before closing
argiments in a motion o strike Witness AP's testimony, along with other Prosecution evidence, on
grounds of lack of notice.”™ In deciding on the Appellant’s molion to strike, the Trial Chamber held
that it would consider these issues in reaching final judgement and invited the parlies to present

455

their submissions on this point in theit closing briefs. ™ A review of the Defence Closing Bref also

M Gacuminitsi Appeal Judgemont, pars. 4. See alse Miggenwra ef al. Appeat Judgement, paras, 2§, 6.
“4 Tetal Judpement, paras. 340, 513
M Gacumbitsi Appeal Indgement, pata. 50, ciing Kupredtic er of Appeal Judgemenm, para. 84 Onternal entalions
calieed).
1 The Trial Chamber did oot refer to the Appellant’s inilial visit to assess the sitwation and W call on the refugees to
ﬁz:!ha:r together on the date of the massacre as part of his patlicipation in the attack, Trial Judgemcent, para, 313
® Indeed, the Prosecution had this information in s possession since Witness AP provided siacments betweon 159495
and 20K,
4 Hespendent's Brief, para. 250,
W See The Prosecutor v Mikaeli Mulimona, Case Mo, [CTR-95-1B-T, Kegudie en fvvecevadilind des #maipnayes
redurifs & des choavges ne figurant pes dars Vacte & uccusarion meadifté o iayatg por S¢ sontenues devent fn Chambre
ot et St péractdes por le Procireur, & Septemiber 2004, para. 6 {requesting exclusion of Witness APs lestimony @
art o the basis that the shooling of Myagihigi is nol pleaded in the Indicimesnt).
* Muhimona, Order in Relalivn o Defence Motion on Inadmissibility of Witness Testimony,

O
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reveals that the Appellant raised an objection in it based on the inadequacy of the notice provided

by paragtaph S(d)(v) of the Tndictmenr, ™"

199, The Appeals Chamber has held that, where a Trial Chamber has treated a challenge 10 an
indictment as being adequately raised, the Appeals Chamber should not invoke the warver
docirine.™ Tn this case, the Trial Chamber did not consider the Appeltant’s objection based on lack
ol notice in its motion Lo strike as unumely, but rather invited the parties 10 present arguments on
this point in their [inad submissions. ™™ In addition, although it did not specifically address the
Appelant’s claims of lack of nolice in respect o Lhis paragraph of the Indictment in lhe Tnal
Tudgement, the Tral Chamber considered other similar challenges made in the Delence Closing
Brief as timely, ™ The Appeals Chamber will therefore meat the Appellant’s objection as having
bren Hitely raised, 1t Hierefare falls to the Prosecution to prove that the Appellant’s defence was ot
materially impaircd by this defeet. "

200, The guestion remains whether the defect in the Indictment was cured by subseguent timeiy,
clear, and consistent infommation provided to the Appellant. The Prosecution makes no submissions
o this regard, simply referving to the sheer scale of the massacre, ¥ Nonetheless, the Appeals
Chamber observes that the Appellant conceded in hiis motion o smmike that he received more
detailed noice of this incident in the Pre-Trial Bref. ¥ A review of the summary of Witness AP's
anticipated testimony in an annex to the Pre-Toal Brief contains an allegation that the Appellant
was among the leaders attacking the refitgees at Kanyinya {1l and that sometime in nud-May 1994

she saw the Appeltant shool and kill Nyagihigi.**

2. In the Gacumbitsi Appeal Judgement, the Appeals Chamnber held thar a summary of an
anticipated testimony in an annex to the Progecotion’s pre-tnal brief could, in cenain circumstances,
cure a defect in an indtctment.*™ The present circumstance is similar to that in Gecumbifsi wherc

the summary of the anlicipawed testimony provides greater detail in a consistent manner with a

¢ Mefence Closing Brcl, paras. 177, 194.

T Gacumbitsi Appeal Judgement, pars. 534. See wlse Nrakirstimana Appeal Judgement, para. 23,

8 Muhimana, Otder in Relation o Defence Motion on Inadmissibility of Witness Testimony.

¥ Ser, e, Trial Judgement, paras. 403, 414, 571-575,

M Cacumbitsi Appeal Judgement, para. 51,

*! Respondent’ s Ninef, paras. 249-252.

3 Ser The Prosecufor v Mikaeli Mubimena, Cage Noo ICTR-95-18-T, Requdte en irrecevabilite des (fmafgnages
relutifs & des charpes ne figurandt pag dons Uacte d'accusation modiftd o v ayent pus €6 soutenies devant ta Chambre
0y ayant 818 rétracides por le Progureur, f Scplamber 2004, para. 6.

** Pre-Tral Bricf, Anncx A, p. 2. The summary, however, does nol refer the Appellant o paragraph S{dyv) of 1he
Indictment.

S Gacumien Appeal Judgement, paras. 37, 58. See afso Mtakireieong Appeal Judgement, para. 48 (hobding that 2
wilness stlemetlt, when aken wogether with “unambiguous infurmation”” conlained in a pre-toal boel and its annaxes
may be sulficiont 1o cure 3 defact jn an indicoment). This approach is consistent with ICTY jurisprudence. See Malaritic
aned Martinovte Appeal Judgement, para. 45.

7
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general allegation pleaded in the Indictment.*® The Pre-Trial Brief therefore provided the Appeilant
with timely, ¢lear, and consislent informatien sufficient to put him on notice that he was being
charged with committing senocide by shooting Nyagihigi at Kanyinya Hill. Therefore, the
Appellant bas failed 10 demonstrate that the Tdal Chamber erred in failing to consider his

arglinents perlaining o the vagueness of paragraph 5(d)(v) of the Indictiment.

B. Alleped Errors in the Asscssment of Witnesses AP and AW

202.  The Appellant submits that the Trial Chainber crred in fact in assessing the cvidence of
Wilnesses AP and AW and in making factual findings on the basis of it.*™

203,  The Appellant submits that Witness AW's cvidence reflects that no atlack occwred at
Kanyinya Hi!l because, contrary to his direction, the refugees did not assemble in onler to receive
(he promised humanitarian assistance.*®” The Appeals Chamber, however, is not satisfied that the
Appellant has demonstrated any contradiction between Witness AW's account on this puint and the

Trial Chamber's Andings that an attack ocevrred.

204. The Appellant further subnuts thal Witness AW s account of the Appellant’s conversation
with Witness AW during his initial visit to Kanyinya Hill is implausible and that no reasonable irier
of fact could have relied on this evidence to establish the Appellant’s role in the atack. ™ The
Appellant argues that the conversation could not have taken place because, if, as the Prosecution
contended, the Appellant was armed and a “genocide hanginan [...] whose job was 10 exierininate
Tuisi”, he would have simply killed Witness AW, a Tutsi, at this meeting.*™ The Appeals Chamber
ts not convinced that this submission, which is mere speculation, calls inio guestion the
rcasonahieness of the Trial Chamber's religtice on Witness AW's testimony. This is especially so

because this conversation took place not on the day of the atlack, but earlier.®™

205, Next, the Appellant submits that the Trial Chamber erred in fact in finding that Wilness AW
corroborated Witness AP's evidence in light of several alleged discrepancies herween their accounts

related 1o the timing of the evenls and what transpired during the Appellant’s ipitial mccting with

5 Carumhio Appeal Judgemen, para, 55,

“ Notice of Appeal, p. 20, paras. 70, 71 Appellant’s Boef, paras, 291-304. The Appeliant also points to an apparent
coniradiction between he evidence of Witnesses AP and AW and Wilness BI as 1o the location where the Appellanl
told the telugees to assemble after his imitial visit. Appellam's Bricf, para, 235 Howewer, as the Appellant
acknowledges, the Tral Chamber did ned rely on Witness 81°s testimony in making findings on this ¢vent. Ser Thal
Judgement, para. 338.

“ Appeliant’s Driel, paras, 281, 292,

4% Appellant’s Bricf, paras. 283, 204,

% Appellant’s Brief, para. 294,

*™ Trial Judgement. paras. 329, 338,

6
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the reflugees.” In particular, the Appellant notes that Witness AW described the Appellant arriving
[or the initial visit with Obed Ruzindana and two soldiers and stated that the attack oceurred two
days later.”™ The Appellant submits that. in contrast, Witness AP described the Appellami wmiving
wilh contmunal police and stated that the attack occorred one day later.*’” The Appellant observes
that neither withess placed this event in tmd-May 1994, noting that Witmess AP stated that it
occurred at the beginning of May 1994 Finally, the Appellant's submissions suggest that
Witness AW s description of a group of refugees interacting with the Appellant is inconsistent with

the Trial Chamber’s finding that one individual stepped forwand 1o speak with him,*™

206, The Tnal Chamber did not explicitly assess these discrepancies between the accounts of
Witncsses AP and AW, which, the Appeals Chamber notes, are for the most part readily apparent in
the summacy of their evidence presented in the Trial Judgement.*”® Rather, in assessing their
evidence, the Toal Chamber focused on the similaritics in the accounts of Willesses AW and AP,
noting thar both lestificd that the Appellant amrived in a red vehicle accompanied by others and
promised 1o Telurn with assistance for the refugees ™" The Appeals Chamber ohserves that Lthese
witnesses provided a broadly consistent description and chronclogy of the cvents in queslion and

ATR

notes that Witness AP attested 1o giving estimates with respect to dates and times.” The Appeals
Chamber also finds ne error in the finding that the event occured 1n mid-May 1994, a broad time

frame, which is not inconsistent with the general description provided by the witnesses.™™

207, Moreover, a review of the Trial Judgement reveals that the Trial Chamber relied pomanily
on the evidence of Witness AP in making findings on the details of this event,* While not every
aspect or delail of Witness AP’s account was corroborated by Witness AW, the Appeals Chamber

has consistently held that a Trial Chamber has the discretion to rely on uncarroborated, but

' Appellant's Bricf, paras. 2%6-304.

a2 Appellant’s DBrief, paras. 300, 303,

** Appellzni’s Brief, paras, 300, 301

™ Appellant's Brict, paras. 298, 269,

A Appellont's Brief, paras. 291-2%,

98 Prial Judgemen, paras. 326-329,

T Trial Tudgement, para, 338,

¥ Trial Judgement, pata, 326 (“Witness AP told the Chamber that she could not recall the spevifiv Jales of events tha
oeeurred when she was in the Bizesero Hills.” ).

™ Prosccution Witness AW placed this event hetween 10 and 14 May 1994, T. 14 April 2004 p. 54 "This happened in
the month of May, I would say between the 10th and the Bdth, before the attacks that were launched on Muoyira kbl ™).
Prosec ution Whiiness AP cxtimated that this event ocoured sometime after 8 May 1994, Her testimony reflects that she
arrived in the Bisesero arca on B April 1994 and saw the Appellant there about a monib after her arrival. See Trial
Tudgement, pare. 326 T. 30 Warch 2004 pp. 32,033 0T only pot tw Bascsoro on the 8% [of Apeth §.) Well, we could
pat recell dates. We do net even know the day of the weelk. Might foltowed day. We dido's knew which day it was.
was in the month of May, We had just spent a month in Bisesero.™).

M Trial Judgement, paras, 326-328, 339, 340,

49
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otherwise credible, witness estimony.™' The Trial Chamber detenmined that Wilness AP was

credible,* and the Appeilant has not shown this finding to be erroneous.

208.  Accordingly, the Appellant has not demonstrated that no reasonable iher of fact could have
considered the testimony of Witness AW as corroborating the testimony of Witness AP and made

findings on the basis of their evidence.

C. Alleyed Error io the Assessment of Defence Evidence

209.  The Appellant submits that the Trial Chamber erred in law by applying a stricter standard in
assessing the credibility of Defence witnesses in respect of this gvent than in assessing the
Prosccution evidence and by reversing the burden of proof, leading it 10 reject the Defence
evidence, ™ The Appellant argues that the Trial Chamber accepted a certain degree of vagueness in
assessing descoptions of the events provided by Prosccution wilnesses, noung (that it was
understandable given the passage of me. ** However, the Appeltant asserts that, in assessing the
credibility of Defence witnesses, the Trial Chamber used stinilar vagueness in their accounts 10
reject their evidence. ™ In addition, the Appeilant submits that the Tdal Chamber's rejection of
testimenies of Delence wilnesses who stated that they did not see him during the attack essentally

required him to prove that he did not partictpate in the erimes, °

2100 In assessing the credibility of Delence Winesses DY, DK, DL, and DF, who admatted 1o
parlicipating in varions aflacks in the Bisescro areq, the Trial Chamber observed that they gave
“vague descriptions of the time and place of the attacks in which they partictpated and sketchy
details about their own roles in the killing."* However, the vagueness in their accounts was not the
principal reason for rejecting their evidence. Rather, as the Trial Chamber noted, “[t}he thrust of the
Defcnee evidence was that these wilnesses neither saw the Accused duning the aitacks nor heard,
during gacaca sessions held in prison in Rwanda, that the Accused participated in the attacks.” "
The Appeliant has thus not established that the Trial Chamber errcd by applying a more siringent
standard to jts assessinent of the Defence evidence than in jts assessinent of the Proseculion

evidence,

B Gacumbitsi Appoal Judpement, para. 72,

= T'rial Yudgernent, para. 338,

2 Nortee of Appeal, p 20, para. 72: Appellant's Upsef, paras. 305-313.

8 appellant’s Rriaf. paras. 306, 108.

% Appellant’s Tiriel, paras. 307, 309, 310, 313,

' Appeltant’s Brel, paras. 312, 113,

7 Tral Indgement, para. 343

¥ Trial Judgement, para, 342, For the same reasons, the Trial Chamber rejected the evidenes of Defence Wilness DD
wiho was a refiages on Kanyinya Hill af the time, See Trial Judgement, para, 343,

70
Casu No. ICTR-95-1B-A 21 May 2007

Nl




751/H
21, Morover, the Appeals Chamber is alse not satisfied that the Appellant has shown that, in
rejecting this Defence evidence, the Trial Chanber reversed the burden of proot, Noting it “these
attacks involved thousands of assailants spread over a large area”, the Trial Chamber simply
refllected the limited prohative value that evidence ol this nature has in the context of 4 large-seale

assault ¥ Acconlingly, the Appeals Chamber dismisses these arguments.
D, Conclusion

212, In view of the foregoing, this ground of appeal is dismissed in its entirety,

™ Trial Fudgement, paras. 342, 343,
T1
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XV¥IL. ALLEGED ERRORS RELATING TO THE MURDER OF PASCASIE
MUKAREMERA (GROUND OF APPEAL 15)

213.  The Trial Chamber found that, in mid-May 1994 on Rugona Hill, the Appellant cut a
pregnant woman, Pascasie Mukaremera, with a machete and removed her child, who cried before
«J:..fing,”";lﬂ The victim died as a result of the injurits.'m The Trial Chamber convicled the Appellant

. - , . ; 4
of murder as a crime against humanity, in parl based on this event.*

214,  The Trial Chamber found that the relevant paragraph of the Indictment was defective with
respect to the timing of this event, its location, and the form of the Appellant’s participation in the
crime.™* Paragraph 7(d)i) of the Indictment reads: “Towards the end of May 1994, at Nyakiyabo
hill in the Bisesero area an Interahamwe named Gisambo killed Pascasie Mukarcima, on instructions
of Mikaell Muhimana.” The Trial Chamber observed that the Appellant disputed this allegation
based on lack ol notice with respect to the lime and place of the event, but not as to the nawre of his

* The ‘fial Chamber considersd that a suinmary of the testimonics of

role in the muarder.
Frosccution Witnesses Bl and AW, contained in an annex to the Prosecution's Pre-Trial Brief, as

well as the disclosure of Witness AW's wotten statement cured these defeets ™

215, On appeal, the Appellant subrmats that the Tral Chamber erred in law™™ in convicting him of
the munler of Pascasie Mukaremera because the Indictment failed 1o gpive him proper notice of the
time and place of the crime and his role in #**" In addition, he disputes the Tral Chamber’s
canciusian that he failed to contest the variance beiween the description of him in the Indictment a3
instructing Gisambo to kill Pascasie Mukarcmera and the finding that he personally committed the
crime.*™ He argues that this variance was not simply a defect in the legal qualification of the crime,

but instead indicated that the ndictment pleaded a different act.'™

216.  The Prosceulion responds that the Appellant had sufficient notice ol the time and location of

the murder of Pascasic Mukaremera and his role in it through the Pre-Trial Brief and through the

N Trial Judgement. pacas, 402, 570, 376,

! Trial Judgement, para. §76.

2 Peial fudgement, paras, 37Q, 576, 382, 543,

" Trial Judgememt, paras. 404, 574.

** Trial fudgement, paras. 403, 40 575, The Trial Chamber refers only (o “ihe Defence submission' without referring
t a particular decument. The Toal Chamber appuears 10 be relerring to Lhe Defence's Closing Drief.

% Peial Judgement, paras. 403, 404, 574,

“* The Appellant refers 1o dhis as an error of facl. See Appellant’s Bricf, para. 315, However, the Appeals Chamber
treats clams of lack of notice as omors of law. See, e.g., Gacumbirsd Appeal Judgement, para, 46, Miyftegeka Appenl
Judgement, para. 191.

7 Notice of Appeal, paras, 74, 75, Appellam's Bricf, paras, 115-340.,

¥ Appeltant's Briefl, paras. 331-334.

Y appellant’s Brief, paras. 325-328, 340,
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disclosure of the statement of Witness AW.™™ The Prosccution acknowledges that the Indictment
was defective as to the legal qualilication of the Appellant’s role in the crime, but that it was within
the Trial Chamber's discretion to reclassify the Appellant’'s mode of participation and enter a

501 5 .
The Prosecution

fanding of guilt for personal comimission, rather than ordenng the murder.
funther adds that the Appetiant failed to ebject to the legat qualification of the cnime at trial and has
failed to demonstrate prejudice on appeal.™™ In this respect, the Prosccution observes that ondering

and personal commission are both direct forms of participation in a crime.™”

217 Applving the standard of notice articulated previously in this Judgement, where an accused
is alleged to have personally commitied a crime, the indictment must specify the criminal acts
physicaily committed by the accused.®™ Aq indictment lacking this precision is defective; however,
the defect may be cured if the Prosecution provides the accused with timely, clear, and consistent

inforination detailing the factual basis underpinning the charge ™

218.  As the Trial Chanber observed, the Indictment is defective because it lails Lo allege the
correct time and location of the murder and that the Appellant physically committed it.¥™ The
Appellant, thercfore, could nol have known, en the basis of the (ndictment alone, that he was heing
charged with personally killing Pascasic Mukaremern in mid-May 1994 on Rugona Hill. A roview
of the transcripts of Prosecution Witness AW, whose uncorroborated testimony supporls this
conviction, reveals that the Appellant did not make a specilic objection at the time the evidenee was
presented. However, he did raise an objection based oun lack of notice in his Defence Closing
Brief.”" Although the Prosecution subimits that the Appellant failed 0 make a contemporaneous
ohjection to the evidence of Witness AW at trial,”™ the Trial Chamber did not describe the
Appeltant’s objection based on lack of notice in its closing briel’ as untimely. The Appeals Chamber
has held that, where a Tnal Chamber has trealed a challenge to an indictment as being adequatcly

raised, the Appeals Chamber should not invoke the waiver doctrine.”™

219, The question anses whether the Appellant's objection pertained solely to the time and place

of the murder or whether be also objected to the description of his alleged role in the killing, Both

'“?" Respondent’s Briel, piras, 254.264.
M espondent’s Brief, para, 261
% pespondent’s Brief, paca. 263,
% pespondent’s Brief, para. 264,

Rl sepra paras 76, 167, 195, See afse Oacambiend Appeal Tudgement, para. 49; Nokingimuna Appeal Tudgement,
para. 32, quoting Ruprefkic’ ef al. Appeal Tudgement, para, 89, Nefindabaftizi Appeal Judgement, pata. 16,
Gacumbinf Appeal Judgement, para. 49, See alie Maperwra of ol. Appeal Judpomen, paras. 28, 65,

" Trial fudgemen, paras. 403, 404, 574,

* Nefence Closing Bricf, parax. 318, 321

" Respondent's Brief, para. 253,

" Gucumbitsi Appeal Tudgement, para. 54. Sce atso Neakirpiinang Appeal Tudgement, para, 23,
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the Trial Chamber in its Judgement, and lhe Prosccution on appeal, consider that the Appellant
failed 0 dispute the defect in the descrption in the Indictnent of his role in the cnme and, in this

) .
M However, a review of the Defence

respect, only challenged evidence relawed to it on its merits.
Closing Brief reveals that the Appellant also challenged the Indictment based on its lailure to plead
his physical perpetration of (his cime.’'! Accordingly, the Appeals Chamber considers that the
Appellant raised a timely objection to all delective aspecls of this paragraph of the Indictment al
trial. It therefore {alls to the Prosceution w prove that the Appellant's defence was not matetially

impaired by these deleets.™?

220.  The guestion remaing whether the defect in the Indictment was cured by the disclosure of
Witness AW's wrillen statcment and the summary of the evidence of Proscouuion Witnesses Bl and
AV in an annex 1o the Prosceation’s Pre-Tral Brief. On appeal, the Prosecution does not pomt o
any additional filings or oral submissions beyond those mentioned by the Trial Chamber when

considering whether the Indictment defecls werc curcd,”?

221, The Appeals Chamber ohserves that the summary of Witness BI's testimony in the anngx
refers o a different, although strikingly similar event alleged]y occuring on Nyakivabo Hill, rather
than (o Lthe one presented at wial, occuming on Rugona Hill.""™ The sunmmary provides:

In Bisegerd the witness was hiding in onc of the hills, Nyakiyabu [sic] saw Muhimana shoet dead

a child Mukasine was carrying and procced too cape Mukasine. Afecr raping the girl, Gizamhbo
raped the sunwe pitl helore shooting her.

The summary does nol indicate that this anticipaled testimony goes (0 Paragraph 7{d){(i) of the
Indictment, which is al issue.’” Moreover, lhe summary clarifies in a column entitlcd
“Reconfirmations/Notice on New Evidence/Discrepancies” that {Gisamba, not Muohimana, killed

Mukasine’s child, who was seven years old, not an infant *'®

222, The summary of Witness AW's anticipated testimony in the annex to the Pre-Trial Bried,
based on Witness AW's pre-trial statement dated 12 December 1999,""7 states in pertinent poan.:

“...] Wimess fled 10 Rugona hill. In mid-May 1994, watness saw Muhimana opening the stomach

4 Trial Tudgement, para. 375; Kespondent's Briol, para, 263,

! Delence Closing Brict, paras. 318, 321.

M Gacumbitsi Appedl Judgement, para. 5. See alve Nugerara of o, Appeal Tudgement, paras. 31, 133,

*12 Ser Respondent's Bricf, para. 256.

" See Pre-Trial Brief, Annex A, p. 4.

" See Pro-Triat Brief, Anncx A, F- 4 Instead, it refers 10 Maragraphs 5(c) and &(c) of the Indictmcnl which relate o the
eveus il the bMugomery Comples, T

"1 Cee Pre-Triad Briel, Annex A, pp. 1, 4.

" See Bx, I 16(M).
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of a pregnant Tutsi woman calied Pascasie Mukaremera.”™™ This summary further indicates tha

this information is relevant to paragraph 7{d i) of the Indictment, which is quoted above,™"”

223, In the Gacumbitsi Appeal Judgement, the Appeals Chamber held that a summary of an
anticipated westimony in an annex to the Prosecution’s pre-trial brief could, in certain circumstances,
cure a defect in an indictment.”™® In that case, the indictment alleged generally that “Gacumbitsi
kilicd persons by his own hands™ **' The Appeals Chamber found this allegation to be vague, in
particular as it refered 1o the physical commission of murder of a particular person.”?* However, a
summary of anticipated lestimony contained in an annex to the pre-trial brief referred to a specific
killing and connected it to the crime of penocide.’?’ The Appeals Chamber also observed that the
summary did not conflict with any other informalion that was provided (o the accused and was
provided in advance of rial. ™ The information in the annex to the pre-trial brief was thus found to
be timely, clear, and consistent and (o provide sufficient notice of the allegation ol the specific

murder menlioned in the :f.uJ!'an'lzlrj.f.525

224, The circumstances presented in this instance, however, are different. The summary of
Witness AW's anticipated testimony does not simply add preater detail in a consistent manner with
amere general allegation already pleaded in the Indictment. Rather, the sumimary modifies the time,
location, and physical perpelralor, matters that were alceady specifically pleaded in the Indictment,
albeit in a materially different manner. In such circumstances, the summary of Witness AW's
anticipated testimony in he annex of the Pre-Trial Rrief and the disclosure of his witness statement
do not provide clear and consistent information sufficient to put the Appellant on notice that he was
being charged with physically committing the murder of Pascasie Mukaremera on Rugona Hill in
mid-May 1994, The summary of Witness AW’s teslimony docs not supplement or provide greater
detail, but matenally allers key facets of this paragraph. This discrepancy should have been
immediately apparent to the Prosecution as it prepared its Pre-Trial Boef and listed the anticipated
testitnuny of Witness AW in support of & paragraph of the [ndictment that materially conllicted

with it, i particular given that the Proseculion had shortly prior to that added this allegation Lo the

" pee-Trial Brief, Annex A, p. 6.

M PraTrial Mrief, Annex A, p. 6.

M Carwmbirsi Appeal Tudgement, paras. 57, 3R, See afse Niakirutimana Appeat Judgement, para. 48 {hobding that
Wwiiness stattonenis, when laken ogether with “unambiguous iformation™ contained in ¢ pre-ldal bref and its anoexes
may be sufficiem 1o cure a defect in an indictnenty. This is consisient with TCTY jurispradence. See Neletlic and
Merttnowic Appeal Tudgement, para. 43.

2 Gagumbitst Appeal Judgement, para. 38

% Gacumbitst Appeal Judgement, para. 50

! Gacambesi Appeal ladgemuent, paras. 57, 58

S Carumbitst Appeal ludgement, para, 58

T Geacumbitxi Appeal udgement, para. 58
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L5 . .
¥ The Prosecution however did

Indictment for the purpose of providing specificily o the Accusced.

not seek 1o clanfly this discrepancy with a clear, tinely, and consistent communication,

225 lo addition, contrary 10 the observation o the Trial Judgement. the summary of Witress BI's
lestimony did not provide any notice that the location of the crme for which the Appellant was
convicted is Rugona Hill because the summary appears to refer 1o a diffcrent event on Nyakivabo
Hill.™*' Rather, the suminary of Wimess BI's testimony simply adds greater confusion given its

mention of Nyakiyszbo Hill, which is in fact the location of the erime pleaded in paragraph 7(d)}i).

226.  Moregver, the Appeals Chamber is not persuaded that these defects were not prejudicial, as
indicated by the Tdal Chamber, because the witness's lestilmony with respect to the dale of the
incident was consistent with his statemment; because Rugona Hill, like Nyakiyabo Hill, is in the
Bisesero area; and because the Indictiment is mersly defective in its legal qualification of the
Appellant's act.™ Ficst, the question of proper netice is not whether the witness's testimony 18
constitent with his or her prior statement, bul rather whether the aotice provided is clear, consistent,

9 Second. as 1o the fact thut Rugona HiM, like Nyakivabo Hill, is in the Disesero area,

and tmely.
in the Niyitegeke Appeal Judgement, the Appeals Chamber concluded that the Trial Chamber erred
in convicting the Appellant based on his panticipation ir a massacre where the Indictment rcferred
only penerally to the Biseseru area, which did net give notice of a specific attack at 8 named
location on a specitic date,*™ Finally, the defect is not simply a mischaracterization of the legal

gualilication of the crime, bul an error in the description of the material facts of the crime itself.

227, In sum, the failure to properly plead Pascasie Mukaremera's murnder in the Indicement was
not cured and the Prosecution has failed to rebut the presumption of matenial impannent of the
defence. Accondingly, the Appeals Chamber finds, Judge Schomburg dissenting, that the Trial
Chamber erred in law in relying on this evidence in convicting the Appellant for this murder. His

conviction for murder as a come againsl humanity for liis event on this count is theretore

S Muliimana, Decision on Molion 0 Amend Indictmend, paras. 7, 9 ("A comparison of the gencral allegations and
facts described in the cwrent Indictment with the detsiled account in the proposed [ndiciment shows that the fairness of
the Lrial will be very substantally enhanced. [,..] The new Indiciment provides more pecise particulars az 1o the
Jocation of killings and other eriminal ac15. [, .| Rather than changing of exiending geographical scope, (he effect of the
praposed Indiciment is o specify more precise locations within the broad area defined in the corrent Indicument. 1n that
sense, the Defence cannot reasonably argue that it has had no nolics that events at these Jocations are part of the
FEOSBCuLi:m'S vase"h
;t See Pre-Triu] Brief, Annex A, p. 4,

Trial ludgement, paras, 403, 404, 571514,
2 racumbitsi Appeal ludgement, para. 49, See also Muogernre ¢f ol Appeal Judgement, paras. 28, 65,
¥ Nivitegeku Appeal Jedgement, paras. 279235
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invalidated. As a consequence, the Appeals Chamber need not address the Appellant’s remaining

arpuments under this ground of appeal.””

228.  This error of law, however, docs not invalidate the conviction of the Appetlant for murder
hecausc this conviction did not rest solely on this murder. [n addition, though the Trial Chamber
deseribed this particular attack as a “highly ageravaling factor” 7 the Appeals Chamber is not
satlsfied that this ervor invalidates the Appellant’s sentence of imprisonment for the remainder of
his life in view of the ather crimes™™ as we)l as the other aggravating lactors considered by the Trial
Chamber, ™ Accordingly, the Appeals Chamber finds no basis for distucbing (he Appellant’s
conviction for murder as a cnme againsi bumanity despie its finding that the Trial Chamber crred

in finding this incident established.

M See Nutice of Appcal, paras, T6-73: Appellant’s Boef, paras. 342-346.

" Trial Judgement, para, 612,

" In addition 1o she Appellani’s convictions for penocidc and rape as a crime against humanity, for which he was
senfenced respectively o twa concumrent Woms of lile impriscrment, the convicuion and ife senlcoey Tor murder also
rests on Ihe Appellant’s commission o or complicity in the killing of five other individuals. See Trial Jodgement, para.
570,

M See genergify Trial Tudgement, paras, 604616 (disc ussing the Appeifant’s individual eircomstances).

T
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XYIII. ALLEGED FRROR RELATING TO THE SENTENCE (ROUND OF
APPEAL 16}

229, The Trial Chamber, having tound the Appellant guilly of genocide {(Count 1}, rape as a
crime against humanity {Count 33, and murder as a come against humagity (Count 4}, sentenced
him &0 tprisonment for the remainder of his life on cach of the three counts,™ The Trial Chamber
tound mo mitigating circumstances.™ In so doing, the Trial Chamber noted that the Appellant did
ni¥ “extensively address the issuc of mitigating circumstances™. > The Trial Chamber quoted the
Appelant’s closing arguments, stating that he would rely on the Trial Chamber’s “knowledge of the
case file™ and its “high sensc of justice™ 1o impose a “proportionate” sentence that reflected the

“precise role that [he] might have played™*™

230 The Appellami submits that the Trial Chamber ered in law by failing to consider any
mitigatmp circumslances and in imposing on him an excessive and disproponionate sentence,”
Referring o Arlicle 23 of the Statute, Rule 1031 of the Rules, andd the jurisprudence of the 1ICTR and
ICTY. the Appellam assens that the Tral Chamber was obliged to constder mitigating
circumstances.™ He argues that the following lactors should have mitigated his scitence, First, ke
had no prior criminal convietions and had a good reputation in Gishyita Commune.”' Sceond, he
was only thirty-three years old during the relevant period and s the father of nine young children. ™
Third, during the events in 1994, he protected several Tutsis. ™ Finally, he submits that, given his
relatively Jow position in the Rwandan administrative siructure and existing case law, his theee life

544
sentences ae unreasonable.

233, Pursuam to Rule iDI¢(B¥ii) of the Rules, a Trial Chamber is required to 1ake into account
any Witigating circumsiances in detenmining a sentence. ™ The accused, however, bears the burden
of establishing mitigating factors by a preponderanee of the evidence *** The Appeals Chamber
notes that the Appeliant made no sentencing submissions at tral ™ In such circumstances, the Trial

Chamber’s delennination that there were no miligating circumstances was within its discretion and

** Trial Judgement, paras. 618, GE9.
% Trial Judgement, para. 616,
7 Trial Judgement, para, 602
Tral fudgement, para. 502,
*H - Notice uf Appeal. pp. 21-22. paras., 79-85: Appeilam's rief, paras, 347372,
Aple]nn_l 5 Bricl, paras, 352, 354,
Appc]lnm s Brief, paras. 356-350,
2 sppellant's Briel, paras. 360-363,
4 1’,i'lnr.ll[:n;,l!.'mt s Bricf, para. 366.
o ** Appellant’s Bricf, para. 367-374,
¥ Kanmukandi Appeal Judgement, para- 334; Kafefffeli Appral Judgement, para. 294,
i k’ajefyeh Appeal Judgement, para. 254,
7 Trial Tudgemen, para. 602,

A
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does not constitute a legal error. If an accused fails o put forward relevant information, the Appeals
Chamber considers that, as a general rule, @ Tdal Chamber is not under an obligation to seek out
information that counsel did not see fit to put before it at the appropriate time.”™ Rule 86(C) of the
Rules clearly indicates that sentencing submissions shall be addressed during closing argwmenis,
and it was thercfore the Appellant™s preropative (o identify any mitigating circumstances instead ol
directing (he Trial Chamber's attention o lhe record in general. The Appellant is simply advancing
arguments on appeal that he failed to put forward at the tr1al stage, and the Appeals Chamber “does

not consider itself 1o be the appropriate (orum at which such material should first be raised”. >

232, In any event, the Appellant’s submissions {ail to demonstrale that the Trial Chamber's
findintg of "no mitigaing circumstances™ is unrcasenable.”* The Appellanl cites several cases,
which, in his view, suggest thai his age, status as a father. lack of prior criminal history, and his

assistance 1o Tulsis should have mitipated the sentence.’™

Notwithstanding the tact that the
Appellant’s submissions do not identify evidence in the record substantiating his ¢laim regarding
his prior criminal record, ™ the Appellant points 10 no authority suggesting that the circumstances
he now identifies require, as a maltter of law, the mitipation of his sentence. The Appeals Chamber

notes thal comparning senlences with other cases that have been subject 1o final determination is of
3

limited assistance in challenging onc’s sentence.™

233, Addiionally, \he Appellant’s arguments, citing the Tadic Sentencing Appeal Judgement
discussing the principle of gradabion, are cqually uppersuasive. The ponciple suggests that
sentences should be graduated, that is, that the most senior levels of the command structure should
atract the scverest senlences, with less severe sentences for those lower down the structare,™
While the Tnal Judgement makes no explicit reference to the role played by the Appeilant in the
larger Bwandan polilical or administratve stuclure, it did consider the Appeltant’s position, and,

555

contrary o his assertions, determined that he exercised influpnes. ™ Moreover, the principle is

subject 1 the proviso that the pravity of the offences eommitied is the primary conswderation when

54K

Kupredlid el ul. Appeal Judgement, para. 414,

" Kamnhanda Appeal Judgement, para. 354, quoting Kvedcka et of, Appeal Judgement, para, 674.

S Tia] ludgetent, pica. 616,

L Appullant's Bricl, paras. 356-365, citing Bfufkid Trial Judgement, paras. TTE-TRO, TR, felicid Tra! Judgement, para.
124; Jelisic’ Appeal Judgemenl, paras, 128-132; Frrundfije Trial Judgement, para. 284; Celehici Case Trial Judgemunt,
paras. 1278, 1283; Erdemovic T Sontencing Judgoment, paras. 108, 111; Erdemeneic If Sentencing Judgement, para. 16;
Serurhgge Scodencing Judgement, para. 3% Kevishema and Razindane Semeneing Ovder, 21 May (9949, parz. 12, The
Appeals Chamber notes that the Appellant makes no specific refercoce W casts suppotuing his ¢ontention thal his
assstance Lo Tulsis warrants mitigation, Sve Appellant’s Brief, para, 366,

¥ Appeflani's Brief, para, 357. The Appeals Chamber noles that elsewhere in the Appellant’s Bried, the Appellant cites
i:;.;jd::nce m ihe recotd supporting his contention that he assisled Tutsis, See Appellant’s Bricl, paras, 3%-44,

> Sew Bahid Scencing Appeal Judgement, para, 32; Celebici Case Appeal Judgement, paras. 717, 720, 821,

** Musema Appeal Judgement, paras, 382, 383, Sve also Tudic Senteacing Appeal Judgement, parus. 55, 50; Celebicy
Case Appeal Tudgement, para. 349, Adekyovsii Appeal Judgement, para. 184,

*¥ Tria} Judgement, para. 604.
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imposing a senlence.™" The ICTY Appeals Chamber has held that “[i]n certain circumstances, the
gravity of the coime may be so greal thal even following consideration of any mitigaling factors,
and despite the fact that the accused was not senior in the so-called command structure, a very

severe penalty is nevertheless justified =’

234, Imally, the Appeals Chamber considers that the Trial Chamber correctly noted that the
sentence should be commmensurate with the gravity of the offences and the degrece ol liability of the
convicted person.™ In addition, the Trdal Chamber also noted its obligation to consider the
individual circumslances of the Appellant and his role in the crimes, including any imiligating
circumstances, but found it appropriate to impose the maximum sentence.”™ In imposing lLife
sentenices om adl counts, the Tral Chamber recounted the vast impact, as well as the violent and
cruel nature of the Appellant’s conduet.®™ The Appellant makes no subunission suggesting that the
crimes for which he was convicted, many of which invelved his direct participation, are not grave.
The Appeais Chamber recalls that even where mitigating circumstances exist, a Toal Chamber “is
not precluded from imposing 2 sentence of life imprisonment, where the gravity of the offence
requires the tmposition of the maximum sentenee provided for ™! Mindful of the gravity of the
Appellant’s ¢cnmes, the Appeals Chamber does not find, even if it accepted the Appellant's
submissions as to mitigaudpg lactors, any discernible error in sentencing that has resolted in a

migcarriage of justice,

235, Accordingly, this ground of appeal is dismissed.

5 Musema Appeal Tudgement, para, 382 Cetebisi Case Appead Judgement, paras. $47-849; Aleksovski Appeal
Tudgement, para. 182

3 E’Et’f’biﬁ"f Cerxer Appral Judgemem, para. 847,

™ Trial Judgemenl, paras. 591, 617.

™ Trial Judgement, paras. 551, 594, 604-417. The Appeals Chamber considered the impact of its decision 1o reverse
the Trial Chamber's findings on the Appellam’s role in the rapes of Langnida Kamuking and Goretti Mukashyaka under
Ground of Appeal 8 a3 well as in killing Pascasic Mukaremera, which the Trel Chamber considered as a “highly
ah%gra\-'aling Mactor”, under Ground of Appeal 15,

™ See Trial Judgement, paras. S04-615.

' Nivitegeka Appeal Judgement, para. 267, quating Murerma Appenl Judgement, para, 396,
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XIX. DISPOSITION

For the foregoing reasons, THE APPEALS CHAMBER,

PURSUANT 1o Article 24 of the Statute and Rule 118 of the Rules: I

NOTING the wollen submissions of (be parties and their oral arpumenis presented at the hearing

ot 15 January 2007,
SITTING in open session;

AFFIBMS vnanimously the Appellant's convichon for genocide (Count 1); and AFFIRMS

unanimously his sentence of imprisonment for the remainder of his life entered {or that convicion,;

ALLOWS, in pan, Judpge Shahabuddeen and Judge Schomburg dissenting, the Appeilani’s eighth
ground of appeal; REVERSES, ludge Shahabuddeen and Judge Schamburg dissenting, the Trial
Chamber’s finding thal he bears criminal responsibility for the rapes of Goretti Mukashyaka and
Lanpuida Kamukina; AFFIRMS unammously his conviction for rape as a crime against humanity
{Count 1) in ali other respects, and AFFIRMS nnanimously his sentence of imprisonment for the

remainder of his life entered for that conviclion,

ALLOWS, in part, Judge Schomburg dissenting, the Appellant's [ftecnth ground of appeal;
REVERSES, Judge Schoinhurg dissenting. the Trial Chamber's finding that he bears criminal
responsibility fot the murder of Pascasic Mukaremera; AFFIRMS unanimously his convietion far
murder a5 4 crime azainst humanity (Count 4} in all other respects; and AFFIRMS unznimously his I

sentence of imprisoament for the cemainder of his life emtered for that convicion;

DISMISSES ananimously the Appellant’s appeal of his convictions and sentetices in all olher

TeRpECEs;
RULES that this Judgement shull be cnforced immediateiy pursuant to Rule 119 of the Rules;

QORDERS, in accordance with Rule [03(B) and Rule 107 of the Rules, that Mikaeli (also known as
Mika) Muhimana is to remain in the custody of the Tnbunal pending his transter to the State jn

which s sentence will be served.

Bl
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Done in English ang French, the English text being authoritative.

W @LA PSRy G W

? R
Fausto Pocar Mohained Shahabuddeen Mchmet Giiney
Presiding: Judge Juiige Tudge
Liu Dagun Wolfgang Schomburg
Judge Judge

Judge Mohamed Shahabuddeen and Judge Wollgang Schomburg append a Joint Partly Dissenting
Opinion,

Judge Wollgang Schomburg appends a Parlly Dissenting Opinion on the Interpretation of Lhe Right
tr be Informed.

Dated this 21st day of May 2007 at Arusha, Tanzapia,

fScal of the Tribunal]
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XX, JOINT PARTLY DISSENTING OPINION OF JUDGE
SHAHABRUDDEEN AND JUDGE SCHOMBURG

1. We are in general agreement with the cutcome of the judgement, However, in relafion to

Graund of Appeal 8 we cannot agree with the finding of the magority. The Trial Chamber found:

[TIhe wilness saw the Accused take the girls inlo his house: she heard the victims scream,
mentcning the Accused™s rame and swiiog tat they “did not expect bim Lo do thal” © them;
lnally the wilness saw e Accused lead the victing oul of his house, stark naked, and she noticed
thiut 1hey were wakking “with their l=gs apart™.!
This was based on the evidence ol Witness AP. The credibility of Wimess AP was not at stake. The
appellate exercise was confined o determining the reasonablencss of the Tdal Chamber's finding

that (he accused had raped the girls in accondance with the applicable standard of proof.

2. {t was open to the Trial Chamber to detennine that rape had been committed, Indesd, we do
not find that the Appeals Chamber holds otherwise, Tts difficulty was whether it was the appellant
who raped the gils. On this, we consider thal it was open to the Trial Chamber 1o find that if was
the appellant who raped the girls: it was he who led them into his house, who Jed them om of it, and
whose name they called out sayving that they “did not expect him to do that” {o them. Furlierimore,
when he led them out of the bousc they were Vstark naked” and were walking “with (heir legs

apar”.

3 There might have been other possibilides. But it is common (0o come sileations that there
might have been alternative possibilines. Jt is the function of the tral court (f it can} to sort out
these possibilities. The Trial Chamber found that it could sort out the situation. In our view, il
cannot be said thal Lhe inference which it drew did not gceord with the standard of proof in that no

reasonable trier of fact could have come to this conclusion beyond reasomable douht,

4. We consider that no imervention by the Appeals Chamber is warranted. In conseyuence, we

respectfully dissent.

" Trial Judgetment, para. 32,
B3
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Done in English and French, the English text being authoritative.
’ <
Muohamed Shahabuddeen Wollrang Schomburg
Judge Judge
Dated this 21% day of May 2007 al Arusha, Tanzania,
[Seal of the Tribunal]
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XXI. PARTLY PISSENTING OPINION OF JUDGE SCHOMBURG ON THE
INTERPRETATION OF THE RIGHT TO BE INFORMED

1. I am in general agreement with the oulcome of the Judgement. However, 1 am concemedd
about the finding by the majority of the Appeals Chamber in relation te Groond of Appeal 15 that
the Trial Chamber erred in law when relying on Uhe evidence presented by the Prosecution in the
attachments of the Pre-Toal Bocf in relation to the murder of Pascasie Mukarcmera. Therefore, 1
wish to ofter some remarks on ihe right of the accosed to be infermed prompily and in detail about

the nature and cause of the chacge against lim.

2. The right of the accused 1o be infonned abont the charpes is a fundamenial guarantee of the
faimess of proceedings. Reflecting (his - repeating verbatim the wording of A, 14(3)(a) and (b)
Intemnational Covenant on Civil and Political Rights of 16 December 1966, to which inter alia
Article 7{a) of the African Charter on Human and Peoples Rights' of 26 June 1981° makes

reference - the Statute of the Tribunal includes the following pravisions:

Article 21 Eighns of e accused

[...14 inthe determination of zay charge against tho accused pursuant (o the present Statule, the
accused shall be entitled o e following mitiimem guaraniees, it Toll egaality:

{a) o De infivmesd promptly and in detail in 2 language whicly he ondestands of the nature and
catge o the charge apainst him,

(b} 4o have adequale time and fagilitics for the prepacation of his defonce and o communicane witl
counsel of his own choosing: {...].

3 This provision also corresponds o the rights guaranteed in muny other human rights
conventions. For example, Anticle 6(3) of the European Convention for the Proection of Human
Rights and Fundamental Freedoms of 4 November 1950 readls:

Everyene churged with a eniminal offonce has the following minimum rights:

fa) 12 be informed prompily, in o language which he wnderstands aod in detail, of the nawre aod
cause of the accusation against bimg

b 1o lrave adoguate time and facilitics for the preparadon of his defence; {...].

' Anicic 14(%) of which rcads: “t the determination of any criminal charge against bim, evervonu shal, be entitled 4o
the Following minimum guarantces, in full cqualily: {a) Ta be infotmed promptly and in deteil in langeage which be
trderstands of the natwre and cauvse of {lx charge against hion; {b) To have adequate tme and facilinics Tor the

Freparmicm of his defence and to comtiunicats with counsel of his choosing. [ 1"
OAU Doc. CABLEG/EV WRev 5. The Africar Charter if Fluman and Penples' Rights was adopted on 27 June 1981
al the 15" Crdinary Session of the Assembly of Heads of Stae and Government in Banjul, Gambia. It criceed inig force

or 21 Detober 19806,
a5
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4. Tn the case at hand the Indictiment alleged the accused (0 have instructed another person to
commit mwder. It informed the accused of the legal nalure of the charge brought against him
(committing murder), but did not inform the accused in detail aboul the underlying leclual
allegations. It has to be noted, however, that the sumunary of Winess AW's anticipated tesimony,
as appended (o the Pre-Trial Brief’, gives sufficiently clear and consistent information to notify the
Appellant uneguivocally that he was charged with physically committing the murder of Pascasic
Mukaremera on Rugoena Hill in mid-May 1994, Tt indicated the time, place and inanner in which the

crime was committed, The relevant part of the annex reads as follows:

Wirness tled o Rugona hill. In mid-bay 1994, witm;s saw Muhimana opening the stomach of a
pregoant Twsi woman called Pascasic Mukarcmera,

This summary refers to paragraph 7(d)i} of lhe Indictment, thus linking these detailed factual
allegations unambiguously 1o the charge on this unique conduct. The reference to Witness AW s
statemnent rmakes 1t abundantly clear that the Appellant was alleged to have committed the murder
himself and not to have instructed angther person to do il, Moreover, the different afleped crime
sccnes are in the same region and the difference between the end of May and mid-May is nol

substantial as there )s po doubt about the concrete alleged crime.

5. The Indictment is the first guiding instrument for the criminal proceedings. According to the
juntsprudence of the Trhunals, however, the Indictment is nol to be seen in isviation, Other sources
of information have 1o be taken into consideration as well, such as the Pre-Trial Brief including

appended witness slatemncals.

In Gucumbitst the Appeals Chamber held:

The charges aganst an accused and the material facts supporting those charges must be pleaded
with sulficicnt precision in the Indiciment so as o provide notice © the accused. The Appeals
Chamber has held that “criminal acts that were physically commined by the accused personally
must be 221 forh in the indictment speeifically, including whore feasible 'the identity of the victim,
the ime and place of the events and Ihe msans by which the acts were committed. ™ [Footnote 117:
Neatirutimana Appeal Tudgement, para. 32, quobing Kupredife et al. Appeal Judgement, paca, $9]
An indiciment laeking this precision may, however, be cured if the Prosecution provides the
acensed with umciy, clear and consistent information detailing the factual basis underpinning he
charge. [Foownote |18 Mokirnfimana Appeal Judgement, para. 27, refecring to Kuprafhid of of
Appeal Tudgement, para. 114] When an appellant raises a defect in the indictmen for (he first time
on appeal, then he bears the burden of showing that his ability (@ prepare his defence was
malerialy impaired. [Foolaoie 119 Niyfegeka Appral Judgement, para. 200 Eeadha et of
Appeal Judgemeni, para. 33] In casus where an accused has raised the issue of lack of notice
belnre the Tral Chamber, in contrasi, the burden rests an the Prosecuton to demonstraie that the

! Pre-Trial Brief, Appendix A, page 6.
] .
ibid.
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aceused’s ability W prepare a defenee was nol matcrully impaired. [Feotnote 1200 Nivitegeka
Appeal Jodgement, para. 200; Kvodha of 2l Appeal Judgemeni, para. 35]

In Matetitid and Martinevic the Appeals Chamber even more precisely held:

A8 to whether the defects were cured, the information jn the Prosacution Pre-Teial Bref, bheld on
11 Detober 200K, as well as in its Chart of Witnesses and List of Lacts, filed on 18 July 2000, was
prowided to Naletilid and Martnovid in 4 1bnely manger, as these docoments were filed eleven anl
fourteen inoaths prior io the commencement of tdal, respectively. Witk regard to urtawinl laboee
in Joeationg other ihan the frontline, the Proseoution Pre-Trial Bocf stales thal “prisoncrs weorc
Iurecd to work al the premises of Martinovid” and that detainees were Torced by Martiaonid @
Loyt 1hie boraes of Bosnian Moslims who had been evicied across the fronl-line into East Mostar''.
The Prosecution Chan of Wilpesses and List of Faets provides ihat Marlinovié foreed Muslinm
detainess 1o perform “work such as constroction, mainienance, repairs on the fromt line ot al other
lucations cither in suppoct of the miliacy effon of the Croattan forees or for Lheir personal gain".ﬁ

fi. The European Court of Human Rights has dealt with the possible vidlation of Article 6(3){a)
and (b) of the Convention. In this context it held:

The Courl reiflcraies that in corpinat matters the prowizion of full, detadled informatioa io the
defemdant concerning the charges against him - and conzequently the legal chardeterisaton Lhe
tourl tight adopt in 1he matter - is an essential prereguisite for ensuring that the procecdings ars
Tair, Adcitivnedty, as regards the complaints under Andels & § 3 (b of the Convention, the Court
considets that sub-paragraphs ¢a) and (I of Arhcle 6 § 3 are connected and what the right 1o b
informed of the natere and the cause _Tn-l' the accusation must be considered in the light of a
defendant’™s righl to prepace hig defence.”

In anather case, the European Court of Human Rights stated:

The scape of the above provision quist in pariclar be assessed in ihe light of the mers generad
nAghl 10 a fair beanng guaraniced by Acticle 6 § 1 of the Convention, The Court considers that m
criminal matters the provisivn of full, deailed information concerning the charges against a
dufendant, and vonsequently the legal charactenisation thak the counrt might adop the matter, is an
esscnial pecrequisite for ensuning that the proceedings arc [air,

Article 6 § 3 () dees not [mpose any special Fortoal roguircment as to the manoey in which
the accused Ls to be informed af the nature and cavse of the accusation agalinst him.

Lastly, as tegards the complain under Atticle 6 § 3 (b of Lhe Convention, the Court considers that

sub-paragraphs {a) and (b} of Article § § 3 are coonected and that the dght w be informed of e

nature and the cause of the accusation st be considered o the light of the accuscd's rAght w©

prepare his de fence.”
7. Cuonsequently, according to the above cited cases, the Indictment is not the only way to
inform the appellant about the charges apgainst him. In many cases, the Prosecotion will not be in a
position ta know all the evidence al the easly stage of proceedings in which the Indictment 15 filed.

It £ unrealistic to believe that the Prosecution is not confronied with changing evidetice throughout

¥ Gactempitsi Appeal Tudgement, para. 49 (original footnotes in square brackets).
® Nedetitid, akea. "Tuta", and Marinavid a b, Srela”, Appeal Tudgement, para, 33 foolnotcs omitied),

P ECTtHR, Case of Borisova v. Brlgara, Appl. No, 5685 1/00, Judgment, 21 December 2006, para. 41 {furlher refercnees
omiitied).

® ECIHR, Case of Pélissier and Sassi v. Fraace, Appl. No 25444794, Judgzement 25 March 1999, paras $2-54 (further
references omiticd, crphasis added).

u7
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the whole course of the proceedings. It would be incredible or, at the very least, surprising, if the
factual basis of an Indictment remained unchanged after the lnalization of investigalions. Even in
cases where tnal proceedings are already ongoing, it has to be and is possible to add fresh

information 1o the case.

3. As it is at the same time still imponant 10 keep the accused informed gbowt the charges
against himm, it is a generally aceepted principle in eriminal law, both in Anglo-Saxon and Romano-
Genmnanic influcnced jorisdictions, that such additional tnformation can also be given by an

indication that the factual basis andfor the legal assessment might be varied.

9 Beiore contimung, T would like to apologize for restricting my following comments to
German law and  junsprudence. Unfortunately, the workload does not allow for in-depth
comparative research. However, the quoted regulations and case law may scrve as an exammple for
many similar systems. Moreover, up unti] today nobody has successfully claimed (hat Lhis approach

violates the Fundamental rights tu be informed and to be heard.

19, The German Code of Crimninal Procedure allows explicitly for legal indications by the coun.

The respective provision reads:

Section 263, [Change in Legal Refeeence]

(1} The delendant may not be senlenced on the basis af a penal norm other than the
one celeered o in the charpes adinitted by the court withouwt Mgt baving his attention specifically
drawn o e change in the legal relcrence amd withom having been afforded an opportunicy to
defend himsei.

(2] The same procedute shall be (ollowed §F special circumstances appear only at the
hearing which in acoordance with the penal aoral increase cominal Habiley [,

3 The main hearing shall be suspended vpon the defendant's application if, alleging
insufliviend preparation lor defense, he contests newly discavered circumstances which adimit the
application of a more severe pennl oom against the defendant than the one referred o in the
charges admitied by the court, or which [orms parl of the circumstances indicated in
subsecion (2).

(41 The court shall, in ofher cases as well, suspend the main bearing upon an
application or propeio mown, if in conscquence of the change in circumstances it appears
reasonable for adequale preparation of the charges or of the defense.”

11 In order to avaid injustice by the barring prnciple of re bis tn idem, a regulation like this is
necessary int the well understood interest of justice. It is inherent 1o any criminal proceedings that
the underlying facls might be discovercd only during the wial, To hold otherwise would make a

public hearing with ity inherent dynamics seperfleous. In such a hearing, for example, a8 witness

¥ Courlesy translation provided by the German Ministry of Justice. Emphasis added.
38
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might testify spontaneounsly or confronted in cross-examination in a totally different way. As a

conseguence Lthe bench might reach different conclusions,

12, The abowve cited provisions show thu there are ways to introduce new facts into the
procecdings while al the same ttme safe-puarding the fundamental nights of the accused. In this
contexl, il has 10 be noted that according to settled German jursprudence a hearing can even be re-
opencd in order o hear new evidence when the eoun s handing down the reasons for the judgement
— al 4 point in German criminal proceedings when the disposition has alecady been read out." Not
to allow a party to continue to bring new facts until the very end of the proceedings and (o seek, if
nceessary, legal requalification would render the proceedings unfair, provided of course that these
new facts or the new evidence were not previously known or available. However, the question of

untimely disclosure 15 not al stake 10 this case.

13 From the guisct, according lo scttled German judspoudence, any legal indication, which
enables the accused and his defence counsel 1o align the defence strategy accordingly is necossary
and at the same time sufficient.’’ Cerin inaccuracics in relation tw the faciual allegations are
considered (o be inherent to any indictinent. A legal indication has to be given as so0n as & more
accurale description of the underlying facts is possible.® In cases, where in the course of the trial
cerlain aspects of the factual allegations are simply specified funber, however, a lepal indication is
only considered 1o be obligatory where the rights of the accused to be heard and to be protected

against unexpected decisions so demand '

14. In predominantly pany-driven procecdings, like those belore this Tribungl, such an
indication has o> be given by the Prosccution or, to avoid unfamess, by the bench (fura aowiz
curig}. As it 15 unrealistic to believe thal the facts as described in the Indiciment will always be
proven i exactly that way at trizl, it is important that such an indicanon can be given at any ime
doring the procecdings. Jost as in other criminal proceedings, ouwr main concermn should be o strive
10 find the wuth, The possipility W introduce new facls iy the course of the proceedings is Ltherefure
cssential. In particular in light of our specilic mandate under Chapter Vil ol the Charer of the

Uniied Nations'*, it is irresponsible 1o acquit an accused who was informed about the charges

" Lotz Meyer-Gobner, Swafprovessordnung, 5 o, CH. Beck (2007), Section 268, mwrginal number 14 {with
Tunther relerences).

" German Federal Supreme Court (Bradesperichtshofy, Judgement of 16 October 1962, BGHS1 iR, 56, ruiding
rinctples.

L German Federal Supreme Court { Bundesgerichitshaf), Judgement of 29 July 1998, BGHSt 4, 153, guiding principles.

" German Federa! Supreme Court (Bundesgerichtshof), Judgement of 20 Tebmary 2003, DGHst 34, 153, guiding

principles,

* Unitcd Nations Security Council Resclutton of § November 1999, S/RceW55 (19945 reads: “{...] Determined o pat

in end 19 such crimes and 1o 1ake cffective measiees o brog 10 justice the persans who ane responsibie for tem, {.,.3.°

In this coniexl, please also nole the famous words of former UN Secretary-Ceneral Keoff Annam: “There 15 ne prace

&3
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apainst him and had the possibility {and made indeed use of it) 10 defend himself against a slightly
varied charge, however concrete and known in detail to bim. In the case before us, the accused was
in no doubl about the alleged concrete criminal conduct against which he had 1o defend himself,

This 15 all that matters.

15, Ulthimately, and in accordance with the rights guarantecd not only in the Staiwe®, it is
decisive that an accused is informed well in advance before a judgement is rendered. The question
of delayed disclosure is irelevant as long as the accused is able to defend himself against all the
allegations. As the rnight 1o be informed cannot be viewed in isolation and must be seen in the
context of the right (o prepare a defence, the decisive factor in determining whether the accused’s
rights were in (act impaired has to be whether he was able to frame his defence accordingly. In the
case at hand, the modification was presented even before the trial staried. The Delence was clearly
informed about the material facts underlying the alleged enime. Defence Counsel referred 1o the
cnme as descnbed by Witness AW in cross-examination, thus showing that the Defence was
completely awarc of the time, place and manner of the alleged crime'™, and in particular that the
Appecllant was alleged W have committed the crime himsell. Consequently, the defects of the

Indictmenl were cuered and the defence was in no way prejudiced.

16. By not taking inte congideration at least the allegation as presented by the Prosecution in the
Pre-Tral Brief and its appendices, the junsprudence of the Tribunal ultimately runs the sk of
hitting a dead-end, leading at the end of the day to injustice. Therefore, it would have been
preferabie to use this opporunity to clarfy the junsprudence of this Tribunal in the case before us.

It is for these reasons that, with all due respeet, 1 have to dissent in relation to Ground of Appeal 15,

without Justics; there 15 no justice wilhout truth”, refoming inter afia to Prophet Mofummed, Hadith: “I1 you sce a
wrong ¥oul must ight i, with your hand if you ean, or, with your words, or, wilh Your stare, or in your heart, and that is
the weakest of fath™; Pape Paw! VT you want peace, work for jastice™; Rabbon Simeon Ren Gamaliel The world
rcsts on three pillars: on rutl, on justice, and on peace™; 2 Talmodic commentary adds to this: “The thres are really one.
I justice is rgalized. truth 15 vindicated and pace resolis.”

Y% Sew supra patas 2 and 3,

T 14 Aprl 2004 p. 49-51.
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Daone in English and French, the English rext being authoritative.

N, lbLﬂm‘u.lq_
/ S

Wolfgang Schomburg

Judge

Daated this 21st day of May 2007 in Arusha, Tanzania.

[Seal of the Tribunal}
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XXH, ANNEXA - PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

1. The main aspeets of the appeal proceedings are summarized beiow.

A, Nuotice of Appeal

2. The Trial Chamber rendered its judgement at a hearing on 28 Apdl 2005 and issued the
written jodgement in English on 26 May 2005. On 20 May 2005, the Appellant filed 2 motion
seeking an extension of ime for the filing of his Nouce of Appeal on the basis that the French and
Kinyarwanda texrs of the Trial Judgement were not available.! On 2 June 2008, the Appeals
Chamber ordered the Appellant to file his Notice of Appeal nto later than thirty days from the date
of the filing of the French translation of the Trial Judgement.” The French ranslation of the Trial
Judgement was Tited on 19 December 2005.°

3 The Appeiiant filed his Notice of Appeal on 26 Januwary 2006, On 22 February 2006, the
Appeals Chamber accepted the Notce of Appeal as wvalidly filed, requested the Registry to
designate the Notice of Appeal as a conlidential document, and ordered the Appellant to Gl a
public 2nd redacted version within sixty days of the filing of the order.” The Appellant filed a public
and redacted version of the Notive of Appeal on 24 April 2006.°

B. Appellant’s Bief

4, The Appeilant filed a confidential bref in support of bis appeal on 12 April 2006, and a
public, rcdacted version on 30 August 2006 On 22 May 2006, thc Prosccutivn filed its
Respondent's Brief, parily in English and partly in French.” On 14 Junc 2006, the Appellant filed a
motion requesting that the prescribed time Himit for the filing of the Brief in Reply start to run from
10 July 2006, in case the Fronch version of the Respondent’s Brief was made available between 14
June 2006 and 10 July 2006." On 21 Junc 2006, the Pre-Appeal Judge rendered a decision

disallowing (he Appellant’s request for an extension of time and reminded the Appellant to file his

Rﬁqw:e e die Defense aux fins du Repore du Délal de DEpit de D'Acte 8"Appel, 20 May X105

[)E:cumn on Motion for Exignsion of Time for ¥Filing of Naotice of Appeal, 2 June HKIS,

b See Ondee Concerning Whe Filing of the Nolce of Appeal, 22 February 2006 (noting the daie of Dling of the French
Ir:mai.nmn of the Trial Judgeinen).

Ac 2 o Appef, 26 Janary 2000

Drdcr Concerning Lhe Filing of the Notice of Appeal. 22 Fobruary 20046,

An English translation of the poblic and redeeied Notice of Appeal was filed on 23 May 2006,

Fm Fnglish translaion of the confidential Appellant’s Bricf was filad on 27 June 2006,

»'-'Iz‘mmre d'Appet public er coviardd, 30 Angus 2006

J"Lﬂ English translation of the Respondent’s Bricf was Gfled on 4 Seprember 2006,

qu:me tle V'Appelurt qux fing ofe rédaménagement du cofendrier fudiclaire, |4 June 206, The Prosecution Fled a
response in Freoch on 16 June Z000G (Réponse dir Procurenr O fa "Reguéte de "Appelant atx fins de réamfncyemen! du
cerfereter judfciafre ™).

o2
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Brief in Reply within fifteen days of service of the French translation of the Respondent's Brief,"!
The French text of the Respondent's Doef was [iled on 13 October 2006 and was served on the
Appellant on 16 October 2006.1

5. On 14 November 2008, the Appeals Chamber noted in its Scheduling Order that the
Appellant had not filed @ Briet in Reply in accordance with Rule 113 of the Rules and that the time
for the filing had lapsed."” The Appellant filed his Brief in Reply on 14 NMovember 2006, On 16
November 2008, the Prosecution filed a motion Lo expunge the Briel in Reply rom the record. " On
{7 November 2006, the Appellunt filed a motion requesting the Appeais Chanber to declare his
Brief in Reply validly filed.* On 11 January 2007, the Appeals Chamber dismissed the Appellant’s
motion, having found that the Appeliant had fatled w show good canse for the late filing within the
ambil of Rule [16 of the Rules and granted the Prosecution’s motion of 16 November 2006."

Consequentiy, the Appeals Chamber did noi consider the Appellant's Brief in Reply.

C. Assignment of Judges

6. On 31 May 2005, the following Tudges were assigned to hear the appeal: fudge Theodor
Meron, Presiding: JTudge Mohamed Shahabuddeen, Judge Metunct Giney; Judge Fausto Pocar; and
Judge Waolfeang St:ﬂn:)rnl:-urg.]E Judge Fausto Pocar was designated as Pre-Appeal J udgr.:,";' By Order
of' 1 February 2006, the following Jixges were reassigned to hear the appeal: Judge Favsto Pocar,
Presiding; Judpe Mohamed Shahabuddeen; Judge Mehmet Giiney; Judge [iu Dagun; and Judge
Wolfgang Schomburg. ™ Judge Liv Dagun was assigned (o replace Judge Fausto Pocar as Pre-

Appeal Judge.“

Y Decision on Appeltant’s Motion for Extension of Time w File a Dricf i Reply and Postponement of a Sialus
Conference, 21 June 2006, On 27 Tuse 2006, the Appellamt §iled a toply {Répligue de PAppelant & la réponse du
Provareur & La vegiefle du 1o fuin 20008, relative au péantfnagement du calemdvier judicieire),

12 Kegistrar's Bubmisoion vnder Rule 33(B) of the Rules on Deeision on Appellant’s Motion to Mole the Tailure (o Vile
the Respandent®s Briel within the Prescribed Time Limil of 11 September 2006, 18 Ocrober 2006,

1 Bcheduting Order, 14 Muvember 2006,

" Replique de FAppelant au mémaire de UIntimé, 14 November 2006,

¥ Prusecotor's Motion to Expunge from the Record the Late and Over-Sized Reply Brief filed by the Appellant on 14
Movember 20006, 16 Woyvamnher 2000,

'* Reguite de " Appefant aur fins de la recevabilité de ta Réplique au mémoire de intimeé. 17 November 2006,

7 Decision an the Admissibility of the Appellant’s Boief in Reply, 11 January 2007

" Crder of the Presiding Judge Assigning Judges to an Appeal before the Appeals Chamber, 31 May 2005,

“ Ordex uf the Presiding Judge Assipning Judges ta an Appeal before the Appeals Chamber 31 May 2005,

* Order Re-Assigning Judges to a Case befire the Appeals Chamber apd He-Appointing u Pre-Appeal Tudge, 1

TFebouaty 2006,
P oOwder Re-Assigning Judges to 2 Case befors the Appeals Chamber amd Re-Appointing a Pre-Appeal Julge, |
Eebroary 2006,
93
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N, Motions related to the Admission of Additional Evidence

7. On 13 March 2006, the Appellam filed a mation for extension of time to file a motion (o
present additional evidence,* The Prosecution filed a response on 17 March 2006 opposing the
extension of timme,** and the Appellant filed a reply on 29 March 2006.** Ou 25 Aprl 2006, the
Appellant filed a motion 10 prescnl additional evidence.”™ On 26 April 2006, the Pre-Appeal Judge
denicd the Appellant’s 13 March 2006 motion for extension of dme to file & motion o present
additional evidence.® On 5 May 2006, the Prosccution filed a response to the Appellant’s 25 April
2006 molion to present additional evidence.2’ On 26 September 2006, the Appeals Chamber denied
the Appellant’s 25 Aprl 2006 moton for admission of additional evidence®™® On 14 December
2006, the Appellant filed a second motion 1 admit additional evidence ™ The Prosecution filed its
response opposing this motion on 19 December 2006, and the Appellant replied on 29 December
2006, On 12 January 2007, the Appeals Chamber denied (his second motion.’? Hearing of the
Appeal

8. On 135 January 2007, the parties presented their oral arguments at @ heanng held in Arusha,
Tanzania, in accordance with the Schedyling Order of 14 November 2006 At the close of the

heartng, the Appeltailt addressed the Appeals Chamber,

= Requite de I'Appelant aux fing de prorogation de ddlai powr b présentarion des moyens de prevoe supplémettiaires,
L3 March 20064,
2 Réponse du Procireur & fa reguite de (Appelane aux fins de provogarion de délal pour fa préseneaiion dex movens
df Preave Tupridmentgiies, 17 March 2004,

Rép!:que’ de 'Appelont & fz rédponse du Procurenr & fa regquéte wiex fins de prorogation oe £l power la présemiaion
dfi‘ muyens de prevve, 29 harch 2006,

Requere' de DAppetant aux fins de Lo présentation des mevens de presve supplémeniaires, 25 Aprl 2006,

% Decision on Appellant’s Request Tor EExtension of Time to File additional Evidence Mation, 26 April 2006,
¥ Prosccusar’s Response (o “Requéte de (" Appelonr gux fins de e présemtation dex moyens de preave supplémeniaices”,
S May 2006

¥ Pyecision on Appellant's Motion (o Present Additional Evidence, 26 Scptember 2004,

“" Reguéte de 1'Appellunt aux fins de présentation d'wr mayenr de preuve sipplémeniaire rovean sir hate de Uarticle
HS i Réglement de preuve et dr procédure, 14 December 2006,

RL‘,!H)HM e Procurewr & fn "Negudie de UAppelant s fing de présenattiog J 'ue mover de frepve suppliseniaire
ROUVEIE Sur bere de Variele 13 du Reglement de premve ot de procéanre”, 19 December 2006,

Rt‘pf:que de "Apprltant & la Réponse du Procureur velarive & lu préseatation @'un moven e presve suppfémentaire
AcLvedr wur bak de Carticle 715 de B 170, 29 December 2000,
¥ Diecision on 1he Appellant’s Kequesi o Admit Additional Evidence Parsuant to Rute 115 of the Roles of Procedore
and Bvidence, 12 January 2007,
* Sehedaling Order, 14 November 2006.
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XXI11l, ANNEX B - CITED MATERIALS AND DEFINED TERMS

A, Jurisprudence

1. ICTR
Akayosu

The Prosecutor v. Jean-Paw! Akayesu, Case No, ICTR-86-4-A, Judgement, 1 June 2001 (“Akavesu
Appeal Judgement™)

Bagilishema

The Prosecwtor v. Ignace Bogilishema, Case No. ICTR-93-1A-T, Judgement, 7 June 2001
(“Bagifisitema ral Judgement™)

The Prosecutor v. Ipnace Bagilishema, Case No, ICTR-05-1A-A, Judgement (Reasons), 3 July
2002 (" Bagilishema Appeal Judgement™)

Cacumbyitsi

Syivestre Gaeumbitst v, The Prosevutor, Case No. ICTR-2001-64-A, Judgement, 7 July 2006
(“Gactmbitsi Appeal Judgement™}

Kajelijcli

Juvénal Kajelijeli v. The Prosecator, Case No. ICTR-98-44A-A, Judgement, 23 May 2005
{"Kajetijeli Appeal Judgement™

Kamuhanda

Jean de Diew Kamuhanda v. The Prosecutor, Case No, [CTR-95-54A-A, Judgement, 19 Seplember
2005 (“Kamuhanda Appeal Judgement™)

Kayishemna and Ruzindana

The Prosecutor v. Clément Kavisheme and Obed Ruzindana, Case No, ICTR-93-1-A, Senlence, 29
May 2001 " Koyishema and Ruzindana Scntencing Ondat™)

The Prosecutor v. Clément Kayishema and Obed Ruzindana, Case No. ICTR-25-1-A, Judgement
{Reasons), 1 Tune 20010 (“Kayishtema and Ruzindana Appeal Judgement™)

MMuhimana

The Prozeculor v Mikaeli Muhimana, Case No. ICTR-95-IB-], Decisicn on Motion to Amend
Indictiment, 21 Janwary 2004 (“Muhiniana, Decision on Motion to Amend Indictment™)

The Prosecutor v. Mika Mufiimana, Case No. ICTR-95-1B-T, Onler in Relation to Defence Motion
on {nadmissibility of Wilness Testimony, 13 Seplember 2004 (“Muhimana, Order in Relation to
Detence Motion on Inadmissibility of Witness Testimony™)
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Muscma

Alfred Musema v. The Prosecutor, Case No. ICTR-96-13-A, Judgement, 16 November 20001
{(“Musema Appeal Judgement™)

Ndindabahizi

Emmanue! Ndindabafizi v. The Presecutor, Case No. ICTR-01-71-A, Judgement, 16 Januvary 2007
{“Ndindabahizi Appeal Judgement™)

Niyitcgeka

Eliézer Mivitegeka v, The Prosecutor, Casc No. ICTR-96-14-A, Judgcment, 9 July 2004
(“Nivitegeka Appeal Judgement”)

Ntagerura et ab.

Le Procureur of André Neagerura, Emmaniel Bagambiki and Samuel Imanishimwe, Aflaire n*
ICTR-99-46-A, Arrét, T juillet 2006 {"Mragerura ef al. Appeal Judgenent™)

Niakirutimana

The Prosecutor v. Elizaphan Ntakirutimana and Gérard Niakiratimana, Cases Nos, ICTR-D6-10-A
and JCTR-96-17-A, Judgement, 13 December 2004 (“Niakirutimana Appeal Iudgement”}

Rutaganda

Ceorges Anderson Nderubumwe Rutaganda v. The Prosecutor, Case No, [CTR-96-3-A, Tulgement,
26 May 2003 (“Rutaganda Appea) Judgement™

Semanza

The Prosecutor v. Lawrent Semanza, Case No. ICTR-9720-T, ludpement and Sentence, 15 May
2003 (“Semanza Trhal Indgement™)

Laurent Semanza v. The Prosecutor, Case No, ICTR-97-20-4A, Judgement, 20 May 20035 (“Semanza
Appeal Iudgement™)

Serushago

The Prosecutor v. QOmar Serushago, Case No. [CTR-98-39-8, Sentence, 5 February [999,
(“Seruthago Scatencing Judgement)

2. 1CTY
Aleksowski

The Prosecutor v. Zatho Aleksovski, Case Noo IT-95-14/1-A, Judgemem, 30 May 2001
(“Aleksovski Appeal Judgement™)

Babi¢

The Prosecutor v. Milun Babic, Case Mo, TT-03-72-A, Judgement on Senlencing Appeal, 18 July
2005 (“Babic Sentencing Appeal Judgement™')
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Niaskid

The Prosecutor v. Tihomir Blaikic, Case No. [T-95-14-T, Judpement, 3 March 2000 (“Bfaikic Tral
Judgement™)

The Prosecutor v. Tihomir Rlasiic, Case No, TT-95-14-A, Judgomem, 29 Iuly 2004 (“Blaskic
Appeal Judgement™}

Celebid Case

Thg Prosecitor v, Zejuil Delalic o al, Case No. [T-96-21-T, Judgement, 16 November [958
{"*Celebici Case Troal Judgement™)

The FProsecutor v, Zeimil Delalic et al., Case No. IT-96-21-A, Judgement, 20 February 2001
(“Celebidi Case Appeal Judgement™)

Erdemovic

The Prosecitor v. Drazen Erdemovic, Sentencing Judpement, TT-96-22-T, 29 November 1936
(" Erdenovic [ Sentencing Judpement™}

The Prosecutor v, Drazen Erdemovid, Sentencing Judpement, TT-96-22, 3 March 1998 (" Erdemaovic
If Sentencing Judgement™)

Furundzija

The Prosecutor vo Ante Furundiiju, Case No.o IT-95-17/1-T, Judgement, 10 December 1998
("“Frrundiije Tnal Judgement™)

Jelisi¢

The Prosecutar v. Garan Felisi, Case No, IT-95-10-T, Judgement, 14 December 1999 Jefisid
Trial Judgement™)

The Prosecutor v. Goran Jelisic, Case No. TT-93-10-A, Judgement, 5 July 2001 (“Jeiisi¢ Appeal
Judgemenl”)

Krstic

The Prosecwtor v, Radistav Krstid, Casc No. IT-98-33-A, Judgement, 19 April 2004 (“Krstid
Appeal Judgement™)

Kiunarac et al.

The Prosecrizor v, Pragoliub Kunarac et o, Case Nos. 1T-96-23-T & [T-96-23/1-T, Judgement, 22
February 2001 (" Kunarac et @l. Toal Judgement™)

The Prosecutor v. Dvageljubh Kunarae et al., Case No. IT-96-23&IT-96-23/1-A, Judgemnent, 12
June 2002 (" Kunarac et af. Appeal Judgemen!™)

Kupreikid et al.

The FProsecutor v. Zoran Kupreskic et al, Case No, I[T-95-16-A, Judgement, 23 October 2001
{"Kuprefkic et of. Appeal Judpement™)
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Evolka cf al.

The Prosecutor v, Miroslay Kvodka ef al, Case No. [T-98-3/1-A, Judgement, 28 February 2005
{“Kvodka et al. Appeal Judgement™)

Naijetilié and Martingyid

The Prosecutor v. Mladen Maletilid and Vinko Martinovic, Case No. 1T-98-34-A, Judgement, 3
May 2006 ("Naletdic and Martinovid Appexl Judgemeni™)

Stakid

The Prosecutor v. Milomir Staki¢, Casc No, 1T-97-24-A, Judgement, 22 March 2000 {“Stakic
Appeal Judgement™)

Tadid

The Prosecutor v. Dutko Tadid at/a "Dide”, Case Noo IT-94-1-A, Judgement, 15 July 199G
("Tadi¢ Appeal Judgemen(™)

The Prosecutor v. Dusko Tadid a/a “Dule”, Case No. TT-24-1-A and IT-94-1- Abis, Judgement in
Senlencing Appeals, 26 January 2000 (“Tudic Sentencing Appeal Judgement™)

Vasiljevic

The Prosecutor v Mitar Vasiffevic, Case No. IT-98-32-A, Judoement, 25 T-ebruary 2004
(“Vasiffevic Appeal Judgement™)

A. Delined Terms and Ahbreviations

Appellant
Mikacl {aka “Mika”) Muhimana and the Counsel for the Defence of Mikaeli Muhimana
Appecllant’s Bricf

The Deience of Mikaeli Muhimana Appeal Boef, hled in French (Mémoire J'Appel) on 12 Apnil
2006

Defence Closing Dricf

The Final Toal Brief of the Defence of Mikasli Mubimana, English translation filed on 29
Novembar 2004

Ex. D
Defence Exhibil
Ex.P

Proscention Exhibit

9%
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Genccide Conventioh

Aricle I of the Convention gn the Prevenuon and Punishment of Crune of {enocide, 9 December
194E

ICTR

Internaticnal Crminal Tribunal for the Prosecution of Persons Responsible for Genocide and Other
Serous Vivlations of International Humanitarian Law Committed in the Territory of Rwanda and
Rwandan Citizens Responsible for Genocide and Other Such Violations Committed in the Territory
of Neighbouring States, between 1 January 1994 and 31 December 1994

ICTY

International Trbunal for the Prosecution of Persong Responsible for Serious Violations of
Intemational Humanitaran Law Commitied in the Termtory of the Former Yugoslavia since 1991

Nolice of Appcal

The Defence of Mikacli Muhimana Notice of Appeal, filed in French {Acte 4 Appel} on 26 lanuary
2006

p- (pp.}

page [{pages)

para. {paras.}

paragraph {paragraphs}

Practice Direction on Fermal Requirements for Appeals from Judgement
Practice Direction on Formal Requirements tor Appeals from Judgement, 4 July 2005
Pre-Trial Brief

Pre-Tral Brief of the Office of Lhe Prosecutor of the Intermnational Cdmipal Trbunal for Rwanda
(Filed Pursuant to Rule 73(B ¥ibis of the Rules of Procedure and Evidence), filed in English on 27
Februany 2004

Respondent
The Office of the Pmsccutor of the Interational Criminal Tnbunal for Ewanda
Respondent™s Bricl

Prosecution Response o Appeal Briel of the Defence of Mikaeli Muhimana, filed partly in French
and partly in English (M &moire de 'intimé) on 22 May 2006

Rules

Rules of Procedure amd Evidence of the International Cniminal Tribunal (o Bwanda

og
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Statute

Starute of the Intemnational Criminal Tribumal for Rwanda establishcd by Scewrity Council
Resolution 953

T.
Transcript
Trial Judgement

The Prosecutor v. Mikaeli Muhimana, Case No, ICTR-95-1B-T, rendered orally on 28 apnl 2005,
written judgemnent released in English on 26 May 2005
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